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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & MOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330!
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TOD Access: I-800-73S-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

January 26, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
(VC#177511-R001), Keene, NH, for the ongoing provision of Permanent Housing and Supportive
Services through the Federal Continuum of Care Program to individuals and families who are
experiencing homelessness. by increasing the price limitation by $219,951 from $430,378 to
$650,329 and by extending the completion date from July 31, 2022 to July 31, 2023, effective
August 1.2022, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later.' 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 25,2020, item #8,
amended with Governor and Council approval on November 18, 2020, item #18. and most
recently amended on July 14, 2021, item #10.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line jtems
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $22,448 $0 $22,448

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $173,518 $0 $173,518

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $14,461 $0 $14,461

2022 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Relief
TBD $201,622 $0 $201,622

2023 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Relief
TBD $18,329 $201,622 $219,951

2024 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Relief
TBD $0 $18,329 $18,329

Total $430,378 $219,951 $650,329

The Deparlment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for eitizens to achieve health and independence. 4
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to continue providing a Permanent Supportive Housing
program that delivers rental assistance, service access and supportive services to individuals and
families who are experiencing homelessness. The Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date and available contract renewal options in response to a directive from
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Notice of
Funding Opportunity, to provide an additional one (1) year of funding to the Contractor for this
specific Continuum of Care grant project.

Approximately thirteen (13) households will be served annually.

Using the federally required Housing First model, the Contractor develops Stabilization
and Crisis Management plans and facilitates each participant's relocation to sustained permanent
housing. Additionally, the Contractor works to maximize each participant's ability to live more
independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Conducting annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

•  Reviewing semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic
information, as well as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Reviewing data entered into the New Hampshire Homeless Management
Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities
of shelter and housing programs.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Cheshire and Sullivan Counties.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #
NHOO92L1TO0(TBD)

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

'Wiu! U
Lori«. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program contract Is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Southwestern Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 25, 2020 (Item #8), as amended on November 18, 2020 (Item #18) and as most recently amended
on July 14, 2021, (Item #10), the Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

July 31, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$650,329

3. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1, Scope of Services, Section 1, Provisions Applicable to all
Services, by adding Subsection 1.11., to read:

1.11. The Contractor shall facilitate file reviews conducted by the Department onsite or remotely,
as determined by the Department, on an annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the
Department, which may include, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.3., by adding Subparagraph 1.2.3.6, to read:

1.2.3.6. NH0092L1T00(TBD) (SFY 2023; August 1. 2022 - June 30. 2023)

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.3., by adding Subparagraph 1.2.3.7, to read:

1.2.3.7. NH0092L1T00(TBD) (SFY 2024; July 1, 2023 - July 31, 2023)

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.4.1. April 1, 2020 - July 31, 2023, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-37,
General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A03 Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Contractor Initials

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 4
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7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.5, to read:

1.2.5. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program:

April 1,
2020-

June 30,

2020

July 1,
2020 -

June 30,

2021

July 1,
2021 -

July 31,
2021

August 1,
2021 - June

30, 2022

July 1,
2022-

July31,
2022

August
1,2022-
June 30,
2023

July1,
2023-

July 31,
2023

1.2.5.1. Operations:
$13,670 $131,982 $10,999 $152,327 $13,848 $152,327 $13,848

1.2.5.2.
Supportive
Services: $8,235 $37,509 $3,126 $44,798 $4,072 $44,798 $4,072

1.2.5.3.
Admin.

Expenses: $543 $4,027 $336 $4,497 $409 $4,497 $409

1.2.5.4.
Total

Amount: $22,448 $173,518 $14,461 $201,622 $18,329 $201,622 $18,329

1.2.5.5.
Vendor

Match (25%): $5,747 $44,387 $3,699 $51,530 $4,684 $51,530 $4,684

8. Add Exhibit B-2 Amendment #3 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A03

A-S-1.0

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

Page 2 of 4

^9
Contractor Initials

Date
jrmm
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain in
full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective August 1, 2022. or upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/2/2022

Date

—OocuSlflntd by:

Name:

Title: Division Director

Southwestern Corhmunity Services, Inc.

2/2/2022

Date

— DocuSlgntd by;

Title: chief Executive officer

SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA-15-A03

A-S-l .0

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviev\/ed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocoSJgntd by:

2/3/2022

Date Name: '
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A03 . Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit B-2 Amendment II3 Budget

SCS - Next Stept

|CoC Funds • NH0092LlT00(TBO)

Activity Name
Operations

Supportive Services

SFY2023 - 8/1/22-6/31/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST

BUDGET

152,327

44,798

YTD

$ •

MONTHLY

CONTRACTOR SHARE

BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

6HS SHARE

BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

152,327

44,798 S -

Administretion 4.497 4,497 S -

25% Required Match 51.530 S • 51,530 i -

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 253.152 51.530 201,622

Activity Name

SFY2024 7/1/23-7/31/23

TOTAL PROGRAM COST

BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

CONTRACTOR SHARE

BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

BHS SHARE

BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operations

Supportive SeiMcet

13,848 13.648

4,072

Administralior>

25% Required Match 4.684 5 • 4.684 $ -

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 23.013 4.684 18,329

TOTAL - 8/1/22-7/31/23

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operations 186.175 166,175

Supportive Services

Admlnlstralion

46.670 48,870

4,906

25% Required Match 56,214 56.214

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 276.165 56,214 219,951

Total W/0 Match 219,951

Southwestern Community Services, inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A03

Exhibit B-2 Amendment 83 Budget Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Date

[I
2/2/2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-»736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECC0

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concemed.

Business ID: 65514

Certificate Number: 0005339790

o
5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Kevin Watterson
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 18 , 2021 , at which a quorum of the Director^shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Beth Daniels. CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

to enter into contracts or agreements

with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any
and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto,
which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of^fJew Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 1/31/2022

Signature of Elec^d-Officer
Name: Kevin Watterson

Title: Chairperson

Rev. 03/24/20
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AC^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

06/23/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer riqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Clark Mortenson Insurance

PO Box 606

Keene NH 03431

contact Ana O'Donneil, CPIW, CIC

rATffnF..,- (603)352-2121 (603)357-8491
aI^fsS' oodonnell@clark-morten$on.com

INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC »

iNsuRFR A - Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

Southwestern Comm Services Inc

PO Box 603

keene NH 03431

INSURER a ■ Maine Employers Mut Ins Co 11149

INSURER C :

INSURER 0:

INSURER E ;

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: . 21/22 Master REVISION NUMBER:

Tnsr
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT.TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

POLICY EFFA'DDLfSUBR POLICY EXP
TYPE OP INSURANCE JUSELmiL POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYY) <MWDD/YYYY)

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILOY

CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TOKLNIbD

PREMISES (Ea ocairrwio)

PHPK2291636 06/30/2021 06/30/2022

MEO EXP (Any OfW p«r»on)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENX AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

X POLICY □ JE^ □ LOC
OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(En acddenil

X

BODILY INJURY (Per penon)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2291641 06/30/2021 06/30/2022 BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aeddenH

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

PHUB773640 06/30/2021 06/30/2022 AGGREGATE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY y IN
ANY PROPRIETOWPARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yee. deacribe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS t>etow

X PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

3102800768 04/01/2021 04/01/2022 E,L, EACH ACCIDENT

E.L, DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1.000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

2,000.000

2,000,000

500,000

500,000

500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarttt Schedule, may be attached If more epace la required)

WorXers Compensation laws apply for the state of: NH
All Officers are included

Department of Health & Human Services Bureau of Contracts &
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLEO BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Vision Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS seeks to create and support a climate within

the communities of southwestern New Hampshire

wherein poverty is never accepted as a chronic or
permanent condition of any person's life.



DocuSign Envelope ID; D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECC0

Mission Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS strives to empower low income people and
families. With dignity and respect, SCS will provide

direct assistance, reduce stressors and advocate for such

persons and families as they lift themselves toward
self-sufficiency.

In partnership and close collaboration with local
communities, SCS will provide leadership and support
to develop resources, programs and services to further

aid this population.
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Financial Statements

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC

AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS AND

REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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SOUTHWESTERN COiVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

rHOFKSSIONAI. ,«S(X;iAri(W

To the Board of Directors of CKirririED public accountants

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. wolfeboro • north comsw
Keene, New Hampshire

STRAInAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of May 31, 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's ResDonsibilitv for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated fihancial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2021, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2020 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated October 5, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2020, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. \r\ our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 22, 2021, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal contr'ol
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

October 22, 2021

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATEO STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POStTION

MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2021

$  1,722,941
1,781,636

62,626
2,357

3.569.562

28,937,986
565,380

934.441

30.437,807

14.621.952

15.815.855

138,001

55,138
1,471,741

105,790
384

1,771,054

S 21,156,471

2020

1,400,153

1,201,132

57,168

2,357

2.660.810

19,243,210
541,236

271.753

20,056,199

8.557.576

11 ■498.623

198,492
59,067

809,897
69,767

384

1,137,607

$ 15,297,040

Accounts payable S  240,586 $  160,672
Accrued expenses 170,074 87,023
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 244,003 228,394
Other current liabilities 148,854 149,154
Refundable advances 729,955 290,437
Current portion of long term debt 142,174 125,324

Total current liabilities 1,675,646 1,041,004

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt, less current portion shown at>ove 11,300,411 8,905,857
Economic Injury Disaster Loan 150,000 -

Paycheck Protection Program loan - 439,070

Total noncurrent liabilities 11,450,411 9,344,927

Total liabijities 13,126,057 10,385,931

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 7,815,065 4,766.637
With donor restrictions 215,349 144,472

Total net assets 8,030,414 4,911,109

Total liabilities and net assets $ 21.156^471 $  15,297,040

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C^787EBB2ECC0

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUMITY SFRVICFS. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2021

Total

2020

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts $ 14,451,497 $ - $ 14.451,497 $ 10,619,721

Program service fees 2,708.902 - 2,708,902 2,605,816
Rental Income 1,657,741 - 1,657,741 1,165,032

Developer fee income - - - 1,508
Support 465,614 136,024 601,638 593,610

Sponsorship 21,703 - 21,703 28,546

Interest income 1,402 - 1,402 9,224

Forgiveness of debt 518,501 - 518,501 79,338

Miscellaneous 239,096 - 239,096 148,113
In-kind contributions 65.414 - 65,414 167,553

Total revenues and other support 20,129,870 136,024 20,265,894 15,416,461

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 65,147 (65,147) - -

Total revenues, other support, end
net assets released from restrictions 20.195.017 70.877 20.265.894 15.416.461

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs 5,559,497 - 5,559,497 5,153,989

Education and nutrition 2,629,099 - 2,629,099 2,687,612
Homeless programs 5,516,502 - 5,516,502 2,060,655

Housing services 2,913,953 . 2,913,953 2,433,660
Economic development services 621,784 . 621,784 737,663
Other programs 750.430 - 750,430 775.342

Total program services 17,991,265 - 17,991,265 13,848,921

Supporting activities
Management and general 1.948.672 - 1,948,672 1,761.642

Total expenses 19,939,937 - 19,939.937 15,610,563

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY 255,080 70,877 325,957 (194,102)

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY - - - (140)

LOSS ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS {60.8971 - (60,897) (236)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 194,183 70.877 265,060 (1^,478)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,766,637 144,472 4,911,109 5,105,587

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS 2,854,245 - 2,854,245 -

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 7,815,065 $ 215,349 8,030,414 $  4,911,109

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DocuSgn Env«top« ID: O012ABSE-9S73-473e-gAeCM)787EB82ECC0

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNtTY SgRVICES. INC AND RgLATgP CQMPAKIIgS

CCNSOUOATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

Home Energy
Pfoorams

Payr^
Payrol tnxes
En^O)^ benefits
Retirement

Advertising
Bank charges
Computer cost
Contractual

Depreciation
Oues/regtstration
DupUcating
Insurance

Inteest

Meeting end conference
Miscellaneous oxpenss
Miscellsneous taxes

Equipment purchases
Office expense
Postage
Professiortal fees

Staff development and training
Subscriptions
Telephone
Travel

Vehicle

Rent

Space casts
Direct dent assistanM

In-kind expanses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION

Alocetlon of management and general expenses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

%  466.307
25.674
171.270
32.604

10

225

1.007,401

69

5.539

2.663

386

19.084
300

1.050

3.406

2,429
6,104
6,147

3.788.549

5,559.497

602.161

Education Economic

and Homeless Housing Development Other

Nutrition Proorams Services Services Proorams

S  1,518.514 S  491.084 $  725.103 S  350.643 i  439.136

106.568 37.005 43,514 30,248 33.024

381.988 144.229 263,670 55.553 180,793

85.776 24.671 51,308 20.760 14.238

3.100 388 1,295 1,638 •

. 1,130 4,109 - 11

28,110 12.051 7,765 16.171 -

12.804 42.954 61.431 680 46.737

26.438 117.967 603.938 - 7.620

2.290 - 320 543 -

8.160 - - • -

15,035 33.483 57.881 15.298 6.890

5,955 5.983 48.121 1,690
. 840 154 133

. 1,242 82.239 9.546 1.359

. - 101.224 - -

3.330 . 6,521 • •

17.479 60.872 11.834 2.568 749

368 126 37 348

- 3.300 38.627 -

1.327 165 2.488 614 1.185

- 98 • -

3.106 20.692 18,872 2.299 1.117

12.328 7.212 9.515 16.338 -

4.170 1.748 41.329 35.941 9,852

24,659 . - 21,112 •

122.478 384,093 718.703 16,731 114

179.702 4.126,109 12.971 24.399 3.782
65.414 - . - -

2.629,099 5,516.502 2.913.953 621.784 750.430

284.763 597,504 315.616 67.347 81.281

Total

Propram

4.011.067
276.033

1.197.703
229.357

6.419

5.260

64.322

1.174.007

755.963
3,153
8.229

134.126

61.749
1,127

97.249
101.224
10.237

112.586
1.179

42.977

9.165

98

48.515
51.497
99.187
45.771

1,242.119
8.135,512

65.414

17.991.265

1.948.672

Management

and

General

752.116
120.497
46.508

66.965
133

8.768
133.132
59.518
153.192
6.619
4.568

43.490
113.918

1.637

2.675
300

2.808
49,579

31.999

61.034

17.341

2.767
47.535
5.675
3.912

139,968

1,948.672

(1.948.672)

$ 6.161.658 S 2.913.862 $ 6.114.006 S 3.229,569 $ 689.131 $ 831.711 $ 19,939.937 $_

2021

Total

4.763.183
396.530

1.244.211
296.322
6.552
14.026

247.454
1.233.625
909.155
11.772
12.817

177.616

175.667
2.764

99.924
101.524
13.045

162.165
33.178
124.011
26.526

2.865
96.050

•  57.172
103.099
45.771

1,382.087
8.135,612"

65.414

19.939.937

$ 19.939.937

See Notes to CortsoHdated Financial Statements
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SOimWESTERN COMMUMFTY SERVICgS. INC. ANO RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOUDATHD STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2020

Education Ecorromic Management

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total ar>d 2020

Proorams Nutrition Proorams Services Services Proorams Pfooram and General Total •

PnVTOll i  467,456 S  1.374.787 $  335.905 $  735.214 $  435,177 S  424.014 S 3,772.553 $  731,826 S 4,504,379
PayroO taxes 36,287 107,590 25.566 56.083 35,147 32,738 293,411 55,964 349,375
Employee benefits 135,770 412,407 121.495 271.770 85,902 193.929 1.221.273 45,011 1,266,284

Retirement 29,265 71,941 19.791 58,108 21,016 13.973 214;094 64,115 278,209
Advertising 728 3,084 83 2.632 3,999 2.100 12.626 591 13,217

Bank charges 4 - 17 4,117 . 54 4,192 7,456 11,648
Bad debt expense - 45 195 . - 240 4,000 4,240
Computer cost - 28,124 5.S38 6.120 15,541 - 57,323 166,243 223,568
Contractual 776,055 18,582 13.624 27,752 2.719 74.250 912,982 41,190 954,172

Depreciation - 27,369 108.291 366.399 . 10,913 512,972 150,280 663,252
Dues/registration • 977 . 495 468 - 1,940 9,720 11,660

Ouplicstlng • 7,480 . . . - 7,480 5,684 13,164

Insurance 6,667 13.010 24.560 56,680 14,271 5,966 121,156 36.841 157,997

Interest . 7.198 7.527 36,985 - 51,710 114.881 166,591

Meetif>g artd conferertco 457 1,042 262 4,913 1,118 2.029 9,821 13,879 23,700

MfsceBancous oxpenso 3,543 1,597 60 44,189 4,722 163 54,274 18,105 72,379

MlsceBaneous taxes . . - 61,942 - . 61,942 200 62,142

Equipntent purchases 24,948 1,646 . 6.426 • . 33,020 30 33,050
Office expertse 20,017 8,744 0.002 9,148 10,480 33 54,424 24.136 78,560

Postage 240 261 123 189 252 . 1,065 24,447 25,512

Professional fees 2,045 3.200 28,716 . 706 34,669 89,175 123,644

Staff development and training . 2,135 648 1,208 415 3,088 7,494 2,787 10.281
Subscriptions - . 95 - • 95 1,801 1.696
Telepltone 2,283 1,968 17.624 17,959 3,179 1.166 44,179 41,601 85,780
Travel 6,792 16,310 12.602 7,545 30,585 15 73,849 3,031 76,880
Vohide 3,902 5,121 5,574 30,676 36.849 9,696 91,620 8,202 100,022
Rent 25,570 - - - 25,570 - 25,570

Space costs . 174,312 352,469 583,375 2.699 89 1.112,944 100,446 1,213,390

Direct client es^stsrtce 3,637,530 208,759 999,499 12.920 33,124 418 4,892,250 - 4,692,250

In-kind expenses ■ 167.553 - . - • 167.553 - 167.553

TOTAL FUNimONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT AUOCAT10N 5.153,989 2,687,612 2.060.655 2.433,660 737,663 775.342 13.848.921 1,761,642 15,610,563

Aflocaticn of management and general expenses 655,609 341.878 262.124 309.572 93.834 98.627 1.781.642 (1.761.6421 .

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 5.609.598 $ 3.029.488 $ 2.322.779. $ 2.743,232 S  831,497 S  873,969 S 15.610.563 S $ 15.610.563

See Notes to Consolidated Rnancia! Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID; D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-O787EBB26CC0

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change In net assets $  265,060 $  (194,478)
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 909,155 663,252
Loss on disposal of property - 140

Loss on investment In limited partnerships 60,897 236

Forgiveness of debt (518,501) (79.338)
Decrease (Increase) in assets:

Accounts receivable (580,504) 42,337

Prepaid expenses 31,348 (5,446)
Interest receivable - 45,547

Due from related parties 3,929 35

Security deposits (2,242) (6,771)
(Decrease) increase in liabilities;

Accounts payable 22,045 (230,941)
Accrued expenses 36,929 (32,597)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 15.609 (5,506)
Other current liabilities (300) 10,414
Refundable advances 439,518 109,443
Interest payable - (49,547)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 682.943 266,780

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of properly (432.400) (136,174)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (432,400) (136,174)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term debt 85,000 36,679
Repayment of long term debt (272.062) (127,826)
Proceeds from Economic Injury Disaster Loan 150,000 -

Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Program - 439,070

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (37,062) 347,923

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 213,481 478,529

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,210,050 1,731,521

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED

FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS 771,151 -

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR $  3,194,682 $  2,210.050

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECCO

snUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for Interest §- . ^

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Property financed by long term debt $ 767,599 $ ^

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LPs:
Prepaid expenses $ 36,807 $
Land and buildings 3,382,003
Furniture and fixtures 624.491
Security deposits l

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LPs $ 4,077,082 $_

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LPs:
Accounts payable $ 57,865 $
Accrued expenses 46,122
Due to related parties
Long term debt 1,890,298 _

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LPs $ 1,994,285 $_

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs $ 2,853,948 $

Partners' capital previously recorded as investment in related parlies 2^ _

Total t^^nsfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs ?„2,85'^_245 $_

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECC0

SOUTHWESTERN CQMiVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of services to the elderly,
disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and Sullivan counties of
New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the areas of education,
child development,, employment, energy and its conservation, housing, and
homelessness prevention. Services are provided through Southwestern
Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS Management
Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation, SCS Housing
Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described below. The
Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the
causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from governmental
contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial, statements include the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. and the following entities (collectively the Organization)
as Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has both an economic interest.and
control of the entities through a majority voting interest in their governing board.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic consolidated financial statements.

SCS Management Corporation
SCS Housing. Inc.
SCS Development Corporation
SCS Housing Development. Inc.
Drewsville Carriage House Associates, .Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Keene
East Side)
Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housirig Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook)
Keene Highland Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene Highland)
Warwick Meadow Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Warwick)



DocuSign Envelope ID; D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECCO

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
fcontinued)

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared
utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (tJS GAAP),
which require the Organization to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to the following net asset classifications. The
classes of net assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed
by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature;
those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by passage of
time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements include, certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information sho.uld be read in conjunction
with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2020 from
which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is recognized
as revenue.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECC0

SOUTHWESTERN CQMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

N0TE1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized skill,
are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.

Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of May 31;

2021 2020

Cash, operations $ 1,722,941 $ 1,400,153
Cash escrow and reserve funds 1.471.741 809.897

Total cash and restricted cash $ 3.194.682 $ 2.210.050

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
N  balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after

management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2021
and 2020. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECC0

SOUTHWESTERN COIVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations
of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and
regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or
Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to
pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative burden, to comply
with a change. Forthe years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020, approximately 71%
and 69%, respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received from
government agencies. The future nature of the Organization is dependent upon
continued support from the government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may . exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 arid an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the cost of
the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows;

Buildings and improvements 10-40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and irnpose restrictions on the use of funds received frorn the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020
totaled $909,155 and-$663,252, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECCO

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COiVlPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Corporation are
exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing Development,
Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net operating loss
carryforwards available for the May 31, 2021 and 2020 tax returns totaling
$1,230,191 and $1,135,222, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS
Development Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $542
and $555 at May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be
offset against future taxable incorrie and, if riot used, will begin to expire in 2022.
SCS Housing Development, Inc. has federal net operating loss carryforwards
totaling $59,8.61 and $35,574 at May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These loss
carryforwards may be offset against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin
to expire in 2035.

The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $271,025 $246,404
Valuation allowance (271.025) (246.404)

Deferred tax asset $ 2 :

Drewsvilie, Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey, Snow Brook,
Keene Highland, and Warwick are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are
not payable by, or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in
the partners' federal income lax returns based on their share of partnership
earnings. Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

.Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income tax returns for all
open years and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is
nece.ssary in the Organization's financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECCO

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. IMC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value
measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may use
valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches to
measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in
fair value measurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value, hierarchy under ASC Topic
820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and
the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of
the asset or liability including assumptibns regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as Income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions being met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, if a
restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports the, support as without donor restrictions.
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SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue Recognition (continued)

Program Service Revenue

Program service revenue is recognized as revenue when the services are
performed.

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues
are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and control of the
apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term
of one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is
transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflecte the consideration the

Partnership expects to be entitled to in exchange for the leased units. The cost
incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed as incurred.

Performance Obligations and Contract Assets and Liabilities

The performance obligations related to the lease contracts and program services
are satisfied at a point in time. Revenue from performance obligations satisfied
at a point in time consist of monthly rental payments and fees for. program
services. There are no contract assets or liabilities for the years ended May 31,
2021 and 2020.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced
most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires
expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of
revenue from cash.flows arising from contracts with customers. The Organization
adopted the new standard effective June 1, 2020, the first day of the
Organization's fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption
did not result in a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue
streams: as such, no cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. See revenue
recognition policy above.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31.2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Functional Allocation of Expenses (continued)
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rate is 12% effective from June 1, 2019 through May
31.2022.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate or at a
floor rate of 4%. The line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May
31, 2021 and 2020, the interest rate was 4%. There was no outstanding balance
at May 31, 2021 and 2020.

NOTES LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing'
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96 Main
Street).

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on an operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization {CDFA,
96 Main Street).

5.25% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $988
through March 2021. The note was paid in full
during the year ended May 31, 2021. The note was
secured by real estate of the Organization
(People's United Bank, Ashuelot).
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2021 2020

$  127,000 $ 136,370

27,589 29,589
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)
2021 2020

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project Is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 242,708 244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from^ which to make a payment, or until project
is sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43 Central). 376,066 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank In monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019, and
is now due December 2026. Under the amendment,

interest rate is 4.94% and monthly installments for
principal and interest are $1,957 The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization
(People's United Bank. Milestones). 112,702 130,230

4.375% note payable to, Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office). 2,134,970 .2,175,749

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on contract.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)
2021 2020

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest rate of 4.67% at May 31, 2021 and 2020.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (TD Bank, Keene Office/Community
Way). 376,617 389,578

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note was paid in full during
the year ended May 31, 2021. The note was
secured by real estate of the Organization (TD
Bank, 45 Central Street). - ,88,433

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 75.000 100,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (HUD, 112
Charlestown Road). 45,000 60,000
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)

2021 2020

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through July
2042 at which time the remaining balance is due.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of the
balance is forgiven each year through 2032 when
the remaining balance becomes due. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDBG,
Second Chance). 311,808 328,219

Non-iinterest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire, relating to an agreement between
the City of Keene and SCS for the purpose of
renovating Keene shelters. In total, SCS will receive
$472,000 from CDBG. SCS will receive the funds
as progress is made. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization and will be fully forgiven
providing the facility serves low- and moderate-
income individuals for 20 years '{CDBG, Keene
Shelter). 326,899 9,500

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 7.815 12,637

6.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$442 through November 2023. The note was paid
in full during the year ended May 31, 2021. The
note was secured by a vehicle (Ally, GMC Acadia). - 15,903

2.99% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $820
through May 2031. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (Savings Bank of
Walpole, 45 Central Street). 84,395
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SOUTHWESTERN CQIVIIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)
2021 2020

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire, relating to an agreement between
the City of Keene and SOS for the purpose of
renovating Keene shelters. In total, SOS will receive
$472,000 from CDBG. SOS will receive the funds
as progress is made. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization and will be fully forgiven
providing the facility serves low- and moderate-
income individuals for 20 years (CDBG, Elm Street
Shelter). 189,100

Non4nterest bearing note payable to the City of
Keehe, New Hampshire. The note expires in June
2022 and payment is not necessary unless the
Organization defaults on contract. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (City of
Keene, 139 Roxbury Street). 77,100

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire, with an original balance of
$240„o6o . reduced to $204,000 when the
Organization acquired the note from Keene
Housing in July 2020. No payment is due and 5%
of the balance is forgiven each year through Jurie
2037. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (City of Keene, 139 Roxbury Street). 204,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are deferred
until the note matures in June 2029. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDBG). 640,000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficient, improvements through the
.Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210
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finHTHWFSTERM COMMUNITY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.  FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)
2021 2020

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December
2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016, ,10% of the note is forgiven each
year based on the rolling balance. The mortgage
may be released after ten years in January 2026.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDFA). 139,860 162,880

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund energy
efficient improvements through the Authority's
Greener Homes Program. Payment is deferred for
30 years, through August 2042. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228.934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
mortgage note payable to the Ne\v Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 287,710 289,996

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable to
New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due September
2043, payable in monthly installments of $1,698,
including interest at 2.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 353,561 365,474
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SOUTHWESTERN COIVIIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT (continued)
2021 2020

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
including Interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership'^ land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 436,974 441,872

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest mortgage
note payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF),
due June 2034, principal and interest payable at
the sole discretion of the lender from the excess

cash of the borrower determined by formula,
secured by the Partnership's land and buildings,
subject to low income housing use restrictions for
the 30 year term of the mortgage. 237,173 237,173

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's land
and buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term of the mortgage
note (NHHFA). ' 43,450 46,978

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire Housing
(FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole discretion
of the lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note"(NHHFA). 79,60.9 85,028

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the ■
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreerheht. In the event of a default under the
aforementioned agreement, the loan is due upon
demand with interest accrued at a rate of 1167%
for the period the funds were outstanding (Federal
Home Loan Bank). 150,000 150,000
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTES LONG TERMDEBT (continued)
2021 2020

Keene Highland - Non-recourse mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
August 2035, payable in monthly installments of
$3,122, including interest at 2.90%, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 434,765

Keene Highland - 30 year, zero interest, non
recourse deferred mortgage note payable to the
City of Keene, New Hampshire due June 2035,
payment of principal js deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (City of Keene). 915,000

Warwick - 30 year, zero interest, non-recourse
deferred mortgage note payable to the Town of
Winchester, New Hampshire due August 2036,
payment of principal is deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (Town of
Winchester).

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Less current portion due within one year

i 1,460.204 9,049,462

f17.619) (18.281)

11,442,585 9,031,181

142.174 125.324

$11.300:411 $ 8.905.857

The schedule-of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2021 is as.follows;

Year Ending
May 31 Amount

2022 $ 142,174
2023 142,488
2024 146,073
2025 151,449

2026 157,310
Thereafter 10.720.710

Total $11.460.204
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable
lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods range from
month to month to 2025. Monthly lease payments range from $900 to $3,625.
Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled $148,143
and $140,758, respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31. 2021 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
Mav 31

2022

2023

2024

2025

Total

Amount

$  69,243
1,050

720

120

£  71.133

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $144,916
and $141,970, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. is the 100% owner of SCS Housing, Inc.
and SCS Housing Development, Inc. SCS Housing, Inc. and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners of eight limited partnerships formed
to develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $11,927,000 and $13,988,000 at
May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $27,348,000 and
$35,896,000. at May 31. 2021 and 2020, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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SOUTHWESTERN COiVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES fcontinuedl

The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing
laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred in
compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to
repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if
any, have not beeri determined or assessed by government audits as of May 31,
2021 and 2020.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31. 2021 and 2020, SOS Housing, Inc. mariaged
nine and eleyen limited partnerships, respectively. Management fees charged by
SCS Housing, Inc. totaled $228,239 and $295,814, for the years ended May 31.
2021 and 2020, respectively. Additionally," SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the
limited partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to'be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $55,138 and $59,067 at May 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

2021 2020

Cityside Housing Associates, LP $  (9,509) $  (9,505)
Marlborough" Homes. LP (43) (27)
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP (12,524) (12,514)
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP (2,247) (2,071)
WanA/ick Meadows Housing Associates, LP - (28)
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP 180.727 222,842

Westmill Senior Housing, LP 49 64

Keehe Highland Housing Associates, LP - (269)
Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP (18.452) (18.441)

$  138.001 $  180.051
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^ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT fcontinuecH

SOS Housing' Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates, LP. Marltiorough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, Woodcrest Drive
Housing Associates, LP, and Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10%
partner of Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner of
Westmiil Senior Housing, LP during the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020.

SOS Housing. Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook Meadow Village
Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP during the
years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP and Warwick Meadow Housing Associates, LP were acquired by
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending May 31, 2021
(see Note 13), and therefore the limited partnerships are included in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2021.

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2021 and 2020, consists of the following:

2021 2020

Total assets $ 53.169 $ 56.632

Total liabilities 15,200 16,530

Capital/Member's equity 37.969 40.102

S  53.169 $ 56.632

Income $ 3,267 $ 3,408

Expenses 4.719 4.707

Net loss $ f1.452^
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. AH employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has reached
one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's discretion
and totaled $296,322 and $278,209 for the years ended May 31. 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

GAPSA/Varm Fund

Transport
MS Parents Association

Total net assets with donor restrictions

2021

$  16,646
101,736
90,000

6.967

$  215.349

$

2020

4,814

91,725

40.000
7.933

NOTE 11 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The board designates a portion of the unrestricted net assets for WM Marcello
GAPS, funds. There was $12,790 and $14,888 designated by the board at May
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 12 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization realized
forgiveness of debt income in corinection with notes payable to Community
Development Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance
Authority. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $79,431 and $79,338 for the
years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Organization recognized forgiveness of debt of $439,070 related to the
Paycheck Protection Program during the year ended May 31, 2021, See
additional detail at Note 15.
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NOTE 13 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS

During the year ended May 31. 2021, Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
acquired a partnership Interest in two low-income housing limited partnerships;
Keene Highland and Warwick. The amount paid for the partnership interest in
Keene Highland and Warwick was $1 each, and at the time of acquisition,
Southwestern Comrnunity Services, Inc. became the general partner.

The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnerships at the
date of acquisition:

Keene

Highland Warwick

Date of Transfer 07/01/2020 01/01/2021

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

$  156,907
21,321

391,456
.  2,769,245

25.946

$  68,061
■  12,460

154,727

1,237,249
10.861

Total assets 3.364.875 1.483,358

Notes payable
Other liabilities

1,372,220
85.048

518,078

18,939

Total liabilities 1.457,268 537,017

Partners' capital 1,907,607 946,341

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties ' 269 28

Partners' capital transferred $ 1,907,876 $  946.369
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NOTE 14 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies' financial assets as of May 31, 2021 and 2020;

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2021

1,722,941

1.781,636

55,138

2,357
1.471.741

5.033.813

2020

1,400,153

1,201,132

59,067
2,357

809.897

3.472.606

(55,138)
(2,357)

f1.471.741)

f1.529.2361

$  3.504.577

(59,067)
(2.357)

(809.8971

(871.3211

$ 2.601.285

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,559,000 and $1,215,000 at May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The
Orgariization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 15 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $439,070
under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP, is established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief arid Economic Security Act (CARES Act). If the
Organization did not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is
payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the
first teri months. The Organization has used the proceeds for purposes consistent
with the PPP and the PPP loan has been forgiven in full. Therefore, forgiveness of
the loan totaling $439,070 has been recognized on the Consolidated Statement of
Activities for the year ended May 31, 2021.
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SOUTHWESTERN CQIVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 16 ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER LOAN
During June 2020, the Organization received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(EIDL) from the Small Business Administration with proceeds in the amount of
$150,000. The EIDL is payable over 30 years at an interest rate of 2.75% with a
deferral of payments for one year from the date of the note. Installments, including
principal and interest, of $641 monthly begin in June 2021. The balance of
principal and interest will be payable in May 2050. The loan is secured by the
Small Business Administration.

The scheduled maturities of the EIDL as of May 31, 2021 were as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Amount

$  3,201
3,585

3.685

3.788

3,893

131,848

$  150.000

NOTE 17 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts frorh the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 18 OTHER EVENTS

The impact of the novel coronavirus (GOVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's operations. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might
be imposed jn response to the pandemic. The Organization's business could also
be impacted should the disruptions from GOViD-19 lead to changes in consumer
behavior. GOVID-19 also makes it more challenging for management to estimate
future performance of the businesses, particularly over the near to medium term.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose

after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October
22, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SQLTTHWgSTERN COMMUWrTY SFRWCgS. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE ENDED MAY 31.2021

Allocation of management end general experises

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

602.191 264.763 S97.504 315.616 .67.347 81.281 1.948.672

Education Economic Manegamenl

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total and 2021

Pmarams Nutrition PnwimnM Servfces Services Pmorams Proa ram General Total

REVENUES

Government contracts $  4.633,049 $ 3,125,051 S 5.267.961 S  4,060 S  795,997 % 5 13,826.118 S 625.379 S 14.451.497

Program service fees 1.028.348 . 56.851 646,971 - 776,732 2.708.902 2.708.902
Rental income . . 90.984 1,566.630 127 1.657.741 • 1,657.741

Support 55.162 9,969 242.175 . 180,072 114,194 601.572 66 601.630

Sponsorship - . . . - 21.703 21.703 - 21.703

Interest Income 13 11 198 388 22 35 667 735 1.402

Forgiveness of debt . . 56.411 23,020 . • 79.431 439.070 518.501

Miscellaneous 1.047 3,908 4,613 119,379 25 39,362 169234 69.862 239.096

In-ldnd contributions . 85.414 . . . . 65.414 - 65.414

Total revenues and other support S 5,718.510 S 3,5»4,?» 5 5.71?,193 $ 2.5W.449 S  976116 S  952.153 $ 19.130.782 $ 1.136.112 S 20.265.894

EXPENSES

PayrrtI S  486.387 S  1,518,514 $  491,084 S  725.103 $  350,843 S  439,136 $ 4.011.067 i 752,116 $  4.763,183
Pa^l taxes 25,674 106.568 37,005 43,514 30,248 33.024 276.033 120,497 396.530

Employee benefits 171,270 381,988 144,229 263,870 55.553 160,793 1.197.703' 46.508 1.244.211
Retirement 32,604 85,776 24,671 51,308 20,760 14.238 229.357 66.965 296,322
Advertising - 3,100 388 1,295 1.638 . 6.419 133 6,652

Bank charges 10 • 1,130 4,109 . 11 5.260 8,766 14,026
Computer cost 225 28,110 12,051 7.765 16.171 - 64,322 183,132 247.454

Contrachi^ 1,007.401 12,004 42,054 61,431 680 48,737 1,174,007 59.518 1,233.525

Depredation - 28,438 117,987 603,938 . 7,620 755,963 153,192 900.155
Dues/ret^tration 2,290 • 320 543 - 3.153 8,610 11,772

Duplicating 69 6,160 - - - 8.229 4,568 12.817

Insurartce 5,539 15,035 33,483 57,881 15,298 6,890 134,126 43,490 177,616

Interest . 5,055 5,983 48,121 1,690 61.749 113,918 175,667
Meeting and cortftfence • . . 840 154 133 1.127 1,637 2,764

Miscellaneous expense 2,863 - 1,242 82,239 9,546 1,359 97249 2,675 99,624

Miscellaneous taxes . . • 101,224 . 101224 300 101,524
Equipment purchases 386 3,330 . 8,521 ■ - 10.237 2,608 13,045
Office expense 19,084 17.479 60.872 11,834 2,568 749 112.586 49,579 162.165

Postage 300 368 126 37 348 . 1,179 31,999 33,178
Professlortal fees 1,050 . 3,300 38,627 . 42.977 81,034 124.011
Staff development and training 3,406 1,327 165 2,488 814 1,185 9.185 17,341 28.528
Subscripfions . . . 98 . - 98 2,767 2,865

Telephm 2,429 3,106 20,692 18,672 2,299 1,117 48.515 47,535 96,050
Travel 6,104 12,328 7,212 9,515 18,338 - 51.497 5.675 57,172
Vehicle 6,147 4.170 1,748 41,329 35,941 9,852 09.187 3,912 103,099
Rent - 24.659 .. • 21,112 45.771 - 45.771

Space costs . 122.478 384,093 718.703 16,731 114 1.242.119 139,968 1,382,087
Direct client assistance 3,788,549 179.702 4.126.109 1Z971 24,399 3.782 8.135.512 . - 8.135.512
In-kind expenses - 85.414 - - - 65.414 - 65.414

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION 5,559.497 2.629.099 5,516,502 2,913,953 621,784 750.430 17.991265 1,948.672 19.939.937

(1.948.672)

S 6.161.658 $ 2.913.862 S 6.114.009 $ 3.229.5^ $ 689.131 $ 831.711 $ 19.939.937 S 19,939.937

Sm Independent Auditors' Report
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SOUTHWESTERM COMMUNITY SERVICgS. INC AND RELATgP CQMPAWIgS

CONSOUDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCnONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. gOM

REVENUES

Government contracts

Program service fee
Rental Income

Developer fee income
Support
Sponsorship
Interest Irwome

Forgiveness of itebt

Miscetteneous

In-kind contributions

Total revenues

EXPENSES

Poyroll
Payroll taxes
Employ benefits
ReUroment

Advertising
Bank Charges
Bad debt

Computer cost
Contractual

Depreciation
Dues/registration
Oupficatlng
Insurance

Interest

Meeting and conference
MlsceOaneous expense
Miscellaneous taxes

Equipment purchases
Office expcrtse
Postage
Professional

Staff development and iralnirtg
SubscripUons
Telephone
Travel

Vehide

Rent

Space costs
Direct client esdstance
In-kind oxponsos

TOTAL FUNCTIONS. EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLtXtATION

Alocation of management and ger>ef8l expenses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Ediicetton Economic

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development other Total Management 2020

Proorams Nutrition Proorsms Services Services Proorems ProoTsm and Gerteral Total

$ 4.518.116 $ 3.020.857 $  1,759.258 S 21.581 S  797.710 S 33,809 S 10.151.333 S  468.388 S 10.619.721

832.454 - 66.804 985.951 3.496 707.147 2,595.852 9.964 2,605.816

. . 97.328 1.067,704 . - 1.165.032 - 1.165.032

. . . .  1.508 . . 1.508 - 1.508

81.387 38.421 219.105 - 114.117 114,844 565.674 27.736 593.610
. 6.609 . . . 19.737 26.546 - 26,546

12 17 1.382 2.559 35 11 4.016 5,208 9.224

• . 56.318 23.020 - - 79.336 • 79.338

2.680 3.361 21.160 77.326 19.460 124.187 23,926 148,113
, 167 55.3 . . .

. 167.553 - 167.553

S 5.434.831 $ 3.235.038 $ 2.221.355 2.179.649 $  934.818 875.548 14.681.239 S  535.222 15.416461

S  467,456 S 1.374,787 $  335.905 s 735.214 S  435.177 s 424,014 s 3,772.553 J  731.828 s 4.504.379

38.287 107.590 25.566 56.063 35.147 32,736 293.411 55.964 349.375

135.770 41Z407 121.495 271.770 65.002 193.929 1.221.273 45.011 1.266.284

29.265 71,941 19,791 56.108 21.016 13.973 214.094 64.115 276.209

728 3.084 63 2,632 3.999 2.100 12.626 591 13.217

4 . 17 4.117 54 4.192 7,456 11.648
. 45 105 . 240 4.000 4.240

. 28.124 5.538 8.120 15.541 . 57.323 166,243 223.566

ne.oss 18.532 13.624 27,752 2.719 74.250 912,982 41,190 964.172

. 27,389 108,291 366,399 - 10.913 612.972 150,280 663,252

. 977 . 495 468 - 1.940 9.720 11,660

. 7.460 . . . - 7,480 5,664 13,164

6.667 13,010 24.580 56,680 14,271 5.968 121,156 X.841 157,997
. 7.198 7.527 38,965 . - 51,710 114.881 166,591

457 1.042 262 4.913 1.118 2.029 9,821 13.679 23,700

3.543 1.597 60 44,189 4,722 163 54,274 18.105 7Z379

. , 61,942 . . 61,942 200 62,142

24.946 1.646 6.426 . 33,020 30 33,050

20.017 6.744 6.002 9,146 10.480 33 54.424 24,136 76,560

240 261 123 169 252 - 1,065 24.447 25.512

2.045 . 3.200 28.718 - 706 34.669 69.175 123.844
. 2,135 646 1.206 415 3.088 7,494 2.787 10.281

. . 95 . . 95 1,601 1.896

2,283 1,968 17.624 17,959 3.179 1.166 44,179 41,601 65.780

6.792 16,310 12.602 7.545 30.565 15 73,849 3,031 76,660

3.902 5,121 5.574 30.678 36.849 9.696 91.820 6.202 100,022
. 25,570 . . . . 25.570 - 25,570
. 174,312 352.469 563.375 2.699 69 1,112.944 100,446 1,213.390

3.637.530 208.759 999,499 12.920 33.124 418 4.892.250 4.692,250
167.553 . . 167.553 - 197.553

5.153.989 2.687,612 2.060,655 2.433.660 737.663 775.342 13,846.921 1.761.642 15.610,563

655.609 541.676 26Z124 309,572 93.834 98.627 1.761.642 (1.761.642)

S 5.809.598 S 3.029.468 S 2.322.779 S 2,743.232 $ 831.497 $ 673.969 $ 15.610.563 $_ $ 15.610.563

See Indepeftdent Auditors' Report
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SOUT><WESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDtTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTORffROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Department of Aarlcutturn

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for
Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

10.557

10.55®

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME

State of NH, Department of Health & Human Services

GRANTOR'S NUMBER

010-090-52600000-102-500734

Unknown

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

S  325,849

165,379

Food Distribution Cluster

Commodity Supplemental Food Program
Commodity Supplemental Food Program (Food Commodities)

10.565

10.565

State of NH. Department of Health & Human Services
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties

010-090-52600000-102-500734

Unknown

$ 2,400

202.800 205.200

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. Deoartment of Hniisina and Urban Develooment

Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVlD-19 Emergency Solutions Grant Program

$ 696.428

14.231

14.231

Slate of NH. DHHS, Bureau of Homeless & Housing
State of NH. DHHS, Bureau of Homeless & Housing

05-95-95-958310-717600000-102-50731

05-95-42-423010-79270000

S 142,269

86.100 S 220.369

Supportive Housing Program
Shelter Plus Care

Continuum of Care Program

14.235

14.238

14.267

State of NH, DHHS, Bureau of Homeless & Housing
Stale of NH, DHHS. Bureau of Homeless 8 Housing
State of NH, DHHS. Bureau of Homeless & Housing

05-95-95-958310-717600000-102-50731

05-95-95-958310-717600000-102-50731

05-95-95-958310-717600000-102-50731

116,879

309,035

371 328

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
- S 1,025,611

U.S. Deoartment of Lnt>or

WIOA Cluster

WlOA Adult Program

WIOA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants

17.258

17,278

Southern NH Services

Southern NH Services

Unknown

Unknown

% 35,453

11.255 s 46.700

Total U.S. DepartmentofLabor/WlOA Cluster s 46.708

U.S. Deoartment of Transoortallnn Federal Transit Admlnlstralinn (FTAi

Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 Slate of NH, Department of Transportation 04-96-96-964010-2916 $ 481,482

Transit Services Programs Cluster

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with DIsatxIities 20.513 Stale of NH, Department of Transportation 04-96-96-964010-2916 50.512

Total U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Transit Administration (FTA) $ 531.994

U.S. Deoartment of Treasury

Cororiavlrus ReRcf Fund

Coronavirus ReBef Fui^d

Coronavirus ReBef Furtd

Coronavirus ReBef Fund

21.019

21.019

21.019

21.019

State of NH, DHHS, Division of Economic & Housing
Stability
New Hampshire Housing
New Hampshire Housing
Monadnock Developmental Services, Inc.

SS-2021-8HS-03-HOUSI-04

Shelter Decompression

Shelter Decompression

Long Term Care Stabilization Program

S 2,210,738

127,814

51,625

58.050 s 1448.227

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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SOUTHWgSTERN COMMUNTTY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

' FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRAhfTOR/PROGRAM TTTLE

U.S. Department of Treasury tcontinued)

Emergency Rental Assistance Program

Total U.S. Department of Treasury

U.S. Small Business Administration

Disaster Assistance Loans

Total U.S. Small Business Adrrrintslration

U.S. Oepartment of Energy

Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons

Total U.S. Oepartment of Energy

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

Aging Cluster
Special Programs for (he Aging. Title ill. Part B.

Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers
Special Programs for the Agii>g. Ttle III. Part B,

Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers

TANF Cluster

Temporary Asastance for Needy Families

Low Income Home Energy AssistarKe (Fuel Assistance)
Low Income Home Energy Assistance (BVVP)

COVID-19 Low Income Home Energy Assistance

Community Services Btock Grant

COVlD-19 Community Services Block Grant

Community Services Block Grant - Discretionary

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

21.023 New Hampshire Housing

59.006 Direct Award

61.042 State of NH, Office of Energiy & Planning

93.044 Slate ofNH, OfTice of Energy & Planning

93.044 State ol NH, DHHS, Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services

93.558 Southern NH Services

93.568 State of NH, Office of Ertergy & Planning
93.568 Slate of NH. Office of Energy & Planning

Stale of NH, DHHS. Administration for Children &

93.568 Familes, Office of Comrhunity Services

93.569 Stale of NH. DHHS, Div. of Family Assistance

State of NH, DHHS, Division of Economic & Housing

93.569 Stat^Kty

93:570 StateofNH.DHHS, Div. of Family Assistance

EIDL #1272708008

01-02-024010-7706-074-600587

01-02-024010-7706-074-500587

05-95-48-481010-7872

Unknown

01-02-02-024010-77060000-500587

01-02-02•024010-77050000-500587

Grant#2001NHE5C3

500731

500731

4,867

37.929

4,163,409

158,784

40.746

367,841

234,686

1.184.928

3.633.155

150,000

150.000

257,105

267.105

42.796

138.773

4,362.919

602.727

22,652

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. tNC.

SCHEDULE OE EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM nTLE

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services feontinued)

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRAHTOR'S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDfTURE

Head Start Cluster

Head Start

COVlD-19Head Start

93.600

93.600

Direct Funding
Direct Funding

01CH01t494

01HE000388

S 2,401.431

131.202 S 2.532.633

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services $ 7,702.500

U.S. Deoartment of Homeland Seeuritv

Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 State of NH. DHHS. Office of Human Services Unknown $ 11.008

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security S 11.008

TOTAL s 14.054.$l}9

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

36



DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-O787EBB2ECC0

SOUTHWESTERN CQIVIMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED WAY 31. 2021

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2021. The
Information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31, 2021.
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WOLFEBORO • NORTH CONVCAi'

SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC.
SIKAIIIAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COIVIPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of .Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2021, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows, for the year theh ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have Issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern-Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does' not allow
management or employees, in the normal course ,of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a.
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is. a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective, of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

October 22, 2021

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May 31. 2021.
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responslbllttv
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal, programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial -audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s Compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestern Comrriunity Services, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. corriplied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2021.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

October 22,2021
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COIVIIViUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2021

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies were
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies, which would be required
to be reported In accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during
the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weakriesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were; U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, 93.568, Community Services Block Grant,
93.569, and Head Start, 93.600; and U.S. Department of Treasury: Coronavirus Relief
Fund, 21.019, and Emergency Rental Assistance Program, 21.023;

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SUMWIARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2021

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2020.
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Board of Directors - 2021 Composition

Cheshire County Sullivan County

Constituent

Sector

Private

Sector

Public

Sector

Ron Nason

SCS Tenant

Mary Lou Huffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food
Shelf

Alstead Friendly Meals

Brianna Trombi

Had Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

Anne Beattie

Newport Service Organization

Kevin Watterson, Chair

Clarke Companies (retired)
David Edkins

Town of Walpole

Dominic Perkins

Savings Bank of Walpole

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

Jay Kahn
State Senator, District 10

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager

Beth Fox

Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director

City of Keene

Open
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KAYLACHRISTENSON
January 2021

EXPERIENCE

OCTOBER 2018 - PRESENT

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COORDINATOR, SOUTHWESTERN
COMMUNTIY SERVICES

Working in collaboration with SHP Case Managers to ensure individuals
maintain their housing
Processing applications, intakes and exits for all supportive housing programs
Fostering and establishing relationships with both community partners and local
landlords

Forecasting program budgets to meet the needs of both our programs and
clients

Working directly with Program Director and 8HS staff to ensure program
compliance
Completing recertificalions for all of the supportive housing program residents
Collaborating with all Housing Stabilization staff to best meet the needs of the
clients

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING CASE MANAGER, SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY

SERVICES

'  Case management of clients throughout supportive housing programs
•  Processing applications, intakes and exits for all supportive housing programs

Fostering and establishing relationships with both community partners and local
landlords

'  Completing recertifications for all of the supportive housing program residents
Collaborating' with all Housing Stabilization staff to best meet the needs of the
clients

JULY 2018 - SEPTEMBER 2018

CARE COORDINATOR I, HEALTH CARE REHABILITATION SERVICES
•  Facilitated Family Time visits with children in DCF custody and their biological

parents, using the Family Time model
•  Provided coaching to parents in order to help them increase their parenting

skills and to Increase parental attunement
■  Working daily with at risk youth and their families
'  Established a working relationship with Vermont DCF social workers as well as

multiple community partners to ensure goals established for parents were being
met as well as coordinating for Family Time visits

>  Daily documentation of Family Time visits, noting vvhere coaching was -
•  needed/used as well as an overall report of each visit as well as any
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communications between myself, social workers, foster parents and brological
parents.

2014-2018

PRODUCTION REP I, C&S WHOLESALE GROCERS
'  Analyzed departmental documents for appropriate distribution and filing.
'  Responsible for accurately entering key field information for 5 000+ documents

per day.
Assist in training new hires and helping them reach their daily quotas.
Record and sort Incoming mail from warehouses all over the country.
Respond to document requests regarding location of specific PC numbers in a
timely fashion.
Daily use of Microsoft Office as well as Kofax.

EDUCATION

BACHELOR OF ARTS PSYCHOLOGY, SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
UNIVERSITY '

Graduation date January 2020
• GPA 3.78/4.0

•  Concentration in Child and Adolescent Development
•  National Society of Leadership and Success {Sigma Alpha Pi) 2018

H.S DIPLOMA, WORCESTER VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL HIGH SCHOOL
Graduated with honors. 2007.

SKILLS

Skilled problem solver • Exceptional communication skills
MS Windows proficient • Self-motivated

•  Conflict resolution
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Liza Regan

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Southwestern Community Ser\ices, Keene, NH; August 2017 - Present

Supportive Housing Program Case Manager/Faciiiiies Coordinator, Housing Stabilization Services
Responsibilities include: campus supervisor, case management, seek stable housing for clients, work with program vouchers,

build community partner connections, build landlord connections, act as landlord agent for SCS permanent housing projects,
properly maintenance including managing contract bids, estimates and supervise indoor and outdoor facilities work orders

Mount Royal Academy. Sunapee, NH; September 2016 - December 2017

Drama Director/Substitute Teacher;

Responsibilities included: directing student productions for the community, advertising, fundraising and budgeting, classroom
education, organizer and director at 2017 summer arts camp

Woodcrest Village Assisted Living, New London, NH; June 2017- August 20J7

Resident Aide

Responsibilities included: assisting with personal care of residents, evaluating emergency situations, supervision of building

during night shift, clear communication between residents, their families and staff, accurate medical reporting, written and
verbal, basic house-keeping and laundry

Woodlawn Care Center, Newport, NH;

June 2019 - Current

Sub-contracted painter

June 2016 ' June 2017

Residential Services Aide

Responsibilities included: laundry, housekeeping, music activities

January 2010 - September 2012

Licensed Nurse's assistant, activities assistant, kitchen aide

Self- Employment; Janua/y 2004 - December 20J 7

Home-study tutor, personal assistant, nanny, elderly homecare

SKILLS

• Self-Motivated • Computer Knowledge

• Clicnt-focuscd • Fundraising

• Maintaiance Coordination • Compassionate

• Excellent communication • Professional

• Public Relations • Leadership

• Time management skills • Creative

EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Bachelor of Arts

Liberal Arts, Magdalen College, Warner NH United States 2002

Education: Classical Study, Rhetoric, Logic, Music and Arts, Student Life Leadership, Paid Work Study, Choir Assistant

High School Diploma

Our Lady of Victory, Hamilton Ontario Canada 1998

PROJECTS: Maddie's Hands founded 2013: collecting and distributing hygiene products and home goods to local outreach
projects, organized and hosted an annual day of respite for NH special needs families for four years
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CRAIG A, HENDERSON

SUMMARY OFQUALIPICATIONS
•  ProficiCDt in; Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Internet, Outlook, Photoshop,
•  Ability to prioritize in o fast paced environment and to learn new tasks quickly and efFectlvely
•  Dedicated, reliable ond responsible
•  Extensive bockground in Social Ser^rlces, Property Monagement, Finance, and Customer Service

EDUCATION

•  B.A Psychology with a speciolizition in counseling May, 1999
B.S Business Mantgemeal

Kecoc State College
Keene, NH 03435

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Henderson &-Bosley Property Management 8/02-Prcseat
President Keene, NH

•  Adhering to NH State housing laws and government housing programs
•  Advertising and marketing of vacant apartments, Creating leases. Performing credit checks
•  Property inspections and maintenance- incliidlDg basic carpcntiy, landscaping etc.
•  Research and management of investment opportunities

Southwestern Communit)' Services 10/07-Present
Director of Housing Stabilization Services
•  Designs and implements systems to provide efficient operation of all Housing Stabilization

programs. . ' , • .
• Manages and leads assigned .staff to ensure SCS policies and procedures are followed In a manner

consistent with the organization's mission, values, and culture.
•  Participates in the hiring of new employees and oversees the orientation and training of all assigned

staff.

• Maintain compliance with State/Govemment/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Community Services 10/07-Prcscnt
Assistant Director of Housing Stabilization Services Keene, NH

• Monitor quality of services, operation of assigned programs, facilities, and staff.
•  Process and certify tenant/client applications for all Supportive Housing Programs; facilitate move-

in process; track and collect rents/subsidies utilizing Classic Real Estate Software; track and collect
all match documentation; recertify tenants when necessary and in a timely manner.

• Maintain compliance with State/Govemment/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Community Services 02/03-10/07
Long Term Transitional Housing Program Administrator Keene, NH

•  Responsibilities include: Assisting the homeless of Cheshire County with budgeting and referrals to
other needed services; Advocating on behalf of clients to create new networks and improve current
relationships; providing counsel through tougli transitions, as well as, creating and maintaining an
environment of success through programs such as Mediation Training, Consumer Credit
Counseling, Psychological Therapy, Parenting Classes, and First Time Homcbuyers programs.

•  Ba.sic maintenance of shelter properties and invenioiy control

•  Responsible to track data and create statistical reporU based on infomtation collected to assist in
budget allocations for Southwestern Community Scrv'iccs

Coldwell Banker / Tattcrsall 1/02-3/04

Real Estate Soles Associate Kcenc, NH

.• Assisting buyers and sellers of real estate through customer/client interaction.

•  Informing clients/customers of federal ond state regulations, financing options, and negotiating
•  Creating marketing plans and researching pricing through competitive market analysis
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visiOD Appraisal lecDnoiogy D/uz-i/iw
Data Collector ^ Ke«ne,NH

•  Assured accurate and*consistent real-estate asscssrnerits with the etrfpfiasls in field work
•• Position required strong attention to detail with the emphasis in property measurement and

appraisal as well as requiring strong customer skill by acting as a liaison be^vccn town assessors
office and the property owner

Monadnet 8/99-8/01

Customer Service Supen'isor Keene, IVH

•  Responsibilities include maintaining all major accounts and new account data; managing projects
and delegating responsibilities, A/R and A/P reconciliation, Collections of delinquent accounts.

•  Financial Analysis and Trend Monitoring, Billing Systems Analyst
•  Direct mediation and resolution of customer scrx'icc issues.

AWARDS RECEIVED

•  Dtita Mu Delta: NiUooal Duiiness Honor Society
•  Psi Chi: Notional Psychology Honor Society

CONTIMUING EDUCATION AND CERTIPICATIONS

04/18/3007 Certified Occupancy Specialist - National Center for Housing Management

09/23/2008 Successful completion of "Landlord and Tenant Law" seminar - Lorman Educatiooal Services

02/23/2016 HUD Certified Rousiog Qualily Standards Inspector

01/21/2016 Completed 8.S hours of Nonviolent Crisis )ntcr\'ention training

04/26/2013 Certification in Pair Housing Law ~ Granite State Managers Associotion

08/10/2016 Blood Borne Pathogen Training

08/24/2016 6 hours of comprehensive low income housing (ax credit training - Johnson Consulting Services, Inc
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Lori A. Hathawav

Keene, New Hanipshire 03431

Education

Keene State College BA in English May 2009 Keene, New Hampshire

Employment History

2011-Present SCS Data'Specialist/Admin Assistant Keene, New Hampshire

Maintenance of daily Data Entry for several sub-programs
❖ Compiling and analyzing Data Reports as requested
*1* Administration of Housing Security Guarantee Loan Program
<♦ Co-facilitation of Educational Workshops
*> Presentation of Train-the-Trainer Sessions at annual conference

2009-2011 SCS Administrative Assistant Keene, New Hampshire

❖ Research required to detemiine program eligibility
❖ Creation and maintenance of client files

❖ Scheduling of client audits
❖ Various administrative and support tasks

2000-2008 PEP-Direct Donor Scr\'ice Representative Wilton, New Hampshire

❖ Fulfillment of special donor requests for non-profit organization
♦t* Telephone interaction with donors

■ Maintenance of donor records
❖ Generation of letters addressing donor issues and complaints

1996-1998 Claire's Assistant Manager Nashua, New Hampshire

❖ Supervised staff
❖ Responsible for opening and closing store
<• Responsible for balancing registers and bank deposits
❖ Assisted customers with merchandise selection and purchases

Affiliation and Volunteer Experience

2009^Pres. MUW Pacesetter Committee Member'

Kappa Delta Phi NAS, Kappa Gamma Member

SCS

Keene State College
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Next Steps Program

Key Personnel

Nanu

Kayla Chrisienson

Vacant

Liza Regan

Craig Henderson

Lori Hathawav

Job Title Salary

Supportive Housing Program
Coordinator

Supportive Housing Case

Supportive Housing Case
Mgr

Director - HSS

Data Specialist/ Admin Asst

$35360

34320

35360

51043

31720

% Paid from

this Contract

25°/o

50

50

Amount Paid from
this Contract

$8840

7160

7680

2552

634
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JUN28'21 Pri 2i45RCUD

Lori A. ShlblBeRc

ComniuiOBer

Chriitinf L. Sastasirllo

Dircclor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmSION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREEt, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9474 1400452-3345 EiL 9474

Fti: 603-2714230 TOO Accns: 1400.735-2964 www.(lhbs.ah.gov

June 24. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
(VG#177511-R001), Keene, NH for the ongoing'provislon of Permanent Housing and Supportive
'Services to Individuals and families who are ex^riehcing homelessness through the Federal
Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price
limitation by $219,051 from $210,427 to $430,378 and extending the completion date from July
31, 2021 to July 31, 2022 effective August 1, 2021 upon Govemor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Govemor and Council on March 25, 2020, item #8
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on November 16. 2020, item
#18.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the followng account for State Fiscal Years 2022
and 2023, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

06-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $22,448 $0 $22,448

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $173,510 $0 $173,518

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $14,461 $0 $14,461

2022 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
TBD $0 $201,622 $201,622

2023 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
TBD $0 $18,329 $18,329

Total; $210,427 $219,951 $430,378

77te Deporlmtni of Health and Human Strvicet' Mission it to Join wmmuniliet and fomiiiet
in providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excetiency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabio Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION- "

Federal regulations require the Department to identify each vendor, by name, during the
annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process, prior to the grant awards
tielng issued. A competitive process occurs at the Federal level and the Department delivers the
funding to the Contractors through these agreements. Specifically, the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) reviews the applications and subsequently awards
funding based on pre-established criteria.

The purpose of this request Is to continue providing a Permanent Housing program that
delivers rental assistance, service access and supportive services to individuals and families who
are experiencing homelessness. The program facilitates the movement of individuals, youth,
and/or, families experiencing homelessness to permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

Approximatelytwelve(12) households will be served from August 1,2021 to July 31,2022..

Using the Housing First model, the vendor develops Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans and facilitates each participant's movement Into sustained permanent housing. Additionally,
vendors work to maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing
connections to community and mainstream senrices.

The Department will monitor contracted, services using the following tools:

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, Including various demographic information and
income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal., of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two <2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parlies and Govemor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) year of the one (1) year and eight (8) months available.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families, in
unsafe and deadly situations, without a safety net. Additionally, if data is not collected, as required
by the contract, the Department will be out of compliance ivilh federal regulations, which could
result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive
service programs.

. Area served: Cheshire and Sullivan Counties.

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN # NH0092L1T002005
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His Excellency, Governor Clvistopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event th^t the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Commis8ior>er
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, SCS Next.Steps Permanent Housing Program contract is by
and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Southwestern Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

-WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 25, 2020 (Item #8), as amended on November 18. 2020 (item #18) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and
in Consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2.. Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council: and •

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

July 31. 2022

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: ^ '
$430,378

3. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.'2., Paragraph 1.2.3., by adding Subparagraph 1.2.3.4, to read:

1.2.3.4. NHOD92L1T002005(SFY 2022; August 1.2021 - June 30, 2022)

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding.-Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.3., by adding Subparagraph 1.2.3.5. to read:

1.2.3.5. NH0092L1T002005 (SFY 2023; July 1, 2022 - July 31. 2022)

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding, Subsection' 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4.. to read:

1.2.4. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.4.1. April 1. 2020 - July 31. 2022, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-37,
General Provisions, Block I.8.. Price Limitation.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.5, to read:

1.2.5. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program:

Aprll1,2020-
June 30, 2020

July 1,2020-
June 30, 2021

July 1, 2021 •
July 31. 2021

August 1, 2021
•June 30,2022

July 1, 2022-
July 31,2022

1.2.5.1. Operations; ■  $13,670 $131,982 $10,999 $152,327 $13,848

1.2.5.2.
Supportive
Services:

$8,235 $37,509 , $3,126 $44,798 $4,072

1.2!5.3.
Administrative

Expenses:
$543 $4,027 $336 $4,497 $409

1.2.5.4. Total Amount: $22,448 $173,518 $14,461 $201,622 $18,329

1.2.5.5.
Vendor Match

(25%):
■ $5,747 . $44,387 $3,699 $51,530 $4,684

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A02

A-S-1.0

Soulhweslern-Communily Ser/ices, Inc.

Page 1 of 3

Contractor Initials.

Date

—o»

JAl

6/24/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective August 1. 2021, upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/25/2021

Date

bjr:'

Name"<^^^'^^'^'^a"""^ ei lo
Title: Associate commissioner

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

6/24/2021

Date

■OoeuSlgnad by;

NameHis^^anWrtg ■
Title: ceo

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A02 Southwestern Community Services, inc.

A-S-I.O Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OoeuSlonttf by:

6/28/2021

Date Name; Catherine P1nos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

SS-2020-BHS-D4-PERMA-15'A02 Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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UriA. SUblBcne

CotnmlsilBoer

Cbrtstlae L SasttBlclto
birccier

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiyiSIO/^ OF ECONOMiC A HOUSING STA BIUTY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CX)NCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-80O.852-3345 Eit. 9474

Fi*: 603-271-4230 TT)D A««i: 1-800-73S-2964 »»ww.dhhi.nh.gov

October 12. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with Southwestern Community
Services. Inc. (vendor code 177511-R001). Keene. NH for the ongoing provision of Permanent
Housing and Supportive Services to individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness
through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $120,640 from $89,787 to $210,427 and extending the
completion date froni March 31. 2021 to July 31. 2021 effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

#08.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 25. 2020. item

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget OfTice,
if needed and jusUfted.

05-96-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUfWAN SERVICES. HNS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title

Job

Numt>er

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $22,448 $0 $22,448

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc

TBD $67,339 $106,179 $173,518

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $14,461 $14,461

Total $89,787 $120,640 $210,427

Tht Deportmei^l of Htollh ond Human S<rui<€*'MUtion U to/oin eommunitit$and fomUUs
in providini opportunilU$ [at ci'»xca* to pcAi«w« htoUh and indtpendtnct.



DocuSign Envelope ID; Dp12AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECC0

OocoSlgn Envelope ID: C70Ce2BF-FA74-4BBC-8980-B4C9CEF289BE

His Excellency. Governor Chrtstopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Coupcll
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. The original
request was Sole Source because federal regulations required the Department to specify each
vendor*8 name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application
process, prior to the isrant award being Issued. Based on the application evaluation process, the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) directs the Department to provide
grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide Permanent Supportive Housing
Program that delivers rental and leasing assistance, service access and supportive services to
Individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness. The program facilitates the
movement of Individuals, youth, and/or families experiencing homelessness to permanent
housing and maximum self-sufficiency. Approximately thirteen (13) households will be served
from April 1. 2020 to July 31, 2021.

Using the Housing First model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis
Management plans, the vendor will facilitate the movement of each participant Into sustained
permanent housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services to
maximize each participant's ability to live more independently.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the follovring reports and
information;

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and. contracluai
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, Including various demographic information, as well as
income and expense reports, to Include malch dollars.

•  Data entry Into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which Is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

r

As referenced in Exhibit C-l, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2.,
Renewal., of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement, of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising Its
option to renew services for four (4) months of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving" vulnerable Individuals and

-famllies'in unsafe and potentially deadly situations.-Additionally.-if data is not eolleeled as-required-
by the contract, the Department will be In non-compliance with federal regulations, which could
result in a loss of federal funding for homeless and permanent housing supportive services.
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Hit Excellency. Governor Chmto^or T. Sununu
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Area served: Cheshire and Sullivan Counties.

Source of Funds; CFDA #14267, FAIN #NH0092L1T001904

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds virill not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shiblnetle
Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services Amendment fft to the
Continuum of Care, Next Steps Permanent Housing Program Contract

This I" Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Next Steps Permanent Housing Program Contrsct
(hereinafter referred to as -Amendment UV) is by and between the Slate of New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to es the "Slate" or "Department) and Southwestern •
Community Senrlces. inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Controctof). e nonprofit corporat.on with a place
of business.at 63 Community Way," P.O. Bo* 603, Koeno. NH 03431-0603.
WHEREAS pursuant to en agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 26 2020 (Item #8). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based Open the terms and
conditions apecmed in the Contract and In consideration of certain sums specified: and
WHEREAS pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-T, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2.. Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE. In cbrisideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and Ml forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

.July 31.2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$210,427.

3 Remove all references to 'Next Steps Permanent Housing Program' and replace with "SOS Next
Steps Perrhanent Housing Program'throughout the Agreement.

4 Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A • Amendment (#1,
Scope of Senric^. which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding. Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.3.. to read:
1.2.3. Grant Numbers

1.2.3.1. NH0092L1T001904 (SFY 2020; April 1. 2020- June 30. 2020).

1.2.3.2. NH0092L1T001904 (SFY 2021; July 1. 2020 - June 30. 2021)

1.2.3.3. NH0092L1T001904 (SFY 2022; July 1. 2021 - July 31.2021)

6. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Sedion 1. Permanent Hpusing
Program Funding. Subsection 1.2.. by adding Paragraph 1.2.4.. to read. i
1.2.4. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.4.2. Aprll1.2020-July31.2021.nottoexoeed:.$210,427

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section i. Permanent Housing
Program Funding. Subsection I.2.. by adding Paragraph 1.2.5. to read:

Otk)Souttiweslcm Community Services. Inc. AmendmeniOl Conirsclor - Ji^kQ
SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA-15-A01 P'ogo1of4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care. SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

1.2.5. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program:

1.2.5.1. Rental Assistance:

1.2.5.2. Leasing Assistance;

1.2.5.3. Operations: -
1.2.5.4. Supportive Services:

1.2.5.5.' Administrative Expenses:
1.2.5.6. Total Program Amount:
1.2.5.7. Vendor Match (25%):

Aprll1,2020 -
June 30. 2020

:  $0

$0

$13,670

$8,235

$543

July 1. 2020 -
June 30, 2021

$0

$0

$131,982

$37,509

$4027

July 1.2021 •
July 31,2021

$0

■  $0

$10,999'
$3,126

$336

$22,448
$5,747

$173,618

$44,387
$14,461
$1699

Southwestern Community Services. Ir>c. Amendment 01

SS.2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A01 Page2of4

Conlractor Initials

Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Oeparlment of Health and Human Services

October 5. 2020

Date Name; Christine Santaniello
Title: Director, DEHS

Southwestern Comrhunity Sen/ices. Inc.

jtu f In f k^^n/yu/^
Date 6

Tilli.. . .

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. . ^endmenl

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A01 Page 3 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

The preceding Amendnnent. having been reviesved by this .office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFiCE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

10/13/20' (^.oMlLfLUUL
Date Name:

Title* Ceiherine Pinos. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on:- (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Amendment

SS-2020-BHS-C>4.PERMA-15-A01 Page.4of4
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1. Provisions ADPllcable to All Services

1:1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access lb their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NHDHHS ■

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS), has the right to modify service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therev/ith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligalions of the State are
contingent upon.recelpt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant. The Stale, as
the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC, and/or, the recipient of the CoC funding,
has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence in the application process.
However, the Stale makes no representation that it will receive the. funds. In no event shall the
State be liable for costs incurred or payment of any services perforrned by the Contractor prior to
the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the CoC Grant.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Coriiptroller General of Ihe Unlted States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all l500ks. documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order I0 make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.
These rights'of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as the
records are retained.

1.6. - The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws.
and agrees to comply with the program narretives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the 2017 Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide sen/ices according to HUD regulations outlined In Public Law 102-
650 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other vwitten, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.8. All programs shall be licensed to provWe client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy. Including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
eritry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. The .Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may coriduct a periodic review of
performance or en Inspection of records."

Sou<hwMt«m ComniuAity S«ni<c«*. Inc. EiAlWlA-Am«nCment«l C«nnctor Inldii*

S&-2620-8H5-04-PEftMA^tS>AOt 1 of S Oat*
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment

1.10. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which Is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless Individuals and families to perrnanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency. •

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program comprised ,of thirteen (13)
housing units targeted to serve individuals, youth, and/or, families experiencing homelessness
with a focus on those stnjggling with chronic homelessness. substance abuse, developmental
disabilities, and, or. mental health issues by providing housing assistance and supportive services,
including but not limrted to: . .

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not Imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing.

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
Intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant In obtaining the
skills necessary to live In the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
prpgrani funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUO and BHS to determine Coritractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuurh of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC;

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each Individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as Identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3., Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51 (c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but Is not
limited to:

2.3. V.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the vic.tim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records;.or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

SogthwciKm Community $«n4o**. Inc. EttfaWlA-Amoftdmonlil Contrsctor InlUiH

SS-M20-8H5^-P€RMVl5Uk01 P*9«Joia 0«»
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New Hampshire Departmenl of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SOS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence.
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of, the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written

•  observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends- of the perpetrator of the violence. Including
emails, voicemails. text message's, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program. particlpant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2 3 1 4 2. Source'documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g.. employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the Income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of .income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-rlsk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document;-^

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence,
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program

■ participants that remain In the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and Including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and ■

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

, 2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Conlractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and^the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documcntalion that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. Tha Organizational conflict-oNlnleresl requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

Soulfrrt»l»mCOfnmunlt*S«iw»i.lrK. ErfUWt A-Amw«m»n}#l ' Conwcu.

SS-20?0'BHS-04-P£ftMA.1>^0» P»o«lot5 D***
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Continuum of Care. SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interesl requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b). .

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts reguirements in 24 CFR 578:95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, Implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Particioatlon requiremenis in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(9).

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b).

2.6.3. ■ Affirmativelv Furthering Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
•  other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program In accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c).

2;6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable.

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD.-

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2 7 ■ Confidentialitv. In addition to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for
HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and Implement written procedures to
ensure: . '

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
•for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential as
required by this Agreement and state and federal laws and regulations:

•  2.7.2. the address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be rnade public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by.
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Complellon Date and receipt of final payment by
the Cgntractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period In excess of.the
five (5) year period accordlng.to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reoortlno Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the follovying reports:

3;1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPRI: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Dale,
an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project In the manner
proposed.in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by th^State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and ^

Swtfr*«tefnCommunHySwvlc«l,lK. E»WWlA-Afr«n«)mMill Ccwvcwlnliili^ ^1 ' I
SS-2020.BHS-0*-PERMA-1$.AO» P«g#4olS 0«ta_—
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Exhibit A - Amendment 01

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The.Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS. including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings Hve (5)
working days in advance of each meeting!

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.
V

6. Performance Pleasures

•5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth In the HUD New Project
Application, 0SF-424: and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed In all applicable HUD
regulations Including, but not limited to, those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to ail performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS. or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Dellvefables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A.
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program as outlined In Section 2.2.
Exhibit A and as outlined in.other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homelessness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Padicipants experience increased connections to;

6.2.1.2.1. Mainstream benefit resources: employment and/or vocational rehab referrals;'

6.2.1.2.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access and referrals; and

6.2.1.2.3. Service Coordination Partners for educational, vocational, employment and health
needs.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely repoding as detailed in Section 3., Program
Repoding Requirements. Exhibit A.

SouUN«it«(T> Communtly Strvteat. he.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT street. CONCORD. NK 0330!
603-371.9474 I.800-8S2.3345 Eit 9474

F«i;603.27M230 TOOAcceu: 1-800.735-2964 %^.dhh».nh.gov

? /

March 6, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Chrlslopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

.State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Hunrian Services. Oivision of Economic and'Housing
Stability., to enter into .a sole source agreement with Southwestern Community Services. Inc.;'63
Community Way. P.O. Box 603. Keene. NH 03431-0603 (vendor code 177511- ROOI), to provide a
Permanent Housing Program to individuals experiencing homeiessness through ihe.Federal Continuum
of Care Program, in an amount not to exceed $89,707, effective Aprii 1, 2020 or upon Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through March 31. 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021. with authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitalion and encumbrances between stale fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05.95-42.423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUrvlAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING. SHELTER PROGRAfVI

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBO $22,448

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $67,339

Total $89,787

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because federal regulations require the Oepariment to identify
vendors with whom the Oepariment will contract during thie annual federal Continuum of Care Program
renewal application process prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The
application process and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start
date of a grant is based on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This
results in Continuum of Care Program grant start dales, and subsequent renewal approval requests,
occurring in various months throughout the year.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

The purpose of this request is to provide a Permanent Housing Program that delivers permanent
housing and supportive services, as well as associated adrhlnistratlv.e services, to Individuals facing
homelessness to increase the ability of participants to live more independently.

The vendor will provide permanent housing and supportive services targeted to-serve five (5)
households previously experiencing chronic homelessness. at any given time, from April 1, 2020 through
March 31. 2021.

The attached agreement represents one (1) of thirty (30) total agreements, all of which have
renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year. The thirty (30) agreements are with vendors who
are located .throughout the state to ensure statewide delivery of housing services through New
Hampshire's Continuum of Care Program.

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development established the Continuum of Care
concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems of housing instability and
homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves
three main purposes;

(t) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness In the community.

(2) A process to engage broad*based. community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

(3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for individuals
and families who face homelessness.

.  The Department ensures contraci compliance and vendor performance in the'following ways:

(1) Annual compliance reviews are performed and include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

(2) Statistical reports are submitted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis which Include various
demographic information and Income and expense reports, including match dollars.

(3) The vendor Is required to maintain timely and accurate data entry In the New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes
and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parlies have the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize (his request. Permanent Housing and
supportive services for homeless individuals may not be available in their communities, and there may
be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region's local welfare authorities. LacK of services
may also cause Individuals to become homeless.

Area served: Cheshire County

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Office of Community Planning and Development. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267. Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # TBD.



DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECC0

. DocuSign Envelope 10: C70CE2BP-FA74'4BBC-e98(VB4C9CEF289BE

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinetie
Commissioner •

The Ocportment o/Heohh ond Hunyon Seruicci' Mission it £0/0i« CO/)i/»iu»ti{i<» o/irf /oftu/iO
ill providing opportunilies (or dliient to ocftieve health ond indepcndenee.
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Su^jcei: M.v* Homing FKMA'I »;yiHii^micn pn.nre. rh'I'Yl'^lln'itiiiiiiiw ■'■ ■■■ ■ -—

F6RM number P-37 lve«l'oo.WlS)
—

Hotiw TSu-8*r«mcnl and All of i'lsaiUchmtnij Jhall b«omc pubJicupori sub^mii^lpntxecXcJCouncilforoppiortl. Any InfomiiiiQnibai ii phvic..confid^^^^^^^
be clorty ideni'iricd lo ih€ 6£cncy and agreed lo in ttTinog poor ib.signmg ihc cgmract.

ACREF.ME.NT
TliC SiaiC ofKcw Munpjhin: and ihe Conv^ hereby mvionlly agree v follow

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. ibtNTia'lGATlON,
I. r^SlSie Agency Narhc
WH DepaiifTicni.of Heaith ftnd Hwm^ Savlcep

1.2 Slaw AjjciKy Adtfrtvj
129 PIcuam Sircei
Concord.-NM 0330I*3I5?

1.3 Conwtfor Name _
Southv^esicm Commiihiiy Servicci. Inc.

,5 Contracinr Phone
Number

603)352-7il2

l.t Price Ltmiifti«on
1.6 Aceounl Number

S89.7S7March 31.702!

t;4 Contractor Address.
6) Community Way
P.O. 6o.i M3
Kecnc^NH 6).IJ1^60)
1.7 Completion Oaic

0S-9'W2^230'"iO^?9?7
102.500731

.9 Conifociing OfTiccr for State Ape'ncy
NotJufi b. Whrtc. Diriicior

1. 10 Siaic Agcncy Telephone Number
603-271-9631

-M-

r Sigrialyrel.M C

Cviv>v/»

1.12 Namc.ond Title of Conuacior Sicjxaiory

^GKinAVQWif^.CEQ
1.13 AcfitK)*Hed8<mem; Stale off . County of

nn -IrVi^rKS' -aiao -l^rorc the undersi'tned omccr, pcrwiudly opptared.ihc pcrspn identified in bind: 1.12, or rtniroaonlyDmvir^.?^«on «^osc nimc is signed in bl<«.l: ' • ■ «nd .cWnciMedged that s/hc c.vcculrd ih.j.documcni tn thccapac.t)proven tooetne penwn
indicated in block 1.12.

Oh PcftCof thefN UillCCi:i3.l Signa urt

iSodl

oitrwPdoea

\  \y> -NanK andXiiU of Notary or Joaiicc of ihe. Peacy.
-JoP

I  — ^ I l.ts NaineTlnd Title ofSiMC Agency Signatory ^

) 1C tiDshn-f S u.
gj- Oirectpr, On:

I -17 Approval by the Anorncy ̂ ^eral^Form. S.ubsioncc nnd F,xeci.t .pn) (i/np^'cob/fj

•).IS App'^Y^ b^\!^cOovLVn9foftap.i:e<uit^^^^ f'/opplicubjc)
On:By:

Page I "Ol" 4
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■2. t^JPLOYMEfSTOFCOf'n^CtOR/SERVICESTO
Ot PERFbRMEO. ITheJSifttc of Ncw KUnipah'^. wciftfi
Ihreugh ihc Qgency identified in bjoek I.I C-Suie"^. enfO^Ct
cofWor. idcnlincd io block ri T.OxvUictor'O'to perform,
ondlhc C«ntrociw'»h«lipcfronn,ihc wort: ofjfllebrgoods.of
bqlV. idcitificd' vii more.^i^cwl^y de«nbcd in.ihc atuvl»cd
EXHIBIT A vvhlch is Inwfpdrtted hdrtinby jtrercnec
(~ServJc'«">.

3. tFKECTlS'E DATE/C.OMPI'ETION OP SERVICES.
3.l,•N0l^VilhJlkndinJ.4ny Agrccwnl in ihe
wniwy. pnd iubjirfi to the opprovat of ihc l^vernof and
ilvKuiive Council of ihe Stoic of Ncw.Himpihi'ft. if
■pplicAblc. this Agreement, and wi obligBtionsnfiKe'panics

.bcrcuadcr. ihajj ̂ me effective on the date the C^vcrnor
and E.xeculive Council approve this Agreement as indicaicd In
block r.ti. unless no such flppro%*el is-reguirtd. inxvhieh cosc
Uk Ajfttmem shall becdrhc eifTeciivc oh ihe daic'thc
Agrccmcni ii by the State Agency as ^wa in block
1.14 ("Effective bale")..
)!2 If the Conlmcior commences the Scrxiccs p'fiorto the
Effi-ciivx pale. p1l ^icci pcKorined by the Contracior prior
•to the Effeeiiye pate.ihall .bc perrorliKy in the sok risk of the
Cortiroctv. luv) in ihe 'evenl that ihis Aghccmch(dpie.s rini •
become effective, ihe State shall hovx no liability to jhe
Contraaof. including without limilotioa-any obligation lo pay
the Cnrirocinr for nny costs inciirred or Ser\'i«» performed.
Cootntcior must complete oil Services by'ihe Complcnon Date
specified in b.lock 1.7.

4. cciisbmoNALS'ATimE of ACR»:;FMf;N'f.
Notwithstanding .any provision of this Agrec«.ner»i I.e.lhc
vohutry; oil obl.'BoJ'nn* of the 'siaiif hcrtiinde.', ihcludiitg.
«ntbd«t jlrniiation. ihc coritinuance of payihchis. hcrvur^Cr, oa-
contingent uj^n the dvallnbiliiy and co.htihu^ appropHailon
of funds, nnd in oo evcrti sholl the Stoic be..li8ble. for any
payments hereundcr in cvccis of .*uch o\"oilable tpproprinied
funds. In Ihc.cveni ofa reduction or lennlnaiion of

• appf^fiflicd funds, the State shall have the right in withhold
phymeni until juch'ftinds become ovoiiablc. if ever, and .thai!
havc thc right lb. leoninaie this Agrtctitcni inui»cdi;iicl> 'upno
giving the Cofi.w^tor notice of Such tcfihihojion. Thd .Sintc
(hall npi bf rtguiretj td.tnifv'fvr fundi frptt) any btlicr.accoutti
io ilic.Ac?oom identified ir> block 1.6 in the c\-p'ni funds in tti.ai
Account ore reduced or unavailable.

5..CONTRACTPHj"C;t/PKiCtLiMrTATION/
PAYMENT.
5.1 The contToci price. mcthod of payment, and tcm.* ol

.•payment ore identified and more panitolar.ly descnbcd in
^XHIBlt 6 which is iitcorpo,ruled herein by reference.

.'5.2 The payrpchtby the State o/ the conintcTpflceishnll be the.
*bnly ond ihv pjmplvle.rcimbunerricijt to.lhc .C..dnirottOf for oil
ex'pcnso, o.f wh'atoxr lialurc incurred by.pcrfonhaiVcehertpyiondsrioltbe^thton^^^ .
;c<jih^asitfctn !0 the Contractor for .thcS^Hccs.'rhe_Stai«

■ "shall have ^liabilhytoW donirocipr other than thc.Wntruct

•53 The State reserves the right to offsei from any amounts
■ oihenvix paynble to the Contrtctor under this Agreemertt

those, liquidoicd omounu required or pennittrd b'y.N.H: RSA
10:7 Ih/bugit R5A l6;7.<or ony other provision-of low. .
5.4 Nonvithitanding nny.provlsion in this Agr«rn<ftl to the
conirary. and rtuiwithstanding unc.xpcctcd circumstances, lo
no c\xni shall the total of oil payments oulhofired, or octuall)'
riiade heitunder, e.ececd the Fricc' bimiioiioo set forth in bloeU
I.S.

6 COM pliance bv co.ntract.or wi.th laws
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPOkTUNITV.
6.'t In eonnecil.on with the performance of iJ>e Services, Ihe
Coninteior jhail comply with oil iiwutcs. lo^vj. regulations.
ar>d.orders of federal. Stole, county or municipal authorilics
which impose any obligaiion or duty upon ihe Contractor.

.  including, but not limited in. civil rights and equal opportunity
Ib.ws. This may include the requirement to utilize ouxiliary
aids and serrices.ib ensure that penoni wiih cpounumcaiioo
disabilities, including vision, bcanng and sp«ch. con
rommunicalc with, receive infomulion frdnv-and convey
informaildn to the Contractor, .jn addition, the Coniroc.ior.
shall comply with ill applicable cppyrighi'.la*'^.
6.2 LXiring'the tcmi of this Ag^^mCot, the Cbnipjctorshall
not discnrhinatc ogain.d cmplnycej or applicants for
employment because of race, color, rwliglon. creed, ngc. ic.x,
handicap, se.vual oricnblion. or rulional origin and will take
ufTiiroaiivc action to prevent such discniiiination. .
6J ifthis Agreement it funded tn.tmy pon by ncnlvs of the
llnite^d Si^es. iltc Conimbior shall comply with oil the
ppsisioru of E-^wutiw Ordcr.No. 1 iTACCF.qttal
liiniplpymcnt Opportunity" !, ns supplcmcnud by the
fYgulaiioh.tofihc United Suties Departiiicnt of Labor (41
C.F.R;P3fl '60)! and wiO« dny rulci, ryggluiions and guidclinw
■a.t the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue id
implement these regulations. The Cohiiocior-fiiriher .agrets 10
pcntiil the State or United States access to any of the
Conlrtclor's books, records and accounts fpr the purpose of

■ a.icertaiftingcoinpliancc with all ajIcs. rtgulaliorts andordcn.
and the covenants, icnib und cundiiions of this AgrccmcnL

7.PERS0NNKI. '
7.1 Tl)cCon1/ucior shall ot'h.t r>\yn c.xpertse prpyide oil
pcrMiincl ncccwo.ry to perfonn the Services. The Conuactor
warrants .thai all personnel engagod.in.iht: ScrN-iccs shall he
qualified lo perfonn thc ScA'iccs, ond shall be profwriy
licensed and otherwise authorized 10 do SO under all applicable
lavvs.

■ 7.2 Unless othcrwijc auihortzed in writing, durirtg the term ttf
•tliis Agrconicni, and for o pcripd of.si.v (f») nytfttllS after the
.'Complclion Date in block I !-7.'ihe Con'troctpr shall rtoi hlft,
nndsJi."»H.nn.i pennit nny. subcdiiimctor or otliyr person, firm or
cdrpdrhji.oh with whom it is.enjaicil in a combincd.cnbn (o
"picrronii the Services lb hirc..any person who is a State
eo}plo)V:c.6r official, who Is malcrially iiivplyed in the'
pf.ocorcnieni.'tdminisirnlio.npr^rforniftncc ofihis

price.
Pegc 2 of4

ContrQCtor Inilials
Dote
n

2tvn
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•AgrctmcftL.Thii provisleo shali tun-ivC; icnnmailon of ihw
A^«fT>enL -
7.3 'ConirBaih6plTic;cr.«pecifi«l in block 15, Of hiJ or
her ̂ ceiMr,"shall be',ihc'^ic'iA:pr«.cnta'i*e- 'Q fl* cvo'
•of any ;dijpu»e eqric,emja8.ihc intc^'aiallon of ihii Agrwmeni.
Ihe.^ntrtctinj Qrricd''j llccijllio sKaH .be-final for ihe-Sute.

<B. f.VKwr OF pCfAUl,T/RCM EdIES.
,t;'l Any 0*^C or more of (he follow-ing or omiss^Ksof'he
Con(hic|or shall cohjiituic on eveni of (defauli hmundc
("KwenrSf fJefo'lilc''):
• t.l'.i f«ilur.o 10 piTfonh iKc Sciviees saiiifactonly or on
•schedule;

. 8.1.2 failure (0 submit any rtpcil required hcrcunder;- and/or
1.1J failure to perform dny other covenoni. term Or condiiiott
of tbii Agreemeni:
1.2 Upon the epeCvr^P.cC/Pf any Event of Ocfsu'lL (he Siaie <
.rh'ny lake any one], or moiv.-or all. of'the .ft)llr»\Ving nctioni;

(he Conir^tbr a'ivriRcn'nojice Specifying ilW Evuni
of Ocfauli and r^uiring «i ip ̂  remedied \vilhih, in the
pbsc«Kc;dfp grater or lejKr 'spcc»n.co|ion"pf lime',"(htrty (30)
•doji from thc tjafe'of'ihe'^ijee; ajid if the Event pf.C^fauli is

■ not limely rvmeiJicd. i^inalc ihii'AgfeenKni.'efTwtive'two'
(2-j,day^ oner giving (he Contrwior r>6ijce ofterminaiion;
•8:2.2 giW.ihe ContracJora wriiicn notice spcei'fying Ihe Event
of Default and suspending oH payrncnts to be node' under (his
AgrtfuMm.and o^ehng lhai Ihe po'nion.of the .cuniraet price
•>vhkh" uduld otheAvise' pc^c (6 thc.Cohirac(nr during ilie
'perioil, froui (he da;'cbf>Mh ndticc,un(ll such lime as tlk btiie
'deiehnbrs'that ihii^.ftphir^ic'l.dr has cured the Evxhi orDclayli
'sh&ll ricvCr be pa'id i.o (he (^nimio'r,
Sri J tet bfl'a^ihsi ahy'pihcr obiig'oliohs'thc Scnic may p«t in

' thc'Cnnimctor any da'ht'ijes ihc Siaic lufTc'n'by reason of any
Event, of tkfault; on^or
'8.2.4 (real ih< Agreement as bruchcd and pursue any of its
rcmcilics el Or in cpuit>'. or both.

9. bATA/A'C<:tSifC0NFlbEhfTlAl,I-n7.
PRF-SEKVAfiON!
fO.I As u.ied livil»l$.AiVccrrtcnl,'ihc \vor^ fdato""shall inehn ail
irirOrmaiidn'ertd jhihgs dcvelo'^ or'ob|QirK'd,.iJunn'g the
pcrfoitoncc pf, or ntpuir^d or.Vicv'cldpcd Ky rcasoh pf, (hb
Agmemeni^ including, but noi limlied ro^ alt iiuilivs, repoh.<.
filcV,-formulae. suAtys, maps; charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rtproduclions, dreu-ings.-onalyses.
gmphic reprtsentalions", computer progroms,'compuier
priniouls. noics, letters, memoranda, papoa, and documents,
all nnithcd or un'nnishcd. ̂
"9.2 All data and.eny property .which ha5%heen received from
(fie'Slate or purc^as^ mi'h hjnds provided for'|ho'i purpose
ohder'^is Agrccmchl, j.lioli he iSje property o.f.ihc Stale, .and
shalj'W^ciiirhcd {o"tKe$i'aic yppVdvmshd6r'yj»n
ttminaoon of ihis Agrc^eni'fd; any redjon..
•9.3 Cpfiftdeniialliy of duia"ishaH ̂ 'goyeme'd by N.M. RSA
'^"ppter 91 'A.9^Pl.^cr.existing |a\y. .Dis'cJo'sufO'pf.'da'i'a.
rcr^Qlrcs prior Vvri(ie'n (('pprc^l of.lhe.St'Bie.

Pngc

10. TERMINATION. In lhc evetit ofan arly Urmida'ilo'nof-
this Agreement for anyreospn oiherihan thceothpidionorihc
Sc^icu, ihc Contractor fhill deliver (o the Cortlirtciing'
'officer, noiilaier than fiflccn (15) days after .the dasc of
termination, a' rtpon ("Termination Reporf) descHblog in,
detail bil Servloes performed, and ihc contract priu tamed, to
and including ihe dale of lerrhlnauoh. The forrrv subjoci
maaer.-conieni, and.numbcr of copica of the Tcrrpinalion
Rcpb/i (lull be idcntiqil to (hose of any 'i'inal Report
deicr^beti in.the'afrached CXIfrBit A.

I». C(.)/yT(^CTOIt'S.RI;.I.ATI0N 1p TMF.ff' ATE. In
the' pe^o,rmancc of thjs Agre'eineni the Cpniia'fiur is in'all
rcspccd an ihdepervdetu conirocior.-a^'is'nciih^im'bgenj rior'
an cmployvx of the State. Neither "ihe Oontrscior nor any pf iU
ofticers. employees, agents or mcmbcn.shall have euthnriry en'
•bind'thc State or reeci\x ajty beoefia, \vortcrs'-ccmpei\sation.
or oi.her emoluments provided by.lhc'Siaie to ii» employees. •

12. A^lCNMtNf/OetECATION'/SUBCOiVfTWCTS.
Thc'Cpninictpr slutll noi" assign, n'r 'oilkrWise tnt.i^srer an"y
inicr^S( in this Agrccrhc'nl wilh'd.ut the' prior written ndliM.aiitl
cbnjt'n( of(he. Stale. Nnhe' of tfk Seryicei" shall be,,
sybco'ntrac'ibd by ihe'Cp'nt^tor '«vlihoui the prior ̂ v^i(lcn'
ru>iice an'd consent bf (lie State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contmeior shall defend,
indemnify.aod bold bkrmlcss Ok Stsic. its officers^ .
eitipioyces.-from and ogainn any and.all losses sufTer^ by the
Staic.' iuoMce.rs and empioyees.'aiiid any end'oil claims,
liahilitici'or penalties BSU'rird ngain'ti the Srate,"i.ls,6fncet^
and cniployec.s. by 'or'unbchatfofqny.-person.'bn account of.
based or rrsulting from, nri.ting pui'of (or U-txich "mpy be-
cinimcd io arise'out ol) the acis or fissions'of the'
Contractor. Noiwiths^dcng the fva'gvlng. n'bihing herein
cohiainc'd sKtli be deemed to consiituic a waiver qf ihe
sovereign immuniiy of ihc Siaie, nhich immunity Is hereby
reserved to the 'Si.nie. Tliis covv'noni in paro^ph 13 shall
survive ihc. termination of this Agreemcm.

I4.IN"$URANCt
U.I 'nWCoctirnctor.sha.il. Qi'ili,sole'expense, obioin
niQiiiiaiii iii fonix, and shall rcquiA any t'ulKOrttracior.hf
assignee iqobtain end maintain in'fp'r;cf,.''the fqllowng'
iiuun'iiicc:

1-1.1.1 Ci^prcSensive general litibility insurance ogajns'i.oll -
claims of bodily injuryfdcalh or'property damage, in omounij'
of nut less than $1,000,OOOperoceurrchcc jiind $2.(f00.000
aggregate: and ' . ' "
.14.-12 special cauM of loss covcr^e fon'n covering all
.properly subject lo tubpamgroph''.9.2 herein, in nn a'lrHi'uni noi
Id's ih3rt 8£rt4"ofihc whole rcptacemcni value of ibc property.-
M2*ThApa.licic3.dcsc'nbed in SubparagrBph If.hhcrci'nihali
be on'policy forms and i.tido'rscni(nii approv^.fqr use in ihu
Stai'e of New llkntpshirc'by the N.H.'Depa'ftnKiirbf
Irttorthce", and issued by i.njufe.rj licensed irt ihc Slate qf-V.'®"' •
Hampshire.

"  "-C
(i'oiUrjaor-lnlliai.c. • .y/ M
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<4.3 T>>c<tonirx(or rumishto the ContQCiii^pniccr
id<fitif»W.iA btock'i!^5.of h'lwh*' juccewf. i\c<nir»catc(*)

.dfiriiumce 'foV-oll twinivix retjuire^ undctlhi} Atrecmem.
ContWSor ihid' <9 ihe toftirtciinjfOfTiccf
iacnnfieii In Of *<«> w wcc€t«>ryc<hiricau<») of
«fuuiv»«!fef of lnju««c>c'quif<d (o^cf ihl$
AifttoKM noiaiCTih^Ln.lhffW(30)(Jayspri^<6ih.ccxpirelion
(la'eofbch.ofpcinWfflncc i»licic$. The<trtlficAfe(t)of
Insurance e^ eoy frntvvalj.ihettof ahnjl bc'tiltchcd end ore

-<nco»poffhi«?d.^cA:in by iitTeraoc.e. lio^ certlficeicts) Of
i

iih

A

nsurancV thali condin-a clause rctiuinng lhc^insurer io'
provide (he Corttraclinjpfncrr'idcriiiDed in block 1.9, yr hi.s
or'hei tucccuor. "no i«* ihan ihirty (30>.dayj'prior .>'mtten
•i«lice of cinccltalien or ottdiOciiion of ihc.polity)'-

iy. WORKED' Gp.\irF.NRAt(0/4.
(.'(.'I By sifning iKij ay.eenieni, (he Contractor agrees
ceirtlfiw ,iw)d. wa^is thai ihc Conlrectoi i> In comp|tanix- w'l
•'or"exempt from, the rKjoiti'mcnraof K'.H.jkSA chapter 211 •<
' ('tyoftrri' Cofl^Awn/on'y.
lyi To the c.vterit thc.Cofllriicipf is subject to thc
requircinenijdf N.H. RSA chapter 281 - A. Contractor shall !
maintain', and rtquire a/))' luWqnfractor or UMigncc.io secure
•ond ntiintain.'poynicnl of Woricra' fl'dnipensation in
connection wilt activities tvhtch the pcrson'propose.vin
.undertake pursuant to this AgrecntcnL Conirncior sb.il|
fuht'tsh the Contraciing OrTiccr identified in block 1.9, or his
c'f her successor^ preoTbf Workers" Contpcnsation in the
rhinncr described In N.H. WA chap'icr'2ll -A ond any
applicable rcnewtr(s) thereof, which shall be aitpchcd and are
incprpbrtncd herein by rcfereocc. lite Suii.c shall not he
rv'sponjibic for paymenfof any Workers' Compcrtjation
premiums or Tor arty Other ,clnim'or hencffi for.Goninictor, or
•any luheoniroctor or em'plo>*c of Contractor, '^-hich rhijthi
n'rise under applicable State of KVw HampsKira Workers'
.'Compensation law in conneciton with the pcrformancc of the
Sciviccs under ihi's ABreemeni.

16. NVAh'BH Of BRCACIi.. No foilurc hy thc Staic to
enforce any prb'visions hereof aAcr any E^vrit yfOvfpuli shall
.be dcitmcd a witivcr ̂ 'fiu righu with le^rd to thai Event of
Oefnuli/dr pny Subsequent "Event of Dcfauli. No.cxprtss
foiliirc to ̂ nforcc any i;vc'ni pfixrauli shall be deemed u
^•veroifthe right of the State (o enlprcc each and nil of the
provisiorts hereof upon.ony fuAhc'r or other Event of Ocfuuli
on the port of the Cdnimclor!

■|1 NOTICE.' Any oolice by a parsy.hcrcto 16 the Other party
ahai.l be dceitted to hosx been duly delit'cred or given at the
"linw'oTm'ailiifg by certifietS mail, pottage prep.tid, in « United
Suict P6st Orn,ce.pddrcMe(l Ip pnAies at the nd.dresses
given in bf«k*.l-?'an^ .r.4,-bc/'vin.
16. AhIfNI.)hll:jyT.'This.A8rctnjcni mny bc urnendc'd,
wpiVed or "dit'eKaf^cd oniy hy'tth insioiirheot'ln wriling signed
bv ibe parlies hereto bi^ o'niy.ancr appnas-al of^h
o'mcndmciii, w-alvcror.ditcha/gc by Ut'c Oov'pmoCon'd
Evecctivc Courtcil of the SiHie of New Hampshire unless no

such approvnl is reqiilrcd ut^cr (he cireumstprKcs purs'uant to
State low, rule or policy.

19: CONjri RUCTlOiNOf ACRttMfcfa AhlDTERMS.
This Agrtemeni shall be consirocd m aecordanee with the
Ibv»s of ihe State of New Hampshire, and is birring upon and
imires to ihc boKfii of the panics tind (heir respective
fueeessors and nsslgns. The, wording used in this Agrtemeni
is the wordiog chasers by the 'p^tes to c.tpn^ their mutual
imcni. ond no ruleofcohstnrciipn shall be applied (tga.ins'i or
in favor of bny party.

20. THIRD Parties, •fhe'parties hereto dp nw' intend to
benclii. any third partiet &i>d this Agrceitic'nt shall not be

, 'coruirucd in confer any such bcncHi.

21. HEADINGS. The Itcadingilhroughout (he AgreenKnl
arc for reference purposes only, artd (he wprdSMntaincd
therein shall in no way be hc.ld to expbir). modify, arrrplify or
aid in the interprctstion. construction or mconing of the
provisions of this Agrremcnl

22. SPECIAL PflOVlSlOiNS- Additional provisions ^
fOtih.ln ihc btiaclKd r.Xl jiOrrCarcincorponitccI hertmby
rrfcrtnce.

23. SEVtRA0IL1T>'.' In the event ony ofthu provi.sioris of
this Agreement ore held by u court of epmpeient jurisdiction to
be conirruy to uny ftatc or fcdcrpl law. ilic remathing
provisioru of this Agreement wilkrcntain io full force and
effect. ,
24. ENTIRE ACREEMF.NTi This Agrecmrnt, which may
be ixecu.ictl in o number of cpunj.^.rts. mh of \i4tich "jliall
be dccm^ on original, cortstiiuics the ctMirc Agrcenteni bn'd
undemanding beiw'een ihc'psr'iics.'and .^upcn'^cs sll prior
Agreemenii ond understandings relating hC{eio.

PBilC'd of 4
Contrdci()i; ititiiols-

Onic^



DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C^787EBB2ECC0

OocuSign Envelope 10: C70CE2BF.FA74-4BBC-8980-B4C9CEF289BE

Now HampshIr|B pepartmjBnt.bf Hufrtan,5V.rvjcos
•CpTitlrtugin of Care,-N^ Program

'.ExhibilA

SCOPE OF SEF^VlCE^

Rerrnaintfrit Housing Pfpgram

•1. Provisions •ADOlicable'to All Services

i .1 ■THie'.'3pPt''Acior s^ail syljmij'a'detailed des^ Ihje language assistance Sefvicp? th?y;,W}ll
•^ovide'l.Vp^o/t's'jVylVh"^ Ehglishproficidnty tdensurd rneanihg'ful ac^S's.tdlPeirprogrpfns;
:'flnd/orsbrvTclesyi^in ien^ of iheconuecl effective date; submitted to:

■  'nhdhhS-
Bureau ot Hpusing Supports
ids Pleasant Street'

■eoricordyr^H
1.2. t^e■exte^l■fyture slale or federal l^lsialioo or cqurt brders.ma)^.

haVe'^n impact":6;n-'iKe ^ descflt>ed hefeiri/ lhe;^ Slate/tMrough the Bureju of Housing'
Sufipbfts fBHSj.'.ftas thbV'9t^' modjfy s?rvic©^pr1oriHas and'expendilute regulrc.rneritS-under
.this A^Vcement sb'as ip'achi^^^^^^

1.3. For'-.the purpfeseS:pf''lhls agrecmenl. the •i^partment has identified "the, C.'o.hlra'ctbr as. -a
•sub'fecijiicntiiiri.accordance'^^^ j'CFR iOO-300.

1.4. • ."Klolwiihstanding !lhe .cdniidentlality procedures established under 24 GFR 'STB.-iO^^b). US
pepaflmeni of .Housing ^and Urban Development (HlJp). .tlie HUD-Office of the Inspector
Qepera,l,;.an6 the -Cdmp.Uoller General of the Uriited S.l^les. or-any of ttiei/. authorized,
reprdSentate must hay.e.the rlghiof acce.s;st"p^ail book's. dbcuWents.'fcapers. or od)erV,e;cor!d.s
:df'the^(^n;ti;a^^^^ the .Cp'niinyum Of C^re .(CoG) 'granl.'in. order "to;:rnake
audtts; 'eil.rnipaii^ and' trSnscripis. 'These "rights Of access are riot lirnited tp l.hjB'
ri^ulredietehtion pen^^ long .asthe records ar'© fe.tained.

1..5. Thei'CbnfractorJsheil adheirc to" federal arid'sj^le financial! and cgnfidenllalrly" laws/a^
yvhh.lhc .program^Warrartyes. budget detail and rwrratlve^ and a'mendnjenis th^^^
in the applicableiljjbti.ii^ of .Funding Available JnOFA) Co'C Prbjedi Application ab'pibVed t?y HUO.

"i.e.- The CbrijracloVvShalVp services according to HUO fegylalibns-.oullined in Public Lav/102'
5^'and'24-CFR ^8 anci oiher-written, approprlato HUO policies and directives.

. 1.7. The,.Contractor .shaU e.nsure ai) programs-.ar.e licensed, lo provide client level dat'a'inlo tHe-New
'Harnpshire HgrnW^^s Management Information Sys.lcm jNH. HMI.S). Pf^rafrt|5 shall fpj.io.w NH
HMlS ̂ licy." inclyitng specific ihfprrnalidn r^ujr^ for data entry, accur.a.cy df.data.en(6f^/8nd.
•tiriie'rbgOired/foV dala entry. .The CbnlrqctorJihaj) tdmbly with Exhi.bil 1. '.Health' Insurance.
Pprta.bilily''ena Ac9^^^^^ A.cl^ysjnesiS AsSocialeAgreerheril and Ejmibii.k.-PHHS.^cyyiiy
f?tegV'rernent5.'which'are^ hefeib'an'd. incorpo.raled.by refe.rSripe herein.

•  1.8..- The; ppntratior shbli. r^ooperale furiy w'lth and. answer all questions related to this toritract;frp'm
•ireprcsentatives of ttie-St'aj^ br Federal agencies .-'v^o may conduct'periodic obse^atioh'lahd
review-bf-performarice.-activHjes and an msp.ection of-records and documents. •

i .9. 'The Contractor shai) support the prim.ary goal of ihjs pfogram. which is to facilitate the mpyerri.ent
•Of hombles's and''cbrorilcally homeless "ihd'ividuals- 'dnd families tg -perrhanent •hduslri^ ia/id^
;maxlm.um-selfrs^

"i- •gcoD© of Wo'f'k

=:All$syRr^remf.lh.,'a'ccb CoC IhldHrri r'uie.'24'.CF.R-57.8,-arid bs;erhc;hb
£eCOw»Mc/n c«mnur^ C«v/Kity Wiiali

'r>&h]

e^KfctiA

2tm^•£ \J
rvoc. t (/ s
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New Department of Hearth end Human Servicw
ConWnuum of iCarei. Next Steps Pcfmaneni Housing Pfogram

■  ExhIbrtA

'2 2 The'ContractOf shall provide a ̂ ^ermanenl Housing program that is .targeted-to serve five (5)
homcless^ridividuals and.twp ('2) "homeless.families. and which includes byt is nol.llmited to;

;2.2.t. Utiifzing the Housing First model, ensuring;
2.2.1.1. Barriers'.to .entering housing.are not imposed beyond those r^uir^ by

7e'got2i3tttrh"or7rtatdte: "a n d*

■2.2-'-1.2., Participalipn win only terminate lor me most.severe reasons, on.ce available.
■  ' (jpiions naye Wen exhausted to help a participant mainialft housing.

:22-2 Ocvaloping of-a siabiiizabon plan and crisis management pian-wiih the pariiclpant aiintake-and. at a mirtlmum. annually.. An or>goif>9 Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Servi'qes is reouirad. with the ulUm^te goal being assistance to the particlparil in obtaining
the skills necessary'ipirve in the community independently.

2.3. The'Cdnlraclof shall 'e'slablish and maintain standard operating procedures .to ensurc CoC
program funds'are used in eccordanoe with 24 CFR 578 and shall establish .and maintain

■  -sufficient records to enable HUt) and BHS to delermino Contractor requirernent compliance.
"Including:'

2.3;i. (Continuum of Care Re'cofds; The Conlraclor shall maintain the folldvring docurnentation
related.to establishing artd o^raiing a C6C:
2.3.1.1. of Hnmeless Slatus. The Contractor shall -maintain acc<;ptabie

evidence of hprheiess slatus in accoidance with 24 CFR 576..5(X>(b);"
;2'3 1.2. Rflcortis.of at-Risk of Homelessness Status. The Qonlra^clor shall maintain

records that-establish '.al risk of hgme'lesisness' slatus of each individual or
-larnlly who rwelves CoC homelessness "prevention assistance, as.identified in24CFfi^576.5pp(c);and

"2.3.1.3. f^^cords of Reasonable Belief of ImminenI Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall
■  "piaintain documenlatlon of each prograrn participant who moved to .a. differeni

Co'C due .to imrnineni" threat of further domestic vio'lervce..dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, 'as .defihcd In 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractdr "shall
retain dodumenta'libn that includes, but is not .limited to:
2.3i.i .3.1 The original incidence of domeslic violence, dating violence, -sexual

asssuii. or slaiking. only If the origin.al violcr>ce is not -.already
dp.cumenied In the program participant's case fil.e.. This may bp
writle'n ctSservalion o.f the housing or service provider: o.letter or'plhei'
documeni.aUph from" a vicllm service pfoy"»der. social worker, leg?!
as§lslance provider, pastoral counselor, menial healUi-provider, of
other prpleUlonal from whom" ".the victim, has soughi. a.Ssistance:
medical or denial record^ court records or law enforcernent records;
of wrlTleh certification by the program participant to whom the
violence.occurred or by the heaO of household; and-

2.-3 "1.3.2 Th'e reasonable bfeliel of ImrhinerSl threat ol furtKer-domdstic violence.
dating V»o'P"ce/6r sdxual assault or'stalking, whic.h wd.uid include-
threats from a thirdi-party'. su.ch .as a friend or farnily mc.njber of the
peitietralor of the violence. This may be written-observation by the
housing or service provider; a letter or .other',documen(^r> from a

CwwtJu IKC. W— -
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New Mampshire Oep^rtmcnt of HeaHh and Human Services
Continuum of Care. Next Steps Permanertt Housing F^rogram

Exhibit A

vtctim seivicc cj/ovkter. social worVer.. liegai assistance ̂ provider;;
pastoral counstrfix. mental health provider.- or olher prr^essipnai from
whocn the .viclim' has -sought assis.tani^; current, r^straihirig order:-
reccnl court order or other Oourt records; law enfortertier^.l report or
reciirdJ^cdm^nunlcaiion.fworbs frorn the pcr^iraior df-lhe vidl^riiy:
or family, mcrhbers or frterxJs of the perpetrator-of the- violence,
irtciudiog emails, voicernaiis. text rhes^ges. and sociai'm'edia po^l.'
oV 8. ̂ itten certrhniion 'by iho. {progmm participant to wbom th6
violence occurred 'or the head of household.

.2.3.1.4.. Records bl Ahriual Income'. For ea.ch pj-'ograrrt'partiCipanl who'ret^'rves housing
ds^.isldrtce-where r^nl or an occupancy cha^e is p.aid by the p/bgrerri'
participant,- th'e-Cpnlractor-ehall keep the fbitdwr^ dbcurrtentalibri-of'annual
income: .

2.3.1.,a.1..lncoiT>e .evalualion form spcdfiW by HUO and completed.by the
Cp'nlraclor;

2.3.1.4.2.-'$ource documenls, which may include the mps.t. recent .wagO'
slatemertt, uriemployrnent'wrhpensa'tion statement;: pubijc'bcrterits.
siatement. and bank statements,for ihe.asKts held by'the"(x6grem
participant end iricbme received before the-'da'ie of the'jevaluptlon; and.

2.3.'1.4.3. To the extent lhat-source documents.'are unobtainable, a. written
st^lernenl by a relevant third party, which may include art e.mpioyeY
or a 'government b^.herits-adminislr'plor,- or the written ce'rtifi.catipn by
the'Cdniracto'r's Irilake.Siaff.bf.the oral verincatio.ri by thOreleyanl^ird
party of Ihe'^mcom'e (he program participant recie'iydd pver-tke rriost
recenl'period; or •

2.X1:4.4. To the .extent that source-.documents and third-party verificatjon are'
unobtainable, -the wnhen ■.c^rtfAcaUon by the program 'participant of
Ih.e amp.unt ..of incorne that the program participani'is reasdnably.
expected to receive.over Ihc'three (3) month period fpllrtwirig the
evalualion.

2.3.1.5. Program Particioant Records. In addition 10 evidence of hometes?ness-8t.a.lus
or>ai-n.sk-pf-horhelessne^ status, as applicable,-the Contracipr-sha.it'ke'pp.
records' foVeach program participant Ihat.dobuhriGnt;

-.2.3.1.5.1. The. services-end assi.stance provided to that program-piarticipant.
including evidence that .the Contractor coriduct.ed an annual
assessmenlpf services for those progrdm partioipants'lhat remain in
the program for more a year and adjusted ̂ e 'servldepack'dge.
accordingly,"ehd irtcluding cBsb management-services ^s provided frt'
24 .CFR 5.7$.;37{a)(1)(ii)('F.); ar\d

''2-.-3.'i.5:2.'.irt^ere'applica.ble, compliarice'with .the terrriination of' .asslstancb.
r^yirernenl ifi 2*4 CFR 578.91!

.2.!3!i!6. -Hou^inQ Sia'nd'afds.'The Cpntractpr shall retain .documenlaHon of-complianoe
with the hpu's'lng s'tahdards in 24'CFR 570.75(b), Including-irispeclion-reports..

C«na*cerlfMdM

2mOdto
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New Hempshlre Oopartment gf HcalO^ and Humon Scrvlcbe
Continuum of Core, Next Stcpe Permanenl Houaing Program

Exhibit A

•13 Sftfviccs Provided. The Conl/actor shdii documenl the types o.f .suppoi^e.
services provided uhder the Contractor's program and the afriounts spcnl-oh
those serNrices--The Conlractof shall keep docurneritatidn thM-th© records were
fcviiewed si teasi annually and that, the service package offered to program

. padidpants'was adjusted as hecessary.

-27ij; rfiieXonlrSctOr ehSII malntaih rfctorarWElTlocomeni compliance wIthT

■24.1. The'Ofganizational cbnflict-oMnterest requiremenls in 24 CFP 578.95i[c').
2.4;2. Thfr Ceniinutim of Care Board contiict-of-lnteresi require.ments in 24 CFR■578..95(b): S'nd
;2^4'.3. The.bthei-Conflicts reouirements in 24 CFR S76.95(d).

2 5 The Cont/actor shall develop, implemeni and reial.h a copy of the personal confiictTof-inierestpolicy'iharcpmpiies with' the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95. Including records supporting ony
exceptions to the* personal cohflicl-of-inlerest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contraqlor shallcpmpiy and retain documenialipn of compliance with:
2,6.1. The Homeless-ParticiDation requiternents In accordance with 24 CFR 57e.75(g):
,2.6.-2. Ttie Faith-based Activities requirements in" accordance with" 24 CFR 578.87(0);
.2.6.3. Attlrfnativetv Furthnrino Fair Housing by maintaining copies of "all markellng. ouUeach

and other rhatehals used Ifi inform eligible pers.ons of the program m accordance wrth 24
. CFR 57B.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Fedftffli Reouirements in-24 CFR 578,99. as applicable;
2.6.5. Oihef Records Rnecitied bv HUD. The Co.ntractor must Keep Other records as'specified

■  by HUD; and

2.6.6. Pfocurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.3,6.end 24 CFR.par1-84.
2.7. •Dohridenliaiitv. In addilipn lb meeting specific conndentlallty and security requirements for HMIS

data (76 FR 76917). the "Coniractof shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:
2.7.1. .All records containing prelected identrfying information of any individuai or family who

applies for end/or receives Continuum of Care assistance sHall be kept securd.and
cdnnde'n.lial;

2.7;2. The address or locatiori of any. family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care
fbrids are no! to be: made .public, except with written aulhorizali.o.n of the person
responsible for the o^r'ation ol the project; and

2.7.3. The address or iocalion of any housing ol.a prc^ram participant v/ill not.be"made ppWIc.
except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy o.f the recipient or subretipient apd

■  .corisislenl .with State .and .lopal lavrt regarding privacy and obligatipn.s df confidentiality.
Is "Pfiriod "Of" Record Retention. The Contractor -shail ensure all records.^ originals or copies made

■  hv microfilrnirio. photocopying. or other similar methods, pertaining to Con.ltnuuni pfCare funp^s
are releined for Hva (5) years foiiowirig the Cbniracl.'Compleliqn Dale and "fcceipt.of final payment•by.the pgnlr actor unless records are .otherwise rbguire.d to bd maintained fdr "aperiodiridxcess
of Ihe'fivo (5) year period^according to "slate or federal ,law *pf regulation.

CfiAtrKtMlniui
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3. Program ReDOftlna RooUlremer^ts

3.1. TheyCbhtractof shall submit'.theiolloyring.rcports:

3.-1;-1. . Peffbrrharice Redort lAPRl: WHhin'lhirtv (30) days after the Contract Cpmpletion
■  Oale.\an" APR ̂ all be i'ubimitted to BHS that summarizes the efggregMe results of

PfOjejct ActhHties, ̂ o^ng In particular how.the Cbnirador Is carrying Q'ut ̂ e prbied in
the rrSanrier proposed in the applicatiorS submitted to HUD lor -the relevant fiscal.-year
NOFA. The ARR.Shall be in the form required or, specified by the State, and ̂ obrnltted id
ih'e eddress listed in section'i.t. etiove;'

3.1.2. Anhually.-ihe C.ontr.ia'cfor shall develop and submit lo the DHHS. ,a.corr.«live action plan
.for any peiformance irreasure thpt was not.achieved; and

•S.'t .3. Other Reoofls as r^uestcd by the State In compliance vrtth NH HMIS policy.

4. Cont/act Administration

4.1. The Cpniractpr shan.hav.e apprppiiate levels of staff to "attend all njeetingiS or trainings, rr^uested.
by .BHS. including training in date .security and conndenliaiity. .according..lo >tate and federal
la;^/ tb ihe'exteht posi.ble, BH.S'shall noti^.lhe Cbnir'actorof Ihe necdib Bttend'such' meblirigs
five (Sj working days In advance of each mSeiing.

4.2. The 9on(rador'shali Inlprm BHS of any slatting chartges within thirty (30) days.bf (he .^ange.

6. Perforrhancc Measures

5.1 .• "Thfe'Gohtract.olr shall adhe.re;)p ail terms a.nd cdndiii.dop as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
■ App)icatio'n.#iSF-424..

5.2. The;!bphtf8cio.r ihatl :abide;.by .the pertofmance measures as .detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations ificTpding. but npl limited to the following;^

5.1;i. •hrtos://wvAvhudexchanQe.info/pfOQrams/coc/svstem-Dertofmance>
.measures/ffQuidance-

5.12. 24.CFR 578; Conlifiuu.mofCare Program; and,

S.l'i PublicLBw 102-.5.50.. , '

5".3. The^Cdniractor.shall accountable for reporting requirements as detail^ above in Section
"3., Program Reporting Requirements. ,

5.4: ArSnyally' Ihe.Conlrector shall develop end submit to the DHHS, a'corrective^aCtipn plan for any
•p'e'rfo.frh.ance meas.u.r.e Ihai'-was not achieved.

•;8i;0m%Ua»C«ivT^S«rA»».lfte, €^**4 Cc«V»ciO'.»rUi|». ^



DocuSign Envelope ID; D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECC0

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: C70CE2BF.FA74-4BBC-8980-B4C9CEF289Be

"New Hairipihire.'DepartJnent of Health and Hufnan Services
dontlnuum of Care. Next Stcips Rermahcnt Housing Program

exhibits

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEdENT TO PAYMENT

■i pgfTH^eQt-Hou'aiQq pfpararh Fuhdina
1.1. .The Stale ehall pay the'Contrector on amount not lo e*ceo.d the Form P.37. Block 1.8. Price

Limltalibn for ihe services-provided pursuant to Exhibit A. S.cope of Services,.
1 2 this Agrooment Is fundcd .wlih federal funds made available through the U.S. Oepartmcnt of

Housing end .Urban .Deyelopmeni, Tiiie XIV Housing Programs urider .the homeless
Emergency Asijslance" and'Re^d Transition to'Housing Act {HEARTH Act). .Subtitle'A-
Housing Assistanc'c (Public Law 102.550)., under ihe' CataK^ of Peder?! Domestic
Assi.slancc (CFDA) end 'F^erai Awa.rd Idenlification Number'(FAiN) as follows:
1.2.1. Federal Funds: 100%
1.2.2. CFDA#: .14-267

i;2.3. FAIN#: T0D
1 3 The Cpnlracto'f sh^all (irovkJc the sen/ices in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in cornpliance with

funding requiremenb. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize Ihe Contractor's
current and/or future fund.ing.

2. Financial Reports

'2.1. As part bf the pertormante of the Project Activiiies. the Contractor covenants and agrees to ■
sub'm'li the" following:
2.1;1. Audited Financial .Report: The Audited Financial .Report shall' be prepared in

accordance with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the Audited Financial Report within thirty .(30) days of the cornpletion
of Mid repprt tp the Slaie at the following address; -
NHOHHS
Bureav of Housing'Supports
105 Pleasant Screel
Concord. NH033()1'

2.2. Conformance with 2 CFR part 200:' The ConUactor shall use grant funds only in accordance
vyiih pfoc^uf'es.' reqyi/emenls. and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

.2 3 If Itie Conifaclor is not subjecHo the audit requirements of 2 .C.FR part 200. .the Contractor
shall Bubmil one (i) .copy o'f an audited financial report to the Department uliliiing the
guidelines set forlh'.by Ihe Comptrbller General of the United States in 'Standards,for A.udil
'6f Goverhmenial br^anizatlons. Program Activities, and f^uncliqris.* within ninety (90) days

• afierconlro'ct completion da.te.-

■3. Protect Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State .

■3 1 Project..Costs:' As used i'ri this Agreemefit, ihe .term 'Project Costs' means-ejl expenses
' ̂  " direclty or irtdirecOy incunbd'by the.tonlraciof In the performance of the prpjecl Acttv.hies. as

determined by the ^laVe to be eligible and aiiowable for payrnenl. in accordance with Publi.c
'Law 102-550..es weil'as allowable cost standard? sel'fbrth In 2 CFR part 20.0 as-'revised from
iime to time and vi^.th t.he rules, reg.ulalions, and guidelines established b'y the.-Staie. All

.subcontractors shall rn.ecl th'o regul'rerrienls of 2 CFR part 200, ^

$S-?02ftaHS^PGnM*''^i F«p»iU»0
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3.2. fpi^lihyum.'Of-CarO l^nds may be to pay for'Eligible costs listed in'24 CfR.578.39
thrpugh^78.63.>^en'uSed t'oes|abliah end operate'p'rojac^under five program components:
permaheht\hbysjng;^lr,ansitjonal housing; supportive .scrylcse.s onty; HMIS: and; jn' some.
Caseis^, homeless prevention. Administrative .costs are '.eligible for all com^he'hts. All
components 'are •subject to the resthctions on combining funds for certain .eligible activitles.lh
8 single project found In 24 GFR 578.87(c).

3.3. MalcA Funds:

3:3.1. The Contractor shad provide "suffrcient maldfiing funds, as regoired by HUO
' f.egulaiions and policies described in 24 GFR 1578.73.

3.3.2. Match requlrernems'sfjall be documented y^th'^ach payrheni reqge'sl.

.3.!.3.3.. The'Contfa^or shall nnatch all grarit funds.ejiccplfpr leasing funds, with hp le.ss'.than
twehiy-fiv.e (25) ̂rcerit .of fuh.ds or ln-kin'd.,^rilributiohs from olhet.sourqK.

3:3.4. The Cbniractdr shall u.lil.Uecashmal.ch for. Ihe'cpst of activities that .are'eligible under,
subpafl Oof 2ii;CFR576. ThcC'oniractbr.Shajl;

3.3.4.T': Maintain .fecbfds of (he source and use of contributions made to satisfy thb
match requirement in 24 GFR 578.73.

3!l4:2. Ensure records indicate the grar\l and fiscal year for-wh.ich each matching
conlribuliori IscounlBd.

3:3.4.3. EnSure-rpcofds'' include melhodpioglesThat specify how the values of (hird
party ih-kind .cpmribytions .weVe^^^^

3'.3.4:4. • Ensure records include, to the exteril.feasible, vpluritee.r services that are'
sup^rt^ by the.same Methods useb to'suppbh (He allocation of regular
persori'nel costs.

3.4. Pflvmeht'of Prolect CoVts:

3!4.'i. The.State a^fees'to provide paymenro.n.a cost reimbursement basis for actual,
eligible ■expenditures incurred in the fuinilmenl of this agreernepl.-'and shall be in
accordance with the approved line items as-spec.Kie^ in Exhibit 6-X. Budget, and as
deHned by HUO under the provisions of'Public law 102-550 and other'applica.ble
regulatipns, subject to the ayallabilily of sufficient funds.

3:4.2. The Coni/actor shall drily be reimbursed for those costs designated 'as eligible, .'and
ai.lowable.cpsts as stated in Section 4.'Expense El'rgibilrty. bei.ow. The'Gdntractor'must
have written appr'byai from ihe Siala.pirior t'o billing 'for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Schedule of Pavrhents:

3.4.-3.H. 'A'il 'rfeiffibyrserhent f^'uesis fo/ all R^rojebl Costs, including the final
reimbursement request for this Gonirect. shall be submhted.tjy 'lhe fineehth
(15th) day of.each'monih. for (he previous monlh. artd a.ccompanied by an
invoice-frpm the ConUaclor for the ampuni of each requcsl'e.d d'isbdr'semehl
ejpng iwiihp pay'rhent reque'st form'and any blheV docurhenfaiion r^oirdd.
ey'deslgfialed by'The Stale,'which ^hall.be..cbm'pleied.ahd"i$igne(f.by the'.
Cp'nlM'^bK'"'

Cmvxwmki*
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3.4.3.2. tjie Stale. shall make paymenl to the Conlrattor within thirty (30),^ays oi
-receipt of each Invoice, -su.bs^uent -to approval .of Iho .submitted Invoice
and If.s.^icient funds are available.

3.4.3.3. The .Contractor shall keep rec<^Vds of Iheir activilies related to Department
'  pf^rams:.end services, and sHall pfovide such.records'arid'any iaddrtio.hal

financial IMormalion if reguesic^ by the State'.to verify expenses.

3.4.3!4. In lieu of hard copies.submitled to the address listed in Paragraph 2.1.2..
above., all invoices may be assigned an electronic slgnaiure and ernalled
to: hou'stnQsuofX)rlsinvQices@dhhs.nh.Qov

• 3.5. Review of Ihe State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1.• At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon repelpl of the Annual
. Performance Rc^il, Termlnalion Repiort or Apdiied'Financial Report. t.he.Stale .njay.
review all Pr'oiect Costs Incurred by the Coniracior jand aii-payrhents made Id date.

3.5.2. .Upon 'Such review, ̂the Stale shall .disallqw -any hems of expenses that bfc not
determined to bb'ailpwable'br aie determined to be in excess of actual pxpend'ittjres.
arid s.hall. by wrliten noii.ce. specifying ihc disallowed exper>ditures. inforrrting the
Contractor'of any such disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for v/hich paymenl has noi.yei been made.-ii shall refuse
to pay such-costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this
. Agreement ere subjectio recapture.

3.5:4. Notwilhstanding anything to the contrary herein. Ih© Coniracipr ̂ rees that fur^ding
*  I under• this iAgreerrrenl may be ynihhekl, in .v^ole or. in part.* In the event of riorr-

compliance, with'.any Federal o'r.S.fdtaiaw.'fule'br regulation applicable to the servlc^i
provided, or H ihb.s'aid services, products, required feporl submissions', as'detailed in
Exhibit's A Olid B; or'NH-HMIS data' entry reguirerneriis have riot been salislaclorily
co.mpleied ln accordance wHh ihe terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. Expcrisfe EtiQibllitv

"4,1. ■ BdSied oh Iho fontinucd feceipt/avaitabil.ity of federal funds, the Contra.cior shall uiiiize
.Coniinyum of Care Program funds specified in this Exhibit'8 from the HUQ Conlinuurh of
Care .Program, for conifact services.

4.2. boeratinQ Expenses:-

4.2.1.. Eligible operating expenses include:

4.2..1..M. Ma.inienanoe. gnd repair of housing.

•4.2.1.2. Property tax.es. and insura'nce (includirig property and car).

4.-2.l.'3. Sch.e'dul'cd p'aymenl's to reserve for replacement of major.'syslems of.lhe
hbub.iog (provided that the paymdnis mu'Sl be based on the useful life of the ■
system and expected replacefneht cost).

4.2.'i.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the
.units or area is paid for with gran! funds.

4.2.1.$.. Uilillles. including electhciiy. gas and water.

tiitiiiaef Kitoo
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4.2^1.6. Furniture and equipment.

4;2;2- Ineligible'costs Include; - '

4.2.2.1.- Rental assistance a'nb operating costs in the same project.-

4..2~2.2. Operating costs of errie.rgency shelter and. supppnive.&ervlce^nly'facilities'.

4!2.^.3. Maintenancta'phd repair of .housing v^ere the-costs of maintaining .'er>d
re'pairiiig the housing' are.included in the lease.-'

■4".-2.2.4. .InellQlble .cosls. Any cost not described as eligible under ■scrton 4;3.3
telow .is not ah eligible cost of providing supportive MrVices using
Continuum pfCare progrpm'funds. .Staff training and cqs.t5>pf obtaining
professional ilcensure or certincalion's. needed'to provide' supportive
services 'are not eligible costs.

^ 4.3. '.SuDPOrtive Services

4.-3.1. Eligible .'SuRpoftiy? services costs Shall comply with all HUD r'egulatibns'ini i24"Cf^R
578^^3; 'a'rkl are ayallat}.lb to Indrvldu.dls -actively participating 'in the perrnanent
h'busing program: . .

4.3.2. S'oeclal Do'pu'ialibns. eligible costs are eligible.to the same extent for program
participants ^o are unaccompanied horneless youth: persons living with'Hiy/AIOS;
and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assauU, or stalking.

• 4.3.3. Eligible costs shall irictude:^
4.-3.3.1. Anf>ual essessmenl ol Service Needs-. The costs of the .assfessrrien!

required by-57.8.53(a) (2).

4.3.3.2. Assistance 'with movino costs. Reasonable 6ne-tirnia' moving odstsiarc
eligible and include truck rental .and hiring a moving comp'any.

4.'3.3.1 Case manaQement. The costs of assessing, arranging, coofdinatiog..and
m6hi.torir>g -the delivery of indjyidualized services to meet the needs of the
prograrh 'panlcipantts) are eligible costs;

4:3.'l4. Child Care. The costs 'df establishing and operjati'ng child care, end
providing^ child-care .vouchers, for children from -families. expjeVroncinQ
hometes'sness, including providing meals end snacks, an.d comprehens.lve
and coordinaied developmental activiifes are eligible.

'4;3.'3.5. • Education Services. The costs .of- improving knqv/ledge 'and basic
educailprial skills are'eiigtble.

4.3.3.'6. Empiovrnenl a'ssis'tahce'and lob traihlho' The costs' ofi'esiebil.s'Hing and
operatihg ^p^lpyme.nt assiStanqe and job training.progVdrTiS-d're eligible,
including cla'ss'rooni;. online .arid/or'. ..computer .in'slr'uction, .on-thefjob
ihsi^ctioh, seiyioes.that .assist-individuals In securing;.'efnployrnent,
acqulri^ .learoir^g s.kills, and/or increasing .earning'po.tenti.ai.. 'Th'e'.Oost-.of
providing feaspriabie slipends ito progrenfi participailis 'ih emjaloyment
assisUfice andjob.tr'aining'programs Is aisd pn-diigible cost.

4;'3.3.-7. Food. The cost of orbvidlrifl meals'rir procerjes to prc^ram'p'ailicipahts'is

'S^Oiyc^c w IftC. . Ccr>gft<io» IrjtaH
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4-3 3.0. HousinQ search and counseling services. Costs; of' assisting eligible
program partidpants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable' ho.using are,
eiigit)le.

4.3.3.9. aftfvicfes "gikilble costs are the fees charged by llcen'^ attorneys
.ahd by pcrson(s) under the supervision of licerised attorneys. fo(''.a'dvlCc
•ang repr.'e'«nlatlon In mattes that interfere with" homeless individual or
family's bbility fo bbloir^ and retairS housing.

,433-^0. I,He i^Kllls trainino. The costs of leaching critical life management skills that
may never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical
or meniat illness-, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessncs.s
are eligible. These services m'usi Ije necessary to, a^.st the program
•participant to function Indepehderiiiy in the communlly. C.ornponbnl life
sWIIs itrelnlng are the budgcUng'of resources ahd money mana'g^'mohi.
hdu«hpW managemeni. conflict managemeni.-s'hopping forfopd .and other
needed items, 'nutrition, the' use of public tren.sportaiidii. and parishi
traihing:.

4 3,3.11. MflriiarHealih Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient trealnwnl of
mental health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals.
Component services are crisis inierveniions; ccunselirig; Individual, family,
or group therapy sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medioatio.ns or
explanations about the use -and management of medications; and
cprnbinatidns of therapeutic approaches to address multiple problems.

4.3,3,-12. hutoatient health services. Eligible costs'are the direct outpatient.Ireatm.ent
of mediCral conditions when provided by licensed medical profes.siohals.

4.3.3.13. n»treach Services. The costs of acUvilies to engage pefs.ons tor the
purpose ol •prdviding Immediate support and intorvenilon. as well as
i'denti^ing poienilai program participants, are eligible.

4.3.3.14. Substance abuse Ueaiment servicos. The costs of program parlicipanl
Intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual

■  counseling, and drug testing are eligible. Inpatlent detoxification and other
Inpalicni drug or alcohol treatment are ineligible.

4.3.3.15. TfansPorlalion Services, as described In 24CFR .578(e) (15).
'  4.'3.3.i6. Utility QeoosUs. ThiVfprm of 'assistance consists, of paying for utility

■ deposit^. Utility deposits, must be one-time, paid directly to utility
dompanies.-

4 3 3.17. Direct provision of senrtces. If a service described in items 4.,3.3.1.
thrpugh .4:3.3.'l6. of-this section i.s.being directly delivered-^y-the
recipient Of subredplenl. eligible costs lor those seiyices al.s'o include
Ihe'.fqilovyi.ng;

4.3.-3.17.1. The cosls of lalJpT or supplies, and maleriate Ihcurred b'y.the
recipient or •subrecipienl In directly providing supportive
services to program pa.rticipanis; and

Cert/aew
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■•4;3.3.'17.2. "The ":sala'i7' 'and benefit packages of iKe recipient and
subreclpijfentstaff'i^o directly deliver.the*seivicei

4:3.4: 6faht iyr^s niay bc used for rehtal esslisiance for ho'rneics's individuals dnd fernilies.
4.3.5.-. Rental Assistance canriot be provided to a program participant who is already;,

recewng rental .assistance, or living in a housing iinrt rc^iefvlrig rental assistance pr
ORcratihg assistance, throb'oh glher federal. State, or local spurces.,

4.3.6. Rental •assistance shall be /administer^, in accordance wilh" the- poii.dle's end
prdcedurM 'est.a^ thc 'Cpntinuum a's set forth" liS .24 CFR.578!7(a) (9) ■en'd.24

■&F.R. $>6.5i/ahd niay be:
.4,3.6.'V ShOflt'e'irn. upto'3rnbhi>)s.dfrent;

'  4:3;§._2: Medium term, for 3.:24 rhonlhs; or'
4.3.6..3. Long-.term, for'longer than-24 nionlhs. ■

4.3..7. Qrirtl furiids fnay'be-u'sed lor security deposils In an amount not to exceed 2-nnonlhs
•of rent.

4r3.6. . An,ladvance'Payment of the last month's rent^may be proytded-lo the landlord, "in
.addition"to-the iiecurity.deposit and payment of first month's rent,

■4}-3.9. Rental essl's.iance will only be provid.ed for'a unit H the'rehri^./e'asonab.le. ^es
■  ..deieimirted byj'th^ Contrac.tof.' In'relalioh'lo .rents peihg charged.'for'Qompa.ra.p^^

unasslsij^-unii^^^^ trie location, si^.e; type, quality, amehl.iies^
'facilrti.e^^ahd'Managc.nte qi^ niaihte'rSance.bf eachuriit.

4.3.'"lO..The'.Cpntractdr rn.ay ub'e'griSinl funds'ln an amount' riofto excced-pne moiilh-if r.eii.t-.tb
pay fpr iany 'damage''id h'pusing due -to the aciibh of a -program p''a'rtlcli>ant',- ;F2r
Leasing fuh'd's cntv': "Properly damages may be -paid onty .from "funds paid to -the

^  ' 'landlord from-secufily deposils.
4.3.-l'iHou?l/io .shall be'in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing.

requi're'fTienls. the .Lead-Based .Paint Poisoning Prevcnlipn Ac/. 'qnd. "any*other
requlremenjs of the"jurl5dictipn'.in which the housing is.lopa'ted regardlng'the cofidrtiph
of Ih.e ^fuclure and Gperatlon of the. houiing pr.'service.s.

••4.3.12. The Cdrttri'ctqr-ishaii pfoyjde.one.qf the following types of rental a.ssisfis.nce: Terianl-
' -baied; Pr'djecL 6f'§ppnsbr-ba$ed rental assistance; as desp'rlbe'd.by HIJD In

24"tf^R.".57.8":5l..-
A a-12 "1 •'Tena'n't-b'ased 're'nlal assistance is .rehlal assistance .in w'hich program

participahts choose housing of an appropriate size'.in which to reside.'jWhen
rtecessaiy to. facilitate" the' coord'inaiion 6f.supportive->en>lces.^'reqipifehU
•and-.subrecipienls may require.Rrogram part.iciparits.tp live In a .specific a're.A.
fpr ibpir-erilire p'eri^ 'of participation, .or in .8 s"pe'cif>c-slnjdufe'.fpr:l^^^^
.y'^ar a'ndiina.spetific^aVea'fp/ of Ih'eir.pjeri.bd.pfp.artio
•'Shprt' ;and 'medium.Yprm. reli'tal•aeslsta'rice.prpyidied .pn'der .the Rapid.R.e-
'iHdusin'gPpifpgfa'^'cVm be'te'riani'.b'ased 'r"enta;i assis'lan.ce.

*  ' 4.3V12.-2. sSdp'h'sbT-basyd •rehlal-assi^^ is brovideb throuoh .cdhU'acts between'
'the ."repid.le.6f ''and'-ispbri^dr brg.afi'c^aiion..-A-sponsor '.may^ .-a .private.
n6.nprotit.^fga'ric:ali6n^ d'r a .dbrnmuhiry ftieiilariieailh agefvfc^-^^lished
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-jas a public nonpfont. organization.'.Program partidpanls mus.t reside Iri
•.housing pyvn^.or.leas^ by the sponsor

4.3.1-2.3. Prolect'based rental assistance :is provided through :a "conlradi .wiih the
bwher';of an cxistcng structure, vyhere the, owner .agrees to leas© the
'subsidized units to'program participants. Program part'cipanis will not
Vetaln fe.hial assistance If they move. •

4.3.12.4. for prolect-based. soonsor-basad. or tenant-based rental assistance:
program participants must enter Into' a lease agreement for a te'ith'.of at
lea^ one .year, which Is tefminable' for cause. The- .leases -must be
dutpmaiically renewable .upon.expiration for terms that are'a mlni.rnum'of
one month long; except o.n prior hbiice.by eithe.r party'.

4.4. Administrative Costs: ^

4.4.1. Eligible admiriistraiive costs'inctude:

.4.4.1.1. Th'e Contractor may use'funding awarded under this pari.'for Ihe payment
bf proj'ect adnhinistralivo costs "related to the planning and execution of
Continuurn of Care activities. This does not indude staff and,overhead
costs directly related to carrying out acUvlt.ies eligible under 24.CFR 578.43
through 578.i57. because those costs are, eligible as part of those activities

4.4.1,2. General management, .oversight, -and cpordinaiipn. Costs of overall
progra.m management, coordiriation.' mort^o'ring and eyalualiori.'These
costs if^dude. but-are not limHe.d to. necessary-expendrture.s'for the
following:

"4.4.1;2.1.. iSdIa'ftes,. wages; and related cbsis of the Conifact'o^s-staff, or oihef
^st'aff engaged in'program;adminisl/8lj6'n.•

4.4:1.'2.'1.1. I.n charging costs to this category, the'Conlfaclor may Include
the entire salary, wages, and related costs allocable .tolhe
program of each person wtios.e pfirriary responsibiJiti.e.s with
regard to the progre.m involve p.rograrp adrrtinislralipn

. assignments, or the'prd rala. share of the salary, Nvage's, and
related costs of each person whbse job indudes.'ariy program
a'dmii^isUal.ipn .assignmehts. the.doniradbr only use
on.fe of these methods'for each'fiscal year grant. Program
a'dminisirailbn assignment's include the fotidvnng:

.4.4.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing pro9r;am budgels and schedules, and
amendments to (hose budgeis end schedules;

•4.4.'1.2.i.i;2. Developing systems for assuring .compliance with
program reqiiVernenis;

.4.4.-1.2.1.1.3. Developing -ilnteragency ;agrpenienls -ar^d
agr'eem.enls wiih,.5u6recip.i'enls ahb C'oni/acio'rs.id
tariy pot program' .actiyili^s;-

.4.4.-1.2.;1.1.4.. f^onilb'rihg pf.ogrbm'' activities '.for' "progress''and'
•'(^mplia.hce with'jirogram requirement^

>AC.. Eitvol.i R C«wacto' WmT)
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4.4.1.2."l.i5^5. Preparing repots and other documehls rcjat^ to.
the program for.submissi.oh ip. HUD:

4.4.1.2.1.1.6. Cobrdinatjng the solution'"of audit bnd rnbn'rto'ting'
findings;

4.4.i.2.i;"V7;- PVeporii^g' reports'bnd Olher documents directly
related to the program submission to HUD:

4.4.1.2.1.T8. Evaluating program results against .sUl.ed
pbje.ctiyes;

•4.4.1.2.1.-1,.9. Managirig or supcrylsihg .per^ns wtio^ primary
responsibilities' with /egard .to the .program. incfUjde'
such assjgh'mcnts'.as' those, described in Js.etelio'ris;'
4.'5.-.1..2.i!i'. I. lhroi,^h iJ.5.1.2.1 .i.'8...abdve:

4,4.1.2.1.1.10. Tr.aye!.costs incurred foroPncial business In carrying
out the prograrh;

•4.i.1.,2.i:i.ti. Adnilnislrative senrices perlormed under.third par^
contracts or agreements. Inciudir^ such servloes as

• general legal services, account],ng seryic.es. aVid
feudrt s.erv?^s;

4.4.1.2.1.1.12. Other cp'sts for goods.and services, required for
administfatibn of the' program,Jnclyding jsycb'.ig'^s
and ser\nces .as. rerttei of purchas.e of ;^uiprfien.l.
Insurancaj .utilities, .office, supplies, an'd rerital and
maihienari'ce. but hot purchase, of .office-space;

4.4.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care fepulr'emehlS', ̂ sls
of providing training on .Continuum.; of .Care
repuir'ements and attending HUi>Sponsored
Continuum o'f Care tfalnlngs;-8nd

.4.4.1.2.1.1.14. Environrnental rcyipw. Costs of carrying the
envifonniental revlev/ responsibilities u.nd.er 24 CFR
578.31

4.5; 'Leasino:

4.5.1. Whep the Cohtre.ctor'is leasing tH6 siructure, Of ppdiohs thereot. flVartt funds, may tk
used .10 p9y.lqr 100 per.cisnl of the costs of leasing a structure or slrMCtufes.- or portions
Ihefebf, to pr.ovid©. housing of.supf^rt/ve s^eryices to.horrieless pcfsons.for up tp three
(3) .ye>ra.. L^asjrig funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned .by Uie'
coWlraCtor,- their •^renl ;or9eni2ation. any other fcl.at^ prganlza.tipofs).- ror
organ'Kdtions that-are mernbers o'f a- partneVshlp. where .the partnership o.^s the
-sfrurture. unless HUD a.uihorUed.en dxcepiionfor good .cause.'

.•4;5.2. Requirements:'

4.5;.?v1. Leasing striiclures. When grant.Si'are used to pay.fent fpr:ail;ip'f pa'.tt
stfuftufe or sl/pclufes. the'.rerit paid must b'6,ifeaso.riable-in felabph,t<5;ren.t^
bbipg 'chjf'gVd in 'th'e;afea'Tbr'cofnpara^ spdb'e.-.tn .pd.di|iefji-^e rent paid

.  C-NW 0.: Contact- _
$5."JO»-OHSi44-P£.8.W''fl
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may not ezoeod rents currently being charged by the M.fne. oy^er for
corh.pafable.unassisted space.

4:5.2:2. Leastha individual unlis, When the grant funds ere used to pay fbnl for
individuVj 'hqusln'g units,.the rent paid rnusi reasonable in relatioh to rents
telhg'Charged for comparable.units,-laking into account the locatipn, sixe,

quality.- dmenlties, facilities, and management sen/jces. In addition,
the rents may not exceed rents cunentty being charge fpr comparabid
units, and. the rent paid may noi exceed HUD-determui^ fair mdrkiat rents..

4.5.2:3. u'tilfties. If elect/icity, gas.-and.water are included In the rent, these uti.lilleis
m.ay be paid from leasing funds. If utilities ar^ not provided by the lahcllord,
.these Crtility cosis .are bperatl.ng costs; except, for supportive scryJ.cp
facilities'if the'structure is being used as a.supportive service fa'cility. then

.(jtiiity costs.af'e a supi^rt'ivd service cost.

4.5.2.4. Security dedo^fts and first iand last m'bnth's rent. The Conlractor may- use'
grant-funds to pay secuHty depo'siis. In an amount not to exceed 2 months
of act'Clal rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be prowded

■  to.the landlord in addition to security deposit -and payrhent of the first
month's rent.

4.'5.2.5. Occupancy aoreerrients and subleases. Occupancy agreements and
subjeases are requlr^ as specified .in 24 CFR 57.8.77(a).

4.5.2.8'. Calculation.ol occuoancv charges and rent. Occupancy',charges .and rent
frdrti'program participants must be calculated-qs provided in-24 CFR
57^77: ■

4.5.2.7. Rrdofam Income. .Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
• pa'rticipahts are program income and may be used as provided under 24.
CFR 578.97.

4.5.2:.8. Transition.'Refer lo 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

. 4.5.I9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable 'in
cornparlson tp rents charged In the area for .similar housing units,
bocurhentalior^ of rent reasonableness must b'e kept 6n file .by the
Contractor.

4:5.2.10. The Pp'rtionpf rent paid with grani funds may noi exceed HUD-determined
fair Warliet rents.

•<1.5.2.'1.1. .The Co.ntraclor shb|} pay individual, landlords directly: funds may not be
'given dirccUy'tb parllcipanls to p'ay leasing costs.

4.5.2.12. '^roperty-'pamages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for
security" deposits.

4.5:-ll3. The fconlractor cannot tease a buildino thai it atreadv owns'to itself.

•4.5:2.14.. .'Housing.must bp in compliance vyith all Stale and locarhous'ing cod.es.
'jicefjsing 'rpquifemenis. the Uead-'Base'd Paint Poisoning .Pf^y'ehlioh Act.
.-.and any'diher requirements of .the .jurisdiction in vvt^ich Ihe .h'ouslrig'Is

SS-}0:»-BKS-0<-PERhW-.1 J
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.to'^te'd -regardirig the condition of the stAJCture. and ppe/atlon of-Uie
hfiusing ̂dr'spryices.

4 fe The'Contrsaor mayfihaitie particlpants/renVand utiiitiw (heat.
ihe.-emouni chprBcd' may no,l fexCe^ed (he maximum amounie specinaci in HUD regutauons (24
CFR-.iS78C'7y)'. iDther services such as cable-, air .wncfilionir^Q. telephone, tnterriet-access,
cleaning, parking, poolchargesi elc. ere at Ihe participant's option..

■4,7. T]he Cbnlra.ctprVhafl have.'any staff 'clwrg^' in hili or part to ihis,conltac(.;or counlw) ff.s m?tch.
compietd we.eitiy pr .bi-we.ei<fy.Um'e?hPPl.^^^

6. Contractor Financial Management System
A 1 ■ "Ficral Control- The-GontracloV shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting proceduf^'s that

■ *' dlsbuiser^e-ht bfiraha Sccbyhlirig for; grant fund? and any requlrW rionfcde|?l•  6xpen<ihy>e'^: ThisVi'feRdnsibiifty ap^.ies to* fqnds ^disbursed In dircfct ppeiaiions pt (he
Coriifactpf.

5.2.. The Contfacior'fih'ali maintain a f^maricial management system that complies With-i.CFR p&ri
20ib.or such epulvalenl"system as the Stale may require.-

6iuDHi^«ium'C|9»T*n*>ity S«/y^ Cr^^'S. C9>*TCtO*,hlB)<h

Oil
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)  SPPCIAI »ROVlSlQNS

Cootractofs Obl^atjons: tho'eofllfadbf eovcAonls end ftQfees that ojl.lunds reccivod by the Cohlraclor
uhi'ddii thb'jC^&ect shall bo.uspd only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eli^lble'
.(rS^iv1'dui(ii and. in ihe'fuHheranco of Ihe.oforesaid cover^ants. the Conirador .hereby covenaritsend
■i^$'i^V.is;toi"te^:
1.- -^ornpllante'with f,edp>i^l and..SU.te Lbw^': If (Ke.Cont/'actor is.p^rmitted to detarrriinb Ihe.oltpibility '

iof ii^ividuals St^h'6li9lb)jity'i}etermmaij^ be'm^ in accordance wiih.spptlcable federal and
'■state laws.'r^ulailoh's. orde'rsv.guidei'nn. sn'dproCMuros. - '

•'2. Tlrne and.Mafiner.orOetemilnajipni.Eligibil'rtydalerm.inatjons sha.n bo'nnadeorj-loipipfoykJadby
Uie bopartm^fit for-that p.Orpds? and shgii bc'm.ade.and rem^e at such'tlipcs as.^c b'y
'ihe'Oepaftmenl. • • '

'3;- ' O^'urriohiatldrt'. .Irt addition to the determination forms.reriuircd by tlie bepartmenl,-(he Contractors)i.^t maintaJn'odat9'fiie':b^ eadi'^redpienlof Serv^^'t^reunder.-which file shall'in^dO all-
'i.nfprm'.btidrt n'jc«.W{y.tp.8.up^ deierminkidn and siich blher informaiwri as.the'
"bdpir^e'int The Cpnjracto'r shpil.fOrnish Ihe De'|«rtm.ent wXih ell forms ond docurhcntetior>
'rj^'^i^ing'el^bili^ deli^ Oepahrnenl'may rj^uestibriequire.

4. 'Fair He'arlr^gs: Thp^Contractoi^underslondj that pll applicants .for scryi^.'hcreunde/. af.v^^
:ynd^uai5 'dcclafedrineiigible'hbvea'righi^to'a fair hearlr^'regarding'.th'at dei.e/mb The'
•'Corilractof l^reby obvtMnfs e/^ ihei ail applicants for sprykcs jshaii.'bp. pormitt'ed ^
an appii^lion "form and that ca^'opplicoiil or rc^ap^icanl shall be'ihforrn'bd pi hl^er Hghi.tp";of8ir
hdahriglnaccordancovnthDopartriientrcgutalions. ' ' '

.5.; ./bVp'tu(Uos.br'Kickbacks;'jhe'Cdrittacloregrec(thar isabreach.of this Contract.to accopt or
.Wakd a payment, grat'sjify" prdWeVdf.ernplpymen^^ Ori behalf ol ihe'Cpnlr'artor.- eny'SutyC^ontractor or
'•the.Siale'in'wdor jo/lnfh^e/)^^ ^rformaftcc of the Scbpe-of Work deia'iied jn'ExhlWi.A of tWi
•(^nifoi^.The.Sialc cnoy'Iermiriale this Cdhlracl or?dpr^y s.ut^corjirbct'^.s'y ri ijC .
'dleleimiripd. that paymfnrt.igraluitios 'or offerV of ermploVmVnrbf priy kiiSd._y^r'e 'd/fcrjed or rfe'ceiy^ by
.any officials, .dfficers. "embWy^^ .or ogen'ls.'of the'Cdnlre^or.or' SythCpnlrdctdr.;

t. Retroactlvo f*aymonta: 'RolvHihsiar^ing anything lo" the contrary contained Id Ihe'Co'ntriatt.of in any
.other.ddcumoni.'contrect of -undersi^itSg;'lt is-cxpressty understob.d.and egrei^d by the'ppriies.
heVelp.ihaj no ̂ ymerils wyi'll be-mad.e hereunder to;relmbur&d Ihe'Contraclor for costs incprred fer
'any-pV(^s^^i^^P\dny services provlded to'any Individual prior to the Effective Dale of the Coolfdpt
•and r^o'psyiin'etils shall b'e made.for censes incurred .by Ihe Conlraclor for ar^y services proi^d^
pr:ipr-.ldlt]^'date''oh whlch^Jh^^^^ for s^n^ei or (except as otherwise provided bythe
fedq^pi rj^ulalfon's)' priorlq b'dete.rrnirvtlidn' ihai tha.indrv'iduai is eFrgiblc )dr such .services:

7. Conditions of Purchase: NptWlhs'lanping bpythlng to .the cdnira/ycdrilained i/>,thy(>6nira^-ndihlrig
herein .M'ntoined. shall be.d^nldd to/qbligale^or roduire (he Dopaflm'.eni id purch'ase-yqrv.c'n

Co'nir^or In exqes's of th6Co;rtir9clprs.cpsis.yV^ .
•which oxcceds^thc enipurits te'asbna'bld. and riece«afy.td .assure Ihe qua.lit'y of .sO^Ser^'ce. or fll;o"
ryle.whiph exceeds the raip'charge.d by the C.onlroclortdMhe.llgitifc IndM.du'al.s or othbrth^^
Jfiundersiibr spch service. If-ai eny iifTn'o'dufirig Ihelter.fn of thi's Conlract or.blier receipt'qf.theTlnar
£)iqrtdituf©'Rqpc^;fie.reundV/the bepa ihali dcter'mioqlhal th'c.Ciqnlr^pr h8S:.u^^^
^ymcnt^'hereimbdr" fp. rcimd.drso ilcrn's..of exppnsq otherJlian such costs,-'or has rewiv^d paymeM'in'cx^bWlof sdch cd^ls .or iVyw^ss of 'soch.r'aiei cf^.rgcd by the Contractor to ineilqibie-indi^^upl^
.qr'qth.^r:ihl(dpariyfyrid'cra:'lf>pp.bp8rtrn

•7,2/ ^6eyij,d fr^ boy .f.uiure 'payrn.eni to .the Cohlr^lof the.ambuhl of.any'pVio^rfinri.Wr's.irn]^^
./ r/Tvldjli.W!c - Spf^iai p'fqyltioiif Canii a^ar f. KI
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New HemDshin) Oepertrhent of Hcjilh' and Human SpKriccs
EjihibitC

i.i. b^nif fcpaymcni of Iho excess pa'ymeiM by the Cpniraqor in which eveni teiiu/e to meKe
such fi^ymcni shell consiitute.an Evenl of Defaull hereondef. When ihc CphlractQf. is
Wfrnlnrt'to detefniino the eliglbiiily of ind'ivWuais for services, the Cohlreclaf.agrew.lo
reimburse thV Diepartmeni for.all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services

^  p^ejJ to any indrvWii^l who is found by the Department to be" ineligible for such serv»cesat
.any;ibV'during'"lhe/pe'^c^ of relenlioh of records established herein;

REC9RD.?:iM>!JNTeNJ^NC£..RCTENTlON. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFlDEf^lALlTY':

8 Melnlenanccof RocprdS: Iheddittohlo lhceligibiiUyfecbrds'specified above, me Oont/.ectpf.
"c^Ohanla end.pg'roes tp.fTii>ntoin^ho;fo(kDw^ rec.or'ds during the ConirodPeriod:

81 rtscal Records; twKs.'records, documents and other data evSdendjSg arid reft^irig.eii foils
and other expenses'IncwrTed by the Conuartor Irithc perto.rmanco of the Conir^.'ond all
income rccervod or coflectcd by "the Coht/actor during the Co'm/ect Period, said records .l9,l>e
meintalried lh accordance with accounting procedures and practices whch sutficl^nUy and
p'fdMriy reflect all such cdsis and expenses, and which are pcccpiabie to the DeparVnent. w
.lo'includO wlih'r^.tunHalion' a" ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs cuch q&purchaserodyisiliV5.'ai^,o'f#5.>!^yphVs.r<>quisiton$lor'materia.^^^^^
Irvkif^.cbniribUip^^ tdborTirne taids..payrolIs. and other records requested or required by-the
Odpartrn'crit.

8 2 StaiistiCorRecOrds; StaiisUcal.'cni^llment. attencfance.or yisit.records for each r«ipiool of
■  services d.iiririg ihd Coniw^^^^ v^ich records shell Iridude.pti records of application and

otiglbilltVTifKiud'iQgairform required lo determine eligiblirty for each such rccipien.l); r«ord»
reg'ardirig'lhe priivistof) of-scrviccs and all .invoices'submitted to'ihc Dcportrneni td'bbtain
payment (or such sorvico's. .

'.e.i Medical Records; Where appropriate or*d as prescribed by the Deportment regutp.iipna.lhe ,
Contiaclor shall ffstain medical records on each pafient/iecipient of soryices.

•9 Audli' Cdrilfactor shaji submtl an 8hf\uol audit to the Oepartmeni wiihin.60 days after the close pf the
aqericv fisdal year. It j? rk6niih'ef>ded thai" ihe report tje' prepared in accordance with th? provbion of
'Offiw of M.artageinbntVr^'Bu^l.C^culBfiA-'tSJ. "Audits of |5t.atei. Local.Goyernrr^ols; en.d Noo
Profii ?' .Stari'dards for Audit of.Gpverrtrhenldl Orgafiaalioris.
Prograrns", Acliyitjes 'and^Functions. »ssu^ by the US Genera! Accpu'niing Qlfice (GAO slahdards) ps
they pertain to financial cornptiancc audits.

91 Audil and Review: During the'.ierm of this Conlrocl end the period for retention hereyridcf. the
Oepaftm.ent. ihc"United Slates Departmonl of Health and Human Seryices.'end eny of thoi;
d^ignal^ rdpre^.enlativci shall have eccess lo all reports and records maintoinGd pursyanllo ̂

■ ihe Cofilr^ for purpbsesrbf audit, axaminatlon. excerpts artd transc'rtpls.
9 2 Aiidil Liabilities: Inodditiori id and not in any way in lirhilal'ion ol obfigoliorts of the Conlrad.rt is

undofsibW and .ogrei^ by the Conl/actdr thai thp CorMracipr shall be heW,liaWe.for any stole"
Of f^Gia) audit'exceplions.end shall rclyrh to the Department, all ̂ ymenls made under Ihe
Conlra'ft lo'.vmici^ pxfedtion has been laken.of which have bpen dliallowed bepeyse pf.such an
.exception.

"to ..Confidentiality of .Records- All Information, reports, and records' mairitained l^reCindcr dr'collocled
in cbnhec'tion.yiliih the pertormance ol the servtcei end the Cdnlrpct shall be t^nfidenlial orid.shatlhol
be disctosed l)y."the.Contrac<of. provided hdvvover. mat pursyant fo'siaie laws and the roguiailonsbf

•  the Departmenl reg^dihg the use end disclosure of suchjnfdhrialion. disclosure rtiay l^^m8de Ip^
'bbblic^iciais'fHulrii^ "inldrrrialion' Iri connection with'their official duties" and for'purppses
.dirpc.i|y'i»nhfct<kl"f6 jhe pdminislr^iio'n di ihe'seryiccs afW'the.Gdniract:; and provided further..ihai
'thfe'u'se'of dl^c.lbsy'Vby 'any party" d'l a.hyjnfdrmatiori ioncernirig e" re'ddfenl lot any .purpose not ̂
idrr^lly'.cbnhiwled vrilh th^ 8dm;hi"?l.raiion of the'Department "or ihe'C.onlraclor's resfiobslbililies with
re'^W-tp'fJyrc^^ hereuridef is prdhibited.e.xcepl pn^wnlten cor^s.eril 6f the feqipi|Dlj" his
'oliomeydf guardian.''

eihW.i"C-8peci«iP«»*<tioin Conuscior.lryiiab-, / | ,
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Nc^ihstandind anythif^ .contrary contained herein the coverunis ̂ d ̂^iti^s ciy^l^nMin
the ̂ ragra;^ shairsur^'the termination o' the Cpn'traci' for any reason wh.auo^C

11. Ropoits; Fisca) aind'Sieti^icd};- The'Goniractor agrees to submit the following reports/at Ihefoibv^
•  t^cs\if f^uested by'lhadepa .

1 V:1. Inte^FuiPhcia) Rep^s: Wntten inierhf) ftnancldi reports coniainirtg a detailed descrfphonof
ail costs .anb rjbn^ia]}owat>le expons.es irtcurri^ by'tho Contr^lor to the date of the report ond

'  cpntalnir^ s'u.ch othi'r. tnfo^a.lton os shall bb deemed ̂isfdctory by the Oepartmbnt to,
Justifylhe r8ip;of ̂ ay^ni hereunddr. Such FirtarKial Reports.sha.n be submitted ort the'rprm
dd^r4t^..b.y thejbepb.rtment or doem^ satcsrii^tory by th.e'De^iment.

11.2. Final Rep&'rl: Aftrtal raporl shaU be sirbmiTt'ed wtthin lhl|^ (30) doj^.efter thO'^'d of the'term'
of this Conl('adl, Thb Firtal Report shall oe irt a form s'aiisfaclojV lo ihe Oepa.rtmenl'flnd.bt«ll
cortiain a summary'statemeni of progress toward goals.and objectives staled In.ih'ePro^sal.
.and o(her information required by department.

. 12. CorirtpleUon of Services: disallowance of Costs: Upon the purcha;» by the Oepanirtent of the
rnaxiniuiTi number of uniis.p^vided for In the Contract and upon.payme'nt ol.lhe price limiietiort

'  fM'reurid.er.'the C^.tr^ct.'ond all the pbi^alons.of the parties her^'under (ex^pl such obiigailpns as.
by t'he.lems.'of lfte;doritracl'ar.e.lo be fw^prmed pfle.r the end of the term oi this Contract, end/or .
survive,the Icrmihati^ pf ihe'^ntract) shall lerminate', provided however, thai if, u^n ro.vlbw of the
FitUi E^ndrt'ur'e Rej^it t.He't^p'aryne/il.shail dtsalk^v'eny'expdnscS ctatmpd b/tKe Cpntfadbr' as'
cosls-fiereunder the.Oeparlmehl shall retain ihe'ri^hi.-'^ its.discreiiori. lo deduct th.e amouht pf,i'.ucli
expenses' o's are drsallcw^ or lo recover such sums from theXontraclor.

13. Credits: All documents..notices, press releases, research reports and.Mhef materlais prepared
duHr^ or resuming from the performance of the ften<^^ of the Conlrad shall include..ihefoubwtfig
•.staie'rnwV. '' •. s .•
13.1. The preparatiori of Ihte (re^rt'. dCKumeni etc.) was Tnanced undor.a Contract vyUh tl)0 State

.of New Hamp^lre. p^parlm'erSt of Health end Human Soryioes, with funds provided in part -
'by iheiSlaib'of Mow'.HampsMf^ o'nd/or such'pther furidlng sources es were .available or
'r.^uuibd.-.e.g., lhe]Un|l^ ̂t.albs Qep^rtrher^.df HealiVand Humat> Services.-

14. Prlof-Approval end Copyright Ownership: AD maleriols (written, wd.eo, audio) prod.uced of
purchas^ under Ihe contract shall have prior .opproval from' DHHS before printing, production',
distribution or uie.'The DHHS wi)l retain ̂ pyrighl cwner$hip(or .bn/iEin^ all r^iginal t7)'at.efta|s'

- pror^uccd, including, but not itmllcci tO; brochures, resource dir^pties, prot.ocols.or guidelines.
po$ter^; or feporls! Coniractor.^hali not reproduce any mfaieria.is produced under the contract without

■prlor.virltten approval frorh DHHS.

15.-'Op.Qrati'pn of Facilltl^.:'Cdrnplia.n'co with'Laws and Regulations: In the operal.ion of any facilil'ies
•for prbyidir>9 services. the;C.6nlr^t6r,sKei'j cdm'ply with ail laws, ordors'and r^'uiations of federal,
state.'cqutSly ond t^unid^i authoViilris'and any dirccton'df.an'y Public Officer or .officers'-

■pursudhi tolavrs.whlch.'sh^ll Im^'e.Qh order'or'duty upon the ̂ ntraclbr 'with resped to the
'operoiidrt pl.the fa'dlity qf the provision of the sery'ces al such facility. If any goycrhmehlal lcchie or
periTji.t shall roquir^ for the,operation of the sa'^ facility of the performance.of iKe 'sa'id Se'ryices.
the C^lracl.dr wiji.'procur.e said I'lcensc or pe'nriil. and will a) ell (im^ ̂ cdniply 'with the.'t'erms i^d
copdiiions of each such'ricense'or-pe.rmit! In connpciipn with IhVforbg'bing rcq'oiremenlis. the.,
(^tr^qr'hcreby covcna^ end agrees"that, during thelbrm bf.lhls CoolfOd.the facllitio.s'^^
cdimply.vMlh ari.i\i.le.s.;0f reguialiorts. arid roqulreriienis o1 (he Sl'jite.Office oi the Firo'Morsh'pla'nd

.(^'e iocpj.^r'e p)qtedtibn ageri'cy^' and shall be in conformance with local building ortd zor^ing.'(i»dds;'t>y-
idy.5^'e^!Vc9u.l9iioriV * ' •

16. '.Equal ErTfplqyrhehl'pppohunfty..PiAri (EEPP): The Contractor wlil pr.o^e on Equal.JEmploymeni
0pf»ri^'riijy Plan XGEQP)'to lhb 6ff>c'd''fctf Civil Rights,.CffiCe of Jo'sticb'Progrorhs (ppR).'l1.l|'h.as • .
-.^elv|^ $600.00.0 or hiqre. K the recipichi I'ecdfve.s, SZS.QQO .or rnbre'iand .or

&0V(yiC-'S;«ei^iPrb;<^f< CarivxtortnliiobN
-^494.3-^5 Ooiq] m
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Exhlbrt C

mc^e.cniptoycw, il wiJI maifllBin 3 current 660,P.on-file arid an E£OP Cerilfi^ion Form lp iha
OCR. rtrtitytng.lhat \\i EEOP 's on file. For re^ienls reiving tess than S25.0pO. Of public granleca
wlih f^V than.sb employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recip'ieni wtn pnoi^'an

.'■EEOPXchlfidolldn Form'lo'l^e OCR certifying d is not required to submil or rriainlain an 6E0P. Norv
pr'ofil o^ar^lionj. Indian frit^. and medical and educatioruil institulicns arb exempt from the • .
EEOP neguiremeni, biri are rpqutrod (o.eubrrili a certification form' to the OCR to ctairn'lho exemption.

• EE6p Cijrlffcatibri FofTf»iiaro'>vibilablem;http7Arnvw:ojp.v5d(^about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.
17, Limited Cnglish Profliteh'dy (LCP): M clarified by Executive Ofder 13166. improving Acc^.ii to

ServicoaYorpe^np vsiith'LImitbd Engirsh Proficipncy. and rM.utting agency goidafKO. natiofVplgnQin
dbcriminbtion includes disc^matiori on the basis of iimjied English'pronciency (LEP). To ensure
wmpliance.wllh the Omhlbus Crime Control and Safe Streets'Act of I968 end Title yi .of ^e. CrvD
'Rights .Act of 1964. Contractori must laXe reasonable steps to ensure lhai LEP pcrsoris ha've
mearVn'gful access .to ils programs.

IB. Pilpt Prqgrpm for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblowcr Protections: The
.following s^li apply to all cpnifacts thai cxcepd the Simplified Acquisliibn ThroshoW as defined ines
CFR'2,l6l'(cu"cnlty.SrW,6oor , ^ '

COKTRACTOA EmPIOY^ WHlSTLfieLrM-en RCMTS AWpR.^EOUlREMeNT TO.lNFOnM EWPldv^'S'dF
WHiSTUaiOAER RK>ns(S6P 2013)

(0) This contract end employees working on this contract will be subject to the whbiteblowGf r^hls
afid remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whlsHeblowef prplectioAS'established at

••41 tj'.S.C. 47l5 by'section 828 of tho National Delense Authorization Aci'for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub'. L.
112-239) end FAR 3.308.

• (b) Thd Contractor shall infbnm its cmptoyees In wilfing, in tho predominant language Of the workforM.
of.bmployoe whistleblower righis.and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In sectidn

* 1.^8 of the Federal Aoqu^ii'to'n.RcgOidiion.

(c).The.i^lractor shall' Insert the substance of this clause, includir^g ih'is paragraph (c)..in all
st^ontra'cts'.b'ver the simpf^ied acquisition threshold.

*19. .Subcbritraciora:- pHHS recdgn'nes thai the ContrKlor may choose to use subcontractors wllh
greiiter e:^rjiise'to perfoirn certain health pare serWes or.funct'ons for efficiency or convenience,
but the Conlroctdr" shall rcLajri the rcspb'nsibi% end accoorilabilily for the funcl'cn(s). Prior to
aubcwtracti.ng, Ihe Contriacior shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to' perforrri the dei^ated
•funct|pfi(o)..Thls Is eccbmplishdd'through b wf'rtteri boroemeni thai spccifrcs aClivilres and reding
' resppnslblliite.s of the subc^lrp^.or er^ provides, for revoking iKe delegation or Irhppsirig ^nc.tions If
Ihesub^nlractor's perfo^ance'is not adequdie..SuJ>c.ontract()rs are subject tothdsprrie contradual
.condh'ions as the Contractor and the Contractor is r^ponsible to ensure subcontractbr.cdMpliarice
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegeles.a function to a subcontracior. the Contractor shall do the foilovring: ■

19"1. Ev^lualb the.'prpspkliW subcon!rsctOf'.9 ability to perform the oclKntles. bclpro-del^^llrjg
.the'furi'ction . . •

'19,2. Hayb''9'wrihe.ri;B9re€fn'c.n^^^ su^hlractor that speclfi.es adivit'ics pod reporting
rcsppnsibiljlies'ahd hpw>8'nctioris/few'c'atk)n"wit) botVr'eriaged if the subcbrtlraclOf's
parformancd is hot'.^equ.ate

19,3, . ^nttwllW 6ubconirac'l6.r"5;'iKrtonm&nce on'an ongoing bas.i?

^  ,nx^id-^.8poU4r.rtv*biwis
ooivu PDgc4c>r6

conusciorlntu

0«le
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19.4; Prb^d'e io QHHS'en annual sch^ule identifyir^g all ey^^traciors, dele^ei^ rynctipns.'ond.
rWsp^rbili'ties;.;end wtw ihe subconlractof's pcft^'ahM

19.5. DHHS shall.-'ai Is discfoiib'n. re^w end approve dlisubcontrBctS;

If Ihe ppnlraptor jiJeAtrfies'deficiencies or areas for improvement are IdentKied.-the Contractor shVll

20. -Contrect'bonnlilons: .

;20..'1. C'dSTS;.S'helI me^h thoM direr^ an^d indired itemi'of expose determined by the D^pHmerM
•i'9-^*''8llp^ble. ahd reirn^urubleln'accordaheo with c^'st end bccouniing prir^ciptM dsiab^bed

. W.pccdrdahpe.^h st^'ie and f^e'ral laws.'f^utalidns.-niles'and'orders.
'20.2. •• 'O.CPARTMENT; NH Department o? Health arid Human ^rvices.
20.3. PROPO.SALi If applicable, shall mean'lhe document.su.bmitted by the ConirM^'or on a

vfont^' or forms ^Ufed by the. Depar^ent and cp^^inlr>g'a description'of the. se^ce& 'and/or
QoMs to be provid^. by 'ihe'bohtractor in accordance with the (emis dr^ cohdXipns of the
..Contract and setting f^h the'ldi^ c^t and screes'of revenue for serylM'to be^prOvided
• updorthe Contract'.' •'

•20.4, UNIT; Fof'each.^rvifejKal Ihe Cpritractbr is to provide.tb'eligiWe in'di^irais hfercund'cf/sholl
■mean jhal p'bnod pf.lime.pt'lhal sppcined aciMly'dderihirted'b'yIhe'b'epahnt'ent'ah'd'spec'rned
in Exhibit B oi the Conlract/

■_20,5. 'FEpEFtAiJSTATE LAW; whjercver facial orstaie laws, regulations, 'rules, orders, and,
.'bolici^, etc. ai^.re/eiT^ to in ih'e.Cohtra'ci. the'said reference shairbe.deempjdjio'iTipan <
'alV.^bch Laws. 'reguiati6'ns..etQ.-d's'(hey m'ay be.'eme'ndeb or revised fr'om'time'io'lim.e.

20.6.- ,$Uf^PlJANTlNG ■OTriER .F£0£f^L:FUN6S: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
•Cpnlract will npt.sypplant any eitistirtg federal funds available for these services.-

djUtiUi Q > 'P)bi<ppas Co.Ano'or iniabV
Pfiflfe'SotS 2m.
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fiEVISiONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. 'Ravtslons'tb Form P-37, Gor>orBrProv>siQns

1.i. ■ ^lipn A', (^on'd'rtionarKfatufg ot AQreerrient. is repticod as follows:
4; CONDITIONAl- NATURE OF AGREEMENT. . ^

NpMlhstanding "Arty provision of ihis AgVeeVner^t to the conlfa»y.;ail obligalions of the Slate
l^uf>de'f. IncludiiSg wimpul JimUajipri. ihi conUrtuancc of payments, in w/H'ole.or in part,
.under this Ag'reemeni'ard.cOnlingent upon cw6nuep.appropriation or avai1al?ility of fun<3>.
u^dlng arty subscoupnt ehpngario the apprppHation of av3ilat>ility of fund$;.8ffadad by
••any siai'e'of Wderal legislatfvei or execuiive adion that reduces, ̂elimjna^e^. .of.olherwiM
modifies the approprialion or ovailabillly of funding tor this Agroemeni and ilie. Sco^.of
'sWices provlded in Exhibii A. Scope of Seivices. In whbi.e or in part.'ln no'e>^nt shiill the
Stale be liable for'any payments hcreunder In excess of .appropriated c ayaitabiyfufKJs..ln.
ihe'^ent-.of a reduction, termlnalbn ©rmodifiartion of apprppriated or available fiir^s. the"-
•Stale, shall Ijc^^ lbe right to withhold paymeni until such funds become avaiiable. if ever.
The'Staio'iSh?'!! have t'h^ right lo'.reduce, terminate or modify .services .undcr.this. Agwment
irrtmcdiaieiy'u^ giving .the Conlredor notice' pf -sucli. reduclibn, •teiTnlnalion ■ or
modification. The State" shall .not be-reciuired io'-Uan^fer funps from .any oiifei.-so.urCe or
jBpcdum into, (he A&o'unl{s) identified Iri.iblpck 1.6.of the General. Provl^ibASi.Afccbont.
Number, o/'any other account in th'e eycnl .fyrvjs ore r^uced.bf unavailable.

.1.2. Seciion -10. Termination, is amcrtded by adding the folloWng lartguagc:

10.1 .The State maytc/minale Ihe Agreement a) any time fpr any reason, at-lh'e sole discretion of
■  the St?!®. 3Q days .aficf giving the Contractor"written notic.e that the Slalc is exercising its
ppiion to terminate the Agreement.

l6.2'iri thO'evdnl .of .early terminailon. the Contractor shall, .wiihln 15 days of notice o| early
teirnlnailon. ."develop and submli to the Siaie a Tfensi\ibn Plan for^ services under Ihe
-Ag'r'eCfrie'nl. 'irKl.udlng but hot limited to, idc'nirfying Ihe present, and future need.s pf clients
fe^lviiip aer^ces ur>der th'e Agreemerd arid »tabl>she"s .a process to rneet those needs..

10..? The' Conlraclprishptl fuDy .cooperate wiih' the State,'and shall promptly p.rpvide 'dciailed
iriformalloh to s'upi»ft the Tf.on5ition PJan ir>cludir>g. but no) limited to, any Iril.prmatipn Or'
dila 'rcgucs.ie.d by Ihe-Slate related to ihe'iermln^l'ion of ihe.Agreemchl end Tfp'nsiilb'rt Plan
er^ shall prbvWo ongoing"corrimunicaiion and revisions of Ihe YraiSsilion Plan lo the .Stele
as requested. ■

'ib.4 In' (he event)hol services under the Agreement, including but rto\ limited to ciicnls receWrS^
services yn'der the Agreement are l/ansillpned to havir>g services- delivered by .another
entity including coritraclep prp^nders or ihe ̂ lale. the C'onlracior shall provkJe a process for
ufiinierhiplod. delivoty of services in the Transition Plan.

'  -10.5. The .Conlfactbr shall establish a nieihoid of nblifylng clients aryf..other affected indMpuals
"  apoiil the" iran'.Silio.ri. -The "Cbhiractor shall inc.lude the propb'sed' cbmmiinicaiions .in" Its
' Transilipin Pl.an" is.vbfniiied.io the Slate as described'abovo.

2. Renew?!

"2.'1. The Department reserves the righl to orteri.d this ogreemenl .fof up to" two :(2} addjtldn.al yc^rs.
contingent upon' sdldfoctofv delivery .of sqrviws. agitable funding, wiitteh agrep.mlgnl bf ihb,
parties end approval of the Gwerrior 'and Executive Council.

pdfM C-i ' R'c^y^icepUci.is ib.SiAl.buitf C^jria cangua^ ponii.ectdr lnU.ott ̂

ci>tt^coio«w- Pi.ibc'io'i "O?!
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NoW'Harnpsfitre deportni^nt of Hcolth isnb Human ̂c^Iccs'
•  ■ Ejihibjtp

CERTIPICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLftCE REQUIREMENTS-

The Venitor Itfeniified In-Scciibo ̂ ".Vof ihc Geneml.PVovistons.egfeee to comply Wlh Iho provision? of •
•Soctions Si'S.VS'isO ofthe £)>ug^V« WoH(pl»ce Aci of 1988 (Piib. L. lOO-690rTrtle V. Subthte.p; 41
U.S":Q. 761 et'iegO. and "furU^r'agrBes to have. lhe"Contractbr;fi;rppfe5enWljve. as'idcnuricd in Sections
l.'l Vahb 1.12 oftha'Gcne^^l Rroyisions'execolo (he f^l6wlng..Certif(calibn;

ALTERNATIVE I -.Fp.R.GRAHTEES OTHER THAN INDlVJpUA.LS

US.:OEPARTMeNT O.F HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF febuCATION vCONTRACTORS
US pfePA.RTMeN^ Of AGRICULTURE • COffTRACTORS

This certtficBtion ts'f^ulrpl by the regulations imptem^ehling 5iect«.6ns.5i5V-.5l60o! the Qrog-Frce
WoAplace &"f 'i9M (Piib.-L. ld(«90;'.TKie V. SulstiUe D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el.sieq.). Th.e Jonuanr 91.
1989 regul^igns were dmended.^0nd pubiished as Po/fli of the.May 25. 1990 Federal R.^ister. (pages
2iWt-j?l69^).:0nd require ceriificaiibn.by grantees (arid by ihfereoce. sub«q»8plees and su^
pqntroctors). prior to e^fd. thai tbey will rnainlain a drog.-frec workplace. Section 36l 7.630(c) of the. •.
f^nuiajjoH brbvfddS'that a grahi.ce'jai^ by Inference, sub^'renlecs'c'nd.sub-conlraclors) that.is.e State'
fii'ay.^ie'cltdirhake one" cVftili«t»o'n lb thd. Dc'pb.'rbnertt in eachfederal fiscal yea''»0 li.eu of.certjf«^lM.for
elich"graiii'durin'gIhe.fe^ y^'arco^red,byih'ecerltfitaiidn. The'cerlincaleset'o.iitbeidwis.0'
rhetcriaj 'rejii^nlVlidri f.act u^n .WhicKVeliance Is.placed when Ihe.agency awards tf^' ig'ranl. Fejf® '
■^'rtificalronori^olatior^dthec^rt/fccation.shallbe.'grounds.forsuspensiondpaymenls. pusperi'sionrw
icrmihaiiw oi grahis, or'90.v€fnmen!.wide.su?b®nsibh or. debamient. Cor^traclors using this, form .should
■seiiditlo:

Cbrpmisaipner
NH OepartmcAt of Hoblth and Human Services
129 Piijfa'saol Str.c.et..

■'Coh'cbrd.'NH 03301-650.5

1. "Xhegranlee'cerlilies lhalll'.wiirpr vyil) continue to provide a drug-(f0e..w9fkpr?ce by:.
• 1.1". . Ru"biishit>d a ct^teme.ni noiif^'ng crriploy^s that lha unlawful mariulbctur.e. dist/.ibulion; .d'tspdnslng/poss'esslori or use'of pcontr'bllQd substance''is;prohjbHed in the grantee's.

wbrkpla.M end Vpvi.fy"f>9 will.^ lakenagyirtst erhp'toyees.for yidtetion of sucH
•prbhibllipn;

1.2. ;6stablishinQ an ongoing drug-free owareAess program to inform employees ab.put,
1.2^; • '.The danger's.ol dryg abus.e in the workplace;
1.2.2. T^c. graritee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
'i.2.3. -Any avyildble drog courtselirig. rehabitiiatlon. or>d crnployce assislar^ programs; ond

.  1.2'4..' TVepdrialUps^thalrn'ay be.irn'pb^ emplbyeesfof'drxjg abuse violations
•.bdbuiTlnd In (he^wbrkplocb: , ' . .

1.3. MakibV't.®'bquireWe'nlj employee'to.be engaged In'me perfprman^ of.t.h'e g'rant be,
•glyc'n d copy of the'.6l"$lem'cnt required, by paragraph' (a):

1.4. Noii.f^'rtg'the'^ptoyfee in lhc'slalemcnt n^uired by paragraph (a) thal.-;as.a cdnditipri qf
"erhplbymerii .under jlhe'Granl.'tKccrnp^
M .'4.1." 'Abida-.b/the jqrms of Ihc stalernenj; arid .

•  .-1.4;i' Nqtffy*jheympioiyrh.vw(Ungprhi?orhefConvtcltor1foravU)laUonoI'octimin0^^
•ilaluio bccuVrlng ln'iho workplace no later than fivo cqlendor da^;afler iddh'
.convictjop; ' . . . "

VS. - .Wptrf^'rtglheegenCy.m.wrttir^. whhin ten calendar.daysalterrece'rying notice und'er
•  sutjpa'ragrapH 'l.'A? 'fr'6m"ar;i.'erriptoj^ or olherwlse re'ccMr^ e.cloal notice of such con'pcUon.Emptbydrs.y'f.qo'nvicldd'pihploy^^ noiice., (ndudlbbp'Qsiiiori^tllle^lo.'eye.V^^^

bffi,cerj.dri^;oyoi§rd.ni;ect^ Ihp^cbnyidicd erriblbyed was wprkirig. unldss Faderal.'egericy

.'Exfiwib-Ceilifici^'Vc'a'a.raingO vcriOoi irttili
'Wofkpbce

..pu^j^Wu. 2
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New Hampshire Oc'parlment of Hoatt^ and Human Services
EihlbitO

has dc;tign[Btbd 8 ceiii/a) point for (he receipt of'euch notices. Notice shall include the
ideniiitcelion numbe/(s) dl.each affected o<^ht;

1!6. Tttki'n'g oiw .of (Ke/oiloviiyigdctibris. within 30 calendar days of roceivinor>otice under
sut^aregraph l.d,2. with respect to any ernployee.v/ho Is so convicted
V6.i. Totcli^ appropriate personnel action pgainst such en omptoyee, up to and inctuding

tcrmlnetion. wsislen! wtih.iho rcqui'rerhents of the Rehabithaljon Act of 1073. as
pmoftded: or

1.6.2. Requiring .s'uch ernplqyee id participate sali^aclorily in a drug abuse ass'tflance of
rehabitiiation prdgra/h approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
low.enlercem'eni, or.other opproprtste agen^;

1.7. Meking a good'fa.iih'effort Itf continue to mainlein a drug-free .workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2,1.3. l.^. 1.5, and i.6.

2. The granlTO may Insert in the.spacc provided below the sRe(s) for ihe performance of w'orX ddrio lf^
connecliofi wiih lhe s'pecKic grant.

Place of Pertofmancq (street eddrc.ss, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if.there ere workplaces on file'that ofc not identified here.

Vendor Name:

3Hl2n2n
Date

Tiite:
Manoi

CEO

cuoivonivo

Omt'oh o - C^iiTicuUon <'q>in'oing diuy fiyii
•  fteeutrcmeivj

'rj9e.2or2.

vcnoortiiiiial;

.DMo
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New Hir^'^hlfq.Delp^t^bht of.Heelth end Hu/niin Scrvi.cee
-  ■ ■ ^hlbue

CERTTRCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The-^cndor/denlifted in Seclipn i.3..of Ihe'Gfn^ral Proyljiona""egfwlo. comply .with lhc:pro>H.c|ofi
0  I M/^.RActriHinh« LObbyiOQ 'SHd

I in Sections-1.11

foOowing

US dEPAfttMENT'.&'F.HEALtH AN'O HUMAN SERVICES - c6/^Ra6TORS
■,US Oe^^ARYMENTrOF-GbUCAtiON.- QO?^RA.CTOP.$ =
VS.D6PARTMEf^',bF AbRlCULTURe • ^
Programs (iMi^te app.l.icebi.e program covered);
•'?f^>brafy ̂ siiiarKjg'tp Newy. F.dfnilles under TiUe fV-A
; bfriltf Sypport £nfpfcempnl>t^ram ui^er Tille IV-O
•^^VSe/yfcesBiock'Qreni Pr^^ ynde.r TKIe XX
'M^jceid iProgrempfKicr trile'XiX"
'Copimu^ifty-'Sbrvico.s Block <3ran\ under Title VI .
•phlid'Care develppfneril.BtotVGrant under-Tiiie

Thb'ynd^raigned^.ftlfies^. ib'the'^t of his or her knowledge'a^ beiiet. th^i:
1. .-Np.F.^crel opprppViat'od funds, hove boen'pali^dr wlii be'paid .by Qr.on.b.Qhali 6( Ut.e updersign'ed.Mb

pny person (or iri'flu^ncihg or'.Bltemplir^ to irillucnte en.offrcer dr.em^yee of ariy agency,'.a Member •
Of Cj9OT'ress;"\B.nofnie^ pf Cong'te?'s,'or en ernplpy^ of..a;Mem^r of Congress |n
cbr^ncclion wilklhe'awa'rding'of ony Fedpral.dontract. coniinyalion. renewal, amen^er)!. or',
.m.c^iiicaiipn.orany Federal c^niracl. preni. ioan.'or cboperaiivp ogrpcmenl (a.nd by spodific mention
■.&ub-g6nte.e or.suixontrectoh.-

'  ' ' ' .

'2. !l( Qny;hi'r^s dtl^r ih'dh'F^edersl .Qppfdprlaied funds have been'paid or<.w|i) bp paid (o.'ar>y person for
i.nflu'ei^nfl'pr\oiiem^ an;o(fi"ce/'.or embioyee of.any.a9'enty. a Member-ol Congress.-
ah p.W^'r or e^ksyW'yf.^bongres.s^^ on "employee pi a Mc.fri^r..cfC5)ngress"'in"clxinw^

• i;ederal .cbntt^.^granl.'ip^^ cooperdlive'agreement (e'lid by ^'p.ecific rhehboo pub-grB'h.i^e 'or'sub-
con^f3Ct.or).^lh.e^unders^■n^ shaJI cpmbtele'er^ ^wbral Standard Fprrn'tLi,. (Oiscipsure Fprm'tp'
Re^ii'Lol^^r^Vin-'dCpdrdahce^lh Its Inslructtons, snached.,8hd (deniifi^ as .Standard ̂ .xhibit E-l.)

■ 3'. The undersigned shpll reguire.ihat Ihe.^language of this certificol.ipn be included in iKe avrard
docymeni for sub-awards at all iiars'^in'cluding sutKorilrads. sub^rants.''and contracts fjp'd.b'r.grppts.

- loans,' arid cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shatl certlfy'and di$cl6$.e'.^C9.rdingly.
This fce'rt'ificpiipn'ii.a.maleri'al fdpfe^n^ bl fact upon whlchi.reliance was placed when this l/ansacllbn
wa.s fhode■p'r'e'iilb'rpd Inlp. ''^u^ission.df.ihlsbertlfica'iion fe prere.qu'^ite ,fdr ma.king'^or enle/ing mlo'.this

.I(an89;clipn';uiip^e^^ b'y\iSec|'i^.'V352^ U.S.-.Cbdc. ^y pters.o.ri'w^ farls'.lb nip fh'e'.fequlr'ed
;.cerbRcelipn"sli'all.bo.'6y^^ civil ̂ nihy of n'ot (e'ss ihan.SIO.Obo.an'd o'ot.m'ore' than SlOO.OtfOfpr
•each Such failure'.-'

•Vendor Ni'rpe: . 1 •-••o . . ■ •Gwf^tWl^tuSe^,!^,\OG,.

'Oa.t^

sivhrah.^t-Ceni&uiipiiR^k^iiiyLubi^ . vondor^iniiah
. ^ • t • • 'J •. «. V I:pucweJ.(»4r'ii'; 1 of. 1 ^ Dsto
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'N'ew.HampsMre"D.e(>8rtmoht of Health and Human Servipes
Exhibit F

CERTinCAtlON REGARDING PFBARMENT SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The yehdbr kjerii^iod in'S.od'idA i.3 oMhe Genial Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
ekeci}tivcpffiM 6f;lheJ?^^ Order i2W?'and 45,CFR Part 76 r^arding Ocbarmcnt.
^U6^t«ii?n, "a^iid pthis? Rei^n'slblliiy l^hcr*. and-further' agri^s .to have the Contractor's
rtpr^^taliyiiyas idc'ntffi^^ in ̂ wti'ohe l.i"l and'1.'12.01 the GeheraJ Provieions execuieiho follbwing
.CortififcalWb;.

INSlWUCnONS FOR ceRJiFlCATION ' • .
1. By eigh'ing end fepbrnittino'thiipr^'ssl (contract), .the pfospeclrye.primory participant is RroVidintf the

■  certincaiion set out telpW; ■ .

2. The inabiUry.oi a person to provide the cerliiication required below win not necessonly rcsUll'ln den^i©('^■"rtjcipiLon in th'is.cdvored 'irensaction. Il necessary, the pwpccti've parilc.ipanl she'll s'y^il.ari
q'xplanatipo^t"why It'pahnorprov^'e.thc certification, the ce'rtificaljon or expl'onalion vhl) be"

• cdnsaeVia in'connection with the NH Departmervl of Health and Human .^rvlces" (OhHS),
dolerniinalidhvJhether tp o'nlci into this transaction. Hqwcvey. .foiluro of the prospeclrve primary

•  pq'rtfcijianl to.'furnish ecertIflca.Uo.h or oh cx4)lar«tior> shall disqualrfy such persori from participaViOn in
this Iran'&a'btioh. • ,

3.

4.

The certification In .this'clause Isj a material .representation of fact upon which feliqnie woSpiac^
.w^hOHHS'determirved to ehier ihlq ihls lfansacti.ori. If it is lal'er dct.efmjned that the. pro's^clw
pinery participant knov^iy rendered an erroneous certification, in oddilion to .other rcrnedles"
available to the Federal .Government. DHHS rhoy te'rmiriaie ihistransaclbn for cause.oi defouli.

The pfdspeqiiyc pfimiry participant sha.ll p.rovide immediate written notice lo Ihe.pHHS agency Id
wt^.'this'pr^sal (contract) IS sybniltted If el ony lime the prospective primary particjpq'nt lo.orns
that iii-certiflcatipn Waslerroneous when submilled o'r has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances..

• 5. The lerms-'covc.red transiclion.- 'debarred,/'"syspehded.*. •indigil?ic.' .tic.r coyfe/ed
iitn^ii.bn,'"•p8rticipanl.•^;■^»rs.dn.^'pfimary cijve^ Inansacl.idh.* 'p'rincl^l.' proposal.* i.hd
'voluntarily excli^o'd.' as used Iri (his clause, ha.ye' the, meanings sel.oul.in (he OefinJ^iqris pod
Coverage ec.clidns of the ruies tmpierhenilng Exw.utiy'e prdef'12549; 45;CFR Part 76. uie
otiachcd ddTinilions; '

'6. •T|W''prp,5"F^liva primary parliclpani pgrecs by sutyrilttlng this propose) (cqnlracl) that, should the'
0rop«ed cq'yeied Iransactioh te,entered inlo. it .shall not knowingly enter Into any idwcr tier covcrpd
l^nsact.ion with a {priori v/h'o Is debarred, suspended, declardd ineligible, or voluntarily excluded

'  'frcm' partici^tlpn In ihi's'^v'er^ transaction', unl'esi authorized by DHHS.
7. The prospective primary participahl.furthcr agrees.by tubmitlirjg this proposal lhal il wilffnclude the

clause tilled *'C.«rt'.ificaiipn R^aiding .Debarmcnl.'Suspension. Iriellgibiirty and Vpl.uniary Exclu$«ci.h r
Lower'fwr Cd^rdd 'Tr'^sartlbris;' provided by OHHS; WithcKfl m.c^incatiori, in all lower ti^r doyeii^d
.transactions ond in d!) solicitatipns Ipr lower tier qo^red, trertsectjons.

.0. A pariiclpani In a covered Irensectipn .may retyupono certifrcalion of a prpspeclK/c participant in a
lower tie7.covered l/ansection that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or invdlunlarily pxduded
•frl^' ihcicpyeVed.'i'renM "unleSs ft knpv^'ihol tbe^certification is crrorieous. - A pa'rticipeni m.ay
••d^dde tfio rnethdd pnd'fr^uehcy by vyh'«h rt dqlerrhines the eligibility of Its principals: lEfi'ch
p'aWcipant may. bul'.ls holyequl/cd lb, check the'f^nprdcurcmenl List (of excluded parties).

.9. •Nolhlng'cdnlaihed in the■fofegdi.rig shali.bb cbnslnjed.tb require .estabilshmenl of a system of records
•inprder'ib'fend.eplngdbdfa'jlh;the;cc.rtific^i^requi.redbyjlhisclausp. The'Kribv.vtedgee'li'd

r~C<(iiriuiionRcgo)diiig bet^'iicid.-SvspenS^lon yci.iOtfi ir(u
/y« Olhcr RttporcWI.iJy Matifiis

cuOH^to/b' rfijaiol2. to'DjI o
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New Hanipihirc OefeartmehVlD* HeaUh An Human Sc^.ices
" ' ' ' Exhibit F

' infoffnaiton oVa jartlclF«ni is n^ reiguifed tpiexceed that which is normafly possessed by p^ph^em;
person In the orclinafy bours'e'of buslnets'dea'iii^s.'

• io. &tcept,fQr treiisi^ohs-eirt'ho'rtzed^ po/ograph 6 ot Iheso insl/ociions. if e participant in p
cbve'fW tVari^djbh'knQwingl^^^^^^ info b lower tier coyericd transaction with a person who'©
isvispjend^. dVbarT^i irieiigiblc.lbrydtpnta/ily.exd from participslioi) In this.lrans^.leH,.ln _ ^
PddHlpn to bthyrrVriMics" available to"iSe'f^odpiai'QO OHHS may terminalo'this trenseitibn

■ for ca.use "qr ̂ efaylJ, ■

PRIMARY COVERTO TRANSACTIONS

^ 1 i "tfieiros^ii^ primajv.'psfticipanl certifies to the best 61 its knowtedge ond belief, that « pr^ its
prtncipais; ' " .

■^^".npl presenlty debarred, suspervdcd. proposed lordebarm.eni. d^larW in^figible. 6r.
v6tunlarity":e*cbd'ea'f Irarjsaci.ions by any Federal dcp^rt/n.ent or.'^'er^--

11.2. hav.e noi ̂ ihin a three^year ^rtod prec^ir>g thisprbposal (contract) been convicted of or .had
a.civH judgmcni rendered against them for commission of fraud or e criminal offewe'in "

tqObtain. orpcrformjng a public jFedefdi. "'Slate or local)
.tfans8^.dr! pyb.lic trarisbclion;viqtaiion'of"F^eral or'Siale-anWrusl•  sla'tuteV'df.clortiMrt^ ^mob^lem'entl theft, forgery, bnbery. fahHiiceiion.or desiru.ction of
fw^ofds. mbi'ing faiie Vtaiemb^^^ ^

1V9- •9'!b'n9l prcs6nlly Indlclid ifdr othefwija 'criminaify or cWlly charged by o goVerrynental e^nili'y"(fe^'^l.^.^ialb^i?"r'l^!).V?h'^^ ®"y the pffcnicsenunieraied »h paf^^graph^fb)
.'of l^iis t'9.^fita!.l6n:-"br^

11.4. haye noi'.vvllKin a'lhree'y.ear period O'.qccding this""0ppiico.lioiypfopbs8l had one or rh'orp'pubjlc".
■"" irar\'secti6ns'(Fcdcf6I. .Stale or tocaO (errninalcd (or cause or'detoul).

'12. WtWfO iho prospective primary pariicipanl is unable to certify to ariy of the statements In this ,
. ce'riificatibh. such pfos'pcctiveiparticipanl thall attach en explanalio'n to ihis proposal (contract).

.LOWER TlERC'o.^fitgt^;-ir^NSAC^ ■ , .
■ I3.*0'y feigning"phd sutJrni^ng'XhU lp^'r tier pi9pp'Ml.(cbnlracti). the prospeptive^tower tier pia'rticlparit. as

d«f»n.e<| <n'^.S ibrt "Rart'.tercenilies lo.lho best of iuk'ndwte^'e;^?^^ bej'ie'l.thal it^nd its" princijlials':'^are'rvbt p'feie'nily.''d^ proposedfo'r"debarTner\'!:,'decl3tedifi'Dl)gi;b|e..6f:
•  '"" .vpi'unlarily excluded f'rom'parlicipaiion'in this transaci'ion by any federal departrnent or agency.

'•13.2. whe're'thb pfospedwe'iower'lief partidparit is."unable'tocertify^lo.ony oftho aW\n&.
" " ' pnMptctlve particTpji'n't'^shall.aitech anexplanislion lo ihis'i'fopbs.al(cbnifact).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (conlract) l.hat 'it will
•(n'ciudcthi5"claWc,6'nliUed'*'pcrt'iric»lionReg8fding Debarmenl. Suspension, Ineligibii'rty.'cnd .
ydiu'nlaiy Eyfluilon • Lbwef Tier Cp^^ered Transactions/.without mi^lficBlionln ell lower tier covered
l/eniiactidriyflrtcl W 'all solicitations for tower tier covered i'ransaciions..

yer^dpr.Na.me;. . .

^H)' • jc^A\/yu>^
Dole Name

Titto:
\o

K\v\h.

■.'odd ucvi'to'/.iS' P*9®.7. 9^ 7.

Esi'iOh f s^pv««)oii ycnow
PVde'aerra • • . oai«
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"New HampShlre bopertment of He*Uh and Human Services
ExWbitG

CgRTlFldAtlON OF CbMPLiANCE WITH REQUIREMEMTS PERTAiNINQ TO. .
FFDERALHONDiSCRlMlNAUON, FQUAL TREATMEMT OP FATTH-BASED OROANlZATiONS AND

^  WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECnONS

The Vendof idehllfled in 'Sedion l.'S of the.Ge.neiarProvisions agrees by signature of the Cpnlfactor's
rc^fesentaliyelaVid^t^'n SetilpAs bnd ̂ ^2 of the General Provisions, to execute the foi.K^wing
.ccitjficatibn;.

Vendor wiJI ?omp,ly; qrid, will rwulr'e any su^fantees or subconiradDre io compty. with ony appiicabio
fodcral iKnd(scfim|neb'Oih f^uireftiinU. whi^ may Inciyde:
. me Omnibus Crime Coritfol and Sale Sirools Aci ol i968-<42 U.S.p. Section 3789d) which"prohibits
reop^nls ol ferJerol fi/nding under-lhis stdiule from'discriminating. 6ah^ in.^ployment pradic« f>r in
(he delivery of ser^,cs or beneft's.' on (he basi.s of face'. Mior. refî on, nallorial origin, and se*. The Ad
requires cdrtain recipients to prdduce an Equal. Eny)loymenl Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act oi 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section ̂ 72{b));which ddopls by
reference iho civil r'ighls obligalibns of the Sefe SVeeis Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
Staliiie are p'rbhibiied'frorn .discriminating, cithef in empto^eni practice or in the delivery .of.service^ or
benefiu.'on the bas'C'pf recc. coi.or. religion. nat'iOAal origin. and sex, The Act ir>cludes Equal-
EmplqyTrieM .Oppqrtumty Plan rfequircrhcnts:

the Civil Rights Act bf .19W (42-U.S.C. Seclion'20ti0d. which prohibits rccipicnls of federal rmandal
• assislance.fr^'dlVcrimlnailng bnthqlMs race, color, dr natlpnai origin in any program or aclivily):
. the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Secliori-794). which prohibits leaplcnis of Federal fin5(ncla»
assistance from discrimiAaling on the basis of dl«bilily. iri regard to employnienl a.nd the delivery ol
•services or beneris. in any program o.r 8clivl.ly:

-the Amcr^ns with Oi'sabliilies Acl of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections I213l.34j/vyhich prohibHs
drscriminaiion and ensure? equal opportunity for persons with djvb'li.ties m ornployment. State arxJ local
.gbyernmcnfservi.oei. public accommodations, commerciai facilities, and tmosportalidn:

the Educatiori Amendmenti'<il-ld72 (20 U.S.C..,Sections 1681.1683. l6?5-e6). which prohibits,
.discrvnirtaiipridnlihe.basi's of se'xiri tederaily assisted education programs;
. iho'AaeOiscfiminatton Acl"ql.197S ('42 U.S.C. Sections 6105-07)", y/hfch piohibils discrimination on the
basis of agajf) program.s or ac.liviiies rec.oivlng Federal financial asstslarice. it does o6i Include
ernptoymcnl discrim.rn'atiph;"

- 28 pF.R. pi-31 (U.S. Qepartmeni of Justice Reflations -.OJJDP Gr'anl Programs):-28 C.F.R. pt. 42
•  (U S .Ocpartment of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminqlion: Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
-and Procedures)- Execirfive'Ofdef No.-13279 (cqVal protection of the laws for faim-based and .community
' orgariijaiions): Ei.ecullve .Order No. •isisg.-whjch pfovjcfe fundarnental plirwples and policy-making
'crTteriq for partn'erships with faith-based and neighborhood organ'ttalions;

.•28'CFR pt-38(US Department of Justice f^egulalions-Equal .Tre.atmeni for.Faith-Basqd
•Oroanizafionsv'^d Whlstiebldwe/pfoleclions 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Nalior^l Defense Au(hori2dtioo
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 26t"3 (Pub. L. 112t?3l enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program .for
enhanCbmenrof Contract Employe WliislJebiower Rrblections. which protects employees against
reprisal, for certain whistle'.bidding aciiviiiesin connection "with federal grants and conuacts.

.  The cert'ificale s.el oul below is a material representation ql (acl upon which reliphce.is placed when the
.ogerKy awards the'gfani." Fpise.c.ertificilion or viqialioh pf the ceitrficaiiqh "shall bo groynds.fqr
•"su'spe.rislon of payments,• suspenslo.h or lerminatibfi of 'grants, or government 'wide suspen'slon'or .
■dcb'arrTiehl.

CtfitbliG
Vendor

«dVNKtaAJ9.«»«oeflr<V .U >>

■■pioeiof2 OW
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\

■In'^e ia^nt a F^j^jBl;^/Stile <wud SiMe admlnlslrative.'agencymaXes afindli^ of •
'0isc^iha;lpo ̂ f^rydua process Heanng on the-grounds of race; cpjor.-religion, national sex-
.^ajnst'arK^i^^niW will forv/ard a copy,of the rinding to the Offtce for bi^l.RlghU.-to
tihVet^li^'^'cpnti^^n^^ oge.^y^'diviscoh'wiinin lhp.Oepartjr^ntdrHeslth ei>d Human Services, and

Human Servieei OfHca of the Ombudsman:

Tt»..yondor.Wentlfie'rf ih.Sidipf! the General Proytstoni ogropslby signature of the.'Cphtraclbr's.-
r^e^ntatiye'a'videntiri ih'^ciioris.l.'ll -and 1.12 of the.Generai.Proylsior1S..(oexecute tHe'foiibwfng
certifiMHipn:

I • 6y signii^-ond submining this'proposa.l (contract) Ibe-Ven'dor agrees'to comply with the .'provisions'
.Iridcated above.

.VendorName:-.

oate jom Ma nti

= ceo

EiilW 0
Y - ■ • V H Vendor InUj.. .. , ,-.CtftaecOenateroM^avii'^vnTOpounnon.rfMil'uvNoViin^twt.

"

■'"OaiQ:
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.CERTiFICATfON REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Low Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, abo known m the Pro-ChiWre.n Act of 1994
(Act), r^uires 11^ jmoicihg hpt be^ pc/initted in any portion of any indoor fTOlity owned Of'leas^ or
Ciontracfed for bVen" entity .and .u^ r'oWio.e'y for'the provisior> of health^ day care.•^ucalion.
.6r libraiy.Vcfvlcee to undbr'the age^of 18. if the aeryiccs ore funded by FedWal, programs erthar
dlr^y Of ihrp'ogh Slate or local govcmmer^ts, by Federal grant..cdnlraci, loarv. or loan guaranle'e. Thd

^mWAi/4 0AtAlti Hu

81000 per day end/or Ihe jmjresliion o.l an administrBlive compliance order.gn the reiponslblc enlliy;

The Vendor identified In Seci'ion 1 .'3 of the General Provisions agrees, by sign^urc of the .Contr^or's
fepresan'leirvo as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the fbtlo^g
ce'rli^tioh:!

1. 8y sign'ing'and suhrrthing th^s coni/acl. the Vcrdor agrees to make reasonable efforts to compty with
en appticobl.a provHleni of Public Law 163-227. Perl C. known as the Pro-CHildrcn Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

Dele No

5SEVt(ES, lex

CUOMOrtl07|)

£jd AhV H r 6;TC&c»(>on.Rc9Aiekvj
EnWmneWsl TobtCCO Smo^a

Page 1 ol 1

V«n0or.rnrv9l3
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EihtbKI

HEALTH INSURANee.POf^tABIimr AND ACCOUMTABILrrY ACT

'  BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT
:  ■ .. . . . . . f "

The Cpntracipf.ldeniiried in S.ectjon V3, pl ihe GeHefai.Provlisibhs of the Agreement agrees to
tom^iy irisurence Po'fiebility and Accouriiabilily Act. Publid Law 104-191 and
With the Sjtandajnds tpr'Pn^ Identifiable Health Informabon. 45
Qf-R Pafts;l60.'i3hd 164 pppjicable'to'business associates.- As defined herein, "Business'.
Assodete'"shall me'sh'(he.Conirac(or>8nd subconiraciprs end agehi's.of trt.e Contr^ptoV that
rfepefve^ UM Of have'agcoss-lo^pfole^cd.hp.aith infom^ailon und.e/'ihId,AQre.ement aWd '<D
Entity* shall mean the Pf N^,Hampshire. Qepartm.ent of .Health arid Hurrian' Se^iceS.

(1) Definitions.

8; haveihVsame-rneariing as the-term •8reach*'1n.sectjoh iM'.402 of Tilie-4S. .
Co'de.df Federal Regulatid.h's.

b. 'Buslness-AbSbclate* has 'the meaning given such term in section-160.103 of Title 45; C^.dde.
of-FedeKal Re^ulalions.

c. rcovefed'Entity'-hasthe meaniriQ given such (e/m In seclipri 160.103 of Title 45.
•Code of Federal Reg.pldii.dns!

d. ^Designated-Record Set'shall have'the .same" meaning as the term 'designated record se\'
.in'4"S.CF'R;-S^;Cll6ri 1.M

IB. *pata Aboreqati'dn' "sHali have the eame.meaning as th^ lorm -Hata ongf»gat;An'-;n it; rcp
-Sed.liori 164,501..

f''- "Heatih.Cpre^Qperations' shall hp.ve the same meaning as Ihfe term""h"e3lth "care operations* '
in 45CFR' Se^lOft'.164.;S01.'

.g. 'HITECH Acl'-meahs the Heallh InfdfmatjonTephhologYfor Ecohorhic-and plinipbi HeaUh
-Act^Ti.tjeXIII.-Subiitle Q. Pai1.-i & 2.of.the American Recovery arid Relnveslrfient Act dl-
••200'9. • - •

H. mearis'the.Heal^ Ins'urancG Pbftability.and Accounlabiiity.Acl of 1996. Rubllp Low
1p4-'l^l,"and ih'e Slan'dards fo/Privacy and Security of .Individually identifiable Heatih
Info.rmaiidri, 45 CFR Parts-166,'-162 arid 164 and amendments thereto.

.i.- "Individual'- shall have the sarrie meaning as the term rindividuar in 45 G.FR Seclipri'1'60",.103
=and.6h?ll .lnplude:$ person y4ioqyaiifies as a perisonal ffepresentalive.jn'bccbr^arice vUih.45
CfRSeclldnM..64.601{g) ■ "

J.. •Triv3c/F^blp*:shall "mpari'^h'e.Slahdaids fp.r Privacy of IndWidualiy Identrfiable Health
■|rifb>mp"yb.ii^af45 ^ and 164. prorriu.lgaled under HIPAA by the Unil.ed''.$tates-
.Qbpartfberil flf Health "and Hunia'rS'Se ' - '

k. ''Pftilect'e^ Hcgjth li^fom heve;i^;^same meaning as the teirn 'pfoie^.ed'heal.th
•information .in 4,5'CFR;Sec.Ho'fi 15pVi.03. (inrihe.d to the..lnforriibt'b!n created.'or re.p'eiv^ ^y
Buslness^^ssbcialeTrpm 'or On -Wehaif of Cpvcfed" Eriii'^. ' ' '

.^'{^11 . . . Cort'traci'or
PwU^Uiy'if^ •^. T- • •

buamiS ^oe>nci^'
P^'e't ^ e' ■ ooii



DocuSign Envelope ID; D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787E8B2ECCO

DocuSign Envelope ID: C70CE28F-FA74-4BBC-8980-e4C9CEF289BE

Nw Hampshire DopiiftniqnI.of HoaHh and Human Services
Exhibit I

I. •■Rt'nuiradbv Lay/shall have ihe same meaning as thp lerm -required by laW in -15.CFR
■Section 164.101

rri. -seerelarv^ shjll mean iKq Secretary ol the Departmentdl Health and Human Services or
hl^er ddslgnee.

n  -Snnuritv Rule" shall meah the Securlry Standard, for the Protection or Ei^onic ProtectedHealth intormalion at 45 CFR Part 154. Subpan C, and amendments thereto.
.  Prntenind Health Inlormation: means protected health inlormatlon thalMs not

secured Iw a techhology standard that renders protected health mlomiation, unusable. _unreadable' or indcijpherabie id unauthpriaed individuals and is developed or pndoi.^d by^S^;S^6aniib,ion that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

■n nthrr DefinKions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the rneariing■ Si?heS under.45 C.'F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164. as amended from l.me to time, and the
HltECH

• Act.-

(2)

a.

Ar^pclate Use anH nkctosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associale shall not use. disclose, maintain o; transmit Protected Healthiriformation (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
^hibrt A ol the Agreeinenl. Further. Business Associate, including but not limrted to aU
iifi'directors officers employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any i^ahner that would constiiuie a violation of the Privacy and Secur.lty Rule.

b. -Business and administration.of the
II As'required tiy law, pursuani lo thc terms setforlh inparagraphU b€low..Of
..III. For data figgregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.'

■c TO thaexteni Business Associate is .perrhttted under the Agreement toRiitinpss Associate" must" obtain.- prior to making any such disclosure.- (i)■ fc'irbre Sn^s bom t rhitd pany .ha?,uch PHI will bo held and
"used or further disclosed only as-required by law or for the purposedisclosed io-the third party: and (iiyan agreefnent from^such third
Associale in eccordart'ce with the HIPAA Pnvacy. Security, pnd-Rules of any bre'ache.s;of the confrtjentiality" o( the PHI, to the extent it has. obialrled
k V- L' .1 j X*lImowledg'e.^ of .such breach..
The-Business Associate shall hdi. unless such disclosure is reasonably neccssdry to

Pvhihii A oflhG Adreement. disclose any PHI m response to«
-and

If Covered Enti.iy objects to such disclosure..the.8u6!n ss

Con(/*ciorlnltia

Dfl

d.

•to seek appropriate relief.
gxMWll .

i-iisi:u'in>u'»nc« PortitfljiyAa
^rtU*»5"AMo<i>lc'AO'Mmcni

Pagt 2 ol6
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'.Eihlbitl

'  Associ^ie.'ish'jill rcfralh'from disclosing ihe PHI unlil Covered En.tity has exhaiisled "all
remedied

e. |f the ppve'red.'Enti^ n.qtrfies-the Susiries's Associate that Coye/ed ̂ niity has agreed to
be'bdund/byiaddlUqrtSl .r^^^ and, above Ihose.uses or disclosures or secu'%,
safeguards of PHi pqrsuant.lc the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Asspcjate
sh'alVbe'^buind by suqh adbiViooat restrictions and shall not disclose,PHI in violation of'
such 'dd.di,tlQh'ai restriobons and shall abide by. any additio.nal .security safeguardl
.  ' 1.

fi) sbbliqations and Actfviti'es of Business Associate.

a... The.'Business.Ai'sdclSte s.hall ribiify the ji^bvered Ehilty's Privaoy Officer imme'dl'atety
• aRef]lh'e; Bosin.fesV 3^3.^® of any use .or disclosure of prolectod

he>)iKinfbi^atloh riot prov'ided.for t>y the Agreement .including breached of unsfecur'e.d
brbteci'ed h'^fih lnfofmalio^ and/or any security.ihcidenl thai may have an Impact ph'ihe
pcbtecfed heafih inlbrmatibn of the Covered Entity.

•b. the Business AssocIale shail i'mmodjaieiy pedprrn p rls.lj^sSessrn'eni when it liecomes.
aware "ofiany-bf the. apove sUuaijpns." Th6,ri.s!|i..a»essrne.nt-Shaii incl.tide, but ri'bl be"
iimitejj io: . "

0 • The n^ture. and extent.bf. the; p.rolecled health infon7iation'lnvoived,-indudihg the
'type's.pf identffiers.ahb the likelihood of fe-ideniificatibn;

jd ■ Tbe unauthorized pferso'n used the protected health Infonm^lion or to whom the
• biicibsureWas'mad.e;- , •

' 0 ..VVhelhef'the protected health Informaiion wa.s actujally acquired pf viewed. •
o the extent to Wiich the risk to .the prolecled health Inforrnaiiph h"a$'.b'een

miiigaled...

' the Business Ass.obial.e §h3li cpmplel.e. the'rl.sk-as.se.ssmenl within 48 h6urS,of the
brp'ach 6rtd Immediately rcpbrt the.'.firidings .of the risk aS;Sessmeht in writing to'the
Coveri^. Entity". "

c. Thd'.B^sifiess'As.s^iale shall corh.ply with all secUons of the Privapy, Security, and
■8rea"ch Nolificatioh'R'uIe. ' .

d. Business Associale^^dll make availatile all of lis internal, pplicies.dn'd prqcedufesr books.;
•and records rela'ting.tq iine use.and disclosure'of'.pHi rbcei.ve.d frbm. or cre.ated:br
rec.elv.od by.thp .duslnesyA.w'ociale'oh behalf bf Coy.(5re,d;Enli.ty t9 the Secrciary" for
•purbbseS'pf.deterrhJnlng Coy^ Entity's .compliance'.wiih HIP^ and the Privacy and
•.Secuflty.;^yl€,.'

e, 'Bjjsiri'e.syAsso'ciatysh^^^ alVofJi's": business associaies'thal rece.i.ve.vuse or h.q.ye
;Vc^.s't6.^P!Ai undbr'tbb'Agreemeni. to agree ir^ writing to;,adhcre'to thy'same
'rystr.lctioin's 8nd.condhipns-'o.n the use and dlsclosore 'gl PHryoniamo^ herem/lncludinp
•tbe"=djiAy"to return or-dell/jgy..the.PHI .bs."pr.oVided under;.Sqdtib.n 2j...(l).!.'Th'e.CbyQVed^
•shali"'becon.sidef.Od'ajdrre(itthlr;b;party"'l»n.efic busjnew'ossbdaie
•agreemer^iyw^'Cdn^^^ 0ij!.5.in'yss'9ssbSlaj.ej|;.wh6 v/ill.b©.V0ceivia^HI

.•3r2b'i.4' .. . . ^Wl. Ceot.A'aw W'lh
l.lc^in >n^'ir^^;noruUii(y Aci.

3.'^ 8 ■ •
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Exhibit I - -

bursuanl'to this Agreemenl/w^ Hghls of enforcement and indemnification *r6^ such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 ol the.standa/d
conlr'bct'provislons (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure Of
protected health informatijon.

(, • Within frv'e (5) business days of receipt of 3 written request from Covered
fiuslriess Assodiate sh'all make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records; bOOK's. aglcemcnis. policies end procMures fciatlf^g to tho use apd disdosyre
of f^HII to'tho Covi'ed Enl'tyi for purposes of onabling Covered Entity to determine
'Business Associate's compliance with the terrns of the Agre'emenl. •'

n. Withir> ten (10) business days ol receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shatl^provide.access to PHI in a.pesignaicd Record Sei to the
Covered Entity, or as dire'cted by Cover^ Entity, to an individual in" order to m.ecl the
reqUirprnerits under QFR Section 154.524. .

h. ■ Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Ent^y for^n ■
amendment of PHI or a record about en Iridtvidu^l contained In a Designate Record

• Sei.'the Business Associate shall make sudh PHi availably to Covered Eiitity for
amendment and Incorporate any such ameridment-'tojer^ble Covered Entity to tutfill its
obligations ur>der"45 CFR Section 164.5.26.

I, Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHi and Informaiion related to
•such disclosures as would.i^ required for Covered Entity to resj^nd to a .request by en
Individual for" ar* accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
1&4'.520..

i  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for o
request for an accounting of disclosures of.PHI, .Business Associal.e shall make .available
to'Covercd Enliiy such'infqnnation as Covered Entity may requi.re to fulfill Its
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in apcordanw with 45 CFR
Section 164.520. ■

K  In the event any individual requests access to. amendmeni of. or accounting 6i PHI
direttly ffom'the'8usiriess:As$ociate'. the Business Associate shall within lw"o.(2)
business-days' foiward suqh request io Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility:of fjesponding to'fofwarded requests. However, "tf lofw8rdir>g the
Iridividu'efs re'quesl'lo Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy-and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead.respond to ihe.lndividual's request as required by such law a.nd notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as p.raciiMble..

I  'Wilhiri ten (10) b.usiness..day's of lerminaliori ofthe Agfeemerit. tor ariy reason,.the
Busine« Associ^lei shqll rdturn or destroy, as spd.cified by Covered Entity, all PHI
•V^.iy'ed'ff^m. or.cteated or "received by the'Rusihess Associate in connection.wlih the
Adr€'erh"enlVa"hd ihall not"retain any copies or bkk-up tapes of such PHI. if.rolum or
destructipn is not feasible, or the dispoiilion of the PHI has been othcfwise agreed to m
"thd Ag'ree'rn'eni". Business Associate "shall continue to extend the prote^onsof Ihq
'•Agreemeril.-.to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to
purposes" yiat make the retom"'of destruction Infeasible. for so.lo.r}9'as..Busme'^

I  ConlmdO' irtM
•3r2Pl4

&wjln«l/uVocl3tcAgiCCmCftl X . fn^'Jn<}r\
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Msociiile rnainlajhs such PHI. tf Covered Entity, in Hs.sole'discretion. requim's thal:th;e
Business ̂Soclatq destroy any'or all PHI. the Business'Assoclate shall certify to.
Covered Entity that the PHI has b^h dastroyM

(4) ObtlQatlons of Covered Erititv

a. CpVfered.Enift^ shall nou'iy Business Asscciaie ol.any changes or l»m»tatton(6) In its
Nolle© Of Privacy' Practices provided to Iridividuals in accordance voth 45 CFR Sectlort
,164.520; to the extent (ha.t such char>ge or limitation may effqct Business Assop'iole'^
use or disclosure.of PHI.'

1?. . Covered Eritity shall prdm^ notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocaiion
6rj«]i7n)ssion^j3rovlded to.Cpvered Entity .by individuals'whose PHI may be-used or
disclosei? .by'0u.6lnb's^ Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45.CFR Section
164.5.06 of 45-GFf? Section "164.500.

c. Covered, eniiiy shall prbrripity notify Business Associate of any restrictions pn the'usp .or.
disdosure' of '.PHI that Covered "Entity has agreed to in apcordaricb vvrth 45 C.FR.-1641522,

•  t"6 ttie ©*tenl that such restriciion may affect Business Associate's use or disdbsure.bf
F^H). ; ■

f 5) TermindUon for'Cause )

In additip'n to'Paregraph iO.'of'the standard terms and cbnd'ilions (P?37) of tfiis
;AgyjMfhbnt the'.fDov.ered ErStity may irnmediatcty tcrrfiinate the Agreernent upo.n C.overed
Entltjr'.s kino^^cie.of.a.breach by Business Associate.of'the Business Associate'. "
Agr^mcnt s^t forth'herein as Exhibit !. The Covered Enlity.rnav either immedialeiy"
le'rmiha'te the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business'As'so.clale to .Cure.the-

■ all^^'breach witfiin a iimefram? spe'cffied by Covered Entity.. If Covered Ehlify
dete/mines that.neither termination nor cure Is.feasible. Covered Enti.ty shall rep'ort.Ihe
violalipn to tbe'Se.crelary.

(6) Miscclla'rteous

.3- .Dennltidns arid Requlaldrv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein.
• shall hayb'lhe samo.'rneaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule.
ffom ti'fhe to" time..-;A refcrenceln the Agroemeni.'as amended to include .this" ExhibK l. id
a "Saction in'lhe.PrVacy and Securi'^ Rule rpeans the' Section as in effect or as
•emended.

b. ■Amendmeiit. Covered Entity .and Business. Associale.agre^.lol'aXe such action es'ls'
necbssary to.arnerid.lhe'Agfe'emeht.-frorn'time^to time as is 'necessary fo'r.Covered^^■niity'i'o'cprt^^ with the.cha.nges.in jhb r^uirerrienls of HIPAa, the Privacy and
Becuhly Rule, 'and .applicable federal an'd'state law.

»  " t .

c, . Data OwneirshrD. the Busmess Associate'acknowledges th'al.it he's no.ovvnership'rights
With respect to the "PHI provided by or aea'ted on behalf ot;Gdver^ Entity.'

'd.- imerpretalion.; The parli.e.s agree' thal.eny .ambiguity'.ln'lhe Agfe'cm'eht shall b.e"i^l\ied
jo p^i(Thlt'C.ovpVe.b 6.nU^ .cornp.ly wlh HIPAA. the Privacy.6.nd' Security Ruier

, EjjyblM. CpfttrxUoi'lniMt
PodBtrsty A^. ■ • . -

bojInoM A>S<!CialO ^re'cmenl . ■ ■
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Seoredatlon. If any lerm or tpnditiori ol.this .Exhibit I or the applicalion thereof to a.ny
'p€rson;{s) or drcymstance Is held irtyalid. such invalidity 'ahall not affect other terhns.or
xohdiVons vihich ̂ n'be given.effect wit^ Ihc.lnvalld ierTnorcor>dition;'to'thls.endthe
terms end conditlc^sof.this Exhlbii i ate declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
.destruction of PHI, extensions of the protectiona of the AgrcerT>cnt in soclio.n (3) 1, the
defense a.nd indomniricatlon provisions of section <3) e ar^d Paragraph l3 o.f the
standard terms-.and conditions (P-37); shall survive the terrhination of Ihe Agreemeril.

IN WitNESS".WHEREOF, 'the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

\l\X?5TO\Ofipatlm.enl of Hea'llh arid Humah Senrlces

: State ^

'ikV/j

Name

Signature of Aulftri^d Represenlalive^^sSi^lure ot Authorized Representative
j&lL

Name ofAuihofizcd Riapresenialive Name of Authorized Represejiailye

o^fK
TiUe of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

—-

yzou eiNtfii
i-HAiih in»i.r4oc^ Ai3
A»nim» Auodate.Ai|ic<iiiw'ni

Ptgc 6 ol 6 '

Conl/HCt'or ln(l)«tr^
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GgRTTFICATION REGAROING THE FEOER/iL Plifi|DNG ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA> COMPLfAWCe .

The Fed^_ Funding A^untsVrity end Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of indnndual
F^ W grdirits/^ $':25.6ciO and swarded on or eftcr 6c1t^ i ; 2010. to report'on
d'aia b'exKuthfe com er>d BS&o^ii^'5Vst-Uef $ub<9r8nls'of.S2^,'000 oVnrHm.if't^e

swaVd Is ̂ >(^'$,25,000 b'y^^ g^rit rriodrficeUons.'nesuli in e iqiel ewa'rd equal (o or over
-'$2S.(l!9P..'th^ diW^ ̂iO^eci Vo tne. FFATA'rcppit).ng''r^ui.remcnt5. as of the date 'of the award.
J'n',8ci^darid6.with,2.!CFR ̂ ad'ltd.fReporti'ng Subaward ahd.Ex^'tive Corhpensattoii Inromtatibnj. the
pejw^ehl'o^ Hd'oJih'end Hu^an^Servi^;(OHHS)must repoirl the'-foJi^ng Infprrnebon for eny
subp^rd 6i. bohtroct oward'subjdCt.to the FFATA reportino i^utrements:
1. Na*fT* Of entity ' ' " '
2. Vho'unl ofW^
3. Furling agency
.4. .NAICS.qode.for coritracb / CFOA prograrii number (or grants
s; Prbgrariri'sbufoiB
6. Aw^ .'tffe.de^ipt^ of the puilWsa.df the funding action
7. Locabqn'pft^oHtity
0. Pnnd|cjepla'»'of-p«e'rt6
.9. Uriique'idenljrier'bf d:ie'cr>tfty'(btJNS',0)"
■ 10. Total q^p«r^dt}dn 'Dn(j.r^rh»^ executives it
" -iO/i! vMqre.thah ahn^ai.grt^ reV^uei ere .from the Fedqrd) govqrnment. e^ those

.'reven'ues arVgreater't^n S2SM annually and
10.2. Compe'nSdUon'Intannatibn'is rtot ejready avatiatsle through reporting to the SEC.

Pji'me grant recipionU must submil' FFATA required data by the' end of tho'monlh. plus 30 days, in which
i^e ev^r^.or.owdrd prneridrnen't Is rnadq.
Tlte (^nim^br'jd'entifiqd. in 'SecUqn T.-S' of the'General Provisions agrees to comply with the provision s of .
Th'c .Fodibial'.Fu.rvdir^ Ai^ubtabil^ Transparency Act Pubrcl'aw '10^282 end Public Lew 110:252.
bnd 2 CfiR Part 1:7p^'(8§ji^rig/l5uti4ward end Exccutive'^mpq'nsalion'lriformati'on). and further agrees

'■tip haye'thd C^nli^^qr'$;i^p're'sentatiye;^ (dpntiTiedIn'Sectidns 'l.'I'i and i'.12 of ih'eGene^ P'rq^sibns
exe^te the fplfd^rlg C^^rtficat^:
The i^lqW nami^d'C^h^cior ̂ r^s to proyid.e n^ded informaiion 'as pgtlinM above to the NH

. piepar^cnt ̂ 'l^alth and Hiimari. ̂ f^ces ap.d id qpmply .with'ell epplicsble pro^lpris of'the'F^.eral
Financial Accburilablii^ty and "Transparency Act

Contractor Narhe:

Pate A. mtSrurcNam

CfiD

iNCwiAuTiiHj

^E.tf|jMiJ-.C«.n/ty»Ue>AAesard'lneM CbiX^pf Iniliob
•AocwntibiB/And Tfimp'«ncy'_Ad'(PFAtA)'Compt^'cfl ■

W«Ki^ii67ii, ■ I ■= • Oai<^
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FORMA

. Aa thfi'CoritrgtlOf idcnl^d.iri 1 .'3 ;bf ih'e General f>rovisioni;i certify ihfli (h© rojpor^ses lo the-

.ib^lcrwtttted'qu^tionVard

1. The DUNS .nu.rfib^i^r. for .^uf is: _

2. In ypur'btfsiiS.oss or.o.rflaci'ttetionle preceding comp.loled fiscal year. dkJ your business orprganiialion
reciive O") 80 peiceni oV more, of .your annyal gi^s revenue in u.S.,federai.cphi73as,svbcontxMis.
toans, Qi^hts.-sut>:^ranfs, ph'd/jy cooperative agrdemenis: a.n.d ,(2) S25.060,000 or more in iannual.
grn'M revenues'from U.S. federal contracts. Wbcontr^ts. loans: grants, sut^ranis. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If ̂  ensv^f tpd.2 ab'd.v^Js NO. sto'p here

If.the'a/VsWei .lb Plaboy'e is YES. please answer the follov/ing:

•3, Does pt'e'pii.&llc haye access ibinformation about the compensaiipn of the cxcCuliyos inVpy'r
■ bojlnwi qrorganilatibn through periodic reports filed under 'scctipn 13(a) or" 15(d) df.the'.Securiiiqs
Exchange'Acl'of-iow (15 U.S.C.78m(§). 7'8o(d)) or sectipri 6i.0« of th'e.jnlemai Revenue.'Codciol
'igae?'"

NO ;yes

■A.

II (he ansy^r to P3 above is'YES. 'stop here. '

If the artswdr i6 I^.S.pbq'ye Is NO.'please onswc.r'Ihe folio\ylhg:
The ri^cs/and compcnsation'of.the fiye rriosl highly cotripcnsaled offl'ceii In ydur.tuslness or
crgdnlzsiion are as' fdiloWs:.

.Name: ,

Narne:

•Name:

Name:

Name:

Amoonl;

Amouni:

.Amount:

•Amouni:

Amcurii:

,CKn>**th

pWbJ J rt40Jt"dW>g U,»y Fv<Wiat ^wntflr>9 .Conujciw inuj
• AMowNiWY'And trsMpirvftcy Act (FFAta) Comptarw®

•ResfoJ'cf? 0?tt
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bHHS IniFofmation Security Requirements

A.. • Definitions

The following tenns may bo-reflected and have Ihe described meaning in-^is documcnL;

1. "-Breaph* means ihe' Ipss of control, -compromise, uhauthbrized disdbsyre.
unauthorized acquisition,' unai/lh'oilzed 'eccess. or any similar tenm referfiri^ to
situations ,v>h'ere '.persons .other-.than authorized userS. and for ̂ an'other iKa.n
a.'uthpHzed pu^se have access.or potential access to personalty- Identifiabfe
info'rmaliph. v^elher" physical or. electronic. With r^ard to .Protected Health
l.rifp.rmatio.n, •.Breach* shall h'ave' the same ri^aning as the term "Breach" In section
l!B4..402'pitrile 45.'Code of Federal Regulations.

.2. "(Computer Security. Incident* shall have the same rneaning 'Cpmptrier Security
Incident" .in section two (2) of N.IST Publicaiipn' 800-61. Computer.Securlty lncldbf}t
Handling Guide. -National Institute df Standards end Technol.ogy,' U.S.' C^partmehl •
of Commerce.

.'3. 'Conridentiai jfifprmatipn* ,or •Confidential Data" means pll confidential Ihfp^atio'n
disc.i.osed by one party to. the olh^r such .as .'all medical, health.'frnanpidl. 'public
assistance .b^ne^s'''^nd personal information Including without limitation. Su'bsta'nde'
■Ab.use; 'Treaimenl' Recordsi .C^ Records. Protected Health' IrtfoViriatJoh and'
Persphally Identifiable InforrhaUoh..

Corindenlial In'fprniation ai'so'includes any and all information owned .or ma.naged by
•the Sjiaie .6f NH • created, received from or on behalf of the bepa.rtment of Health an'd •
Hurhart' Services (OHMS;) or accessed In the cpunse of perfprmlng c'p'ntra'clfd;
services - of.wt^i'ch'collection, dl^losure. protecti.qn. and dispps'ttidn Is "govcrfi^d by
stjale orjfed.eral.'layy or r^ulatiqh.'This"informatibri .(nclydes. -but is not 'limhbd Ip.l
^rpiecled Heallh information (PHill. Persona.! .loform'ation" (PI). Personal Fin^'rt'clal
.Inforrhqilon" .(f^FI). Federal Tax Infomria'ilon (^i), So.cial Security Nunnbdrs (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), ahdpr other sehsitrve an.d cohndential inforrnaUon.

"4. 'End User" meap's.-'ariy person or enlity' (e.g.. conlractor. conlraclor's employee,
busi'ness ras'sbciaie, subcor^tractor, other ;downstrcam user, etc.) -thai receives
p.HH$ data oybbrivatlve data in-gccordance with the terms of this Contract.

■  .5. 'HlRM' rrieans Ihe .'Health Insurance Portability and Accourilat)ili.ty Actp.M996 an'd.the
.r^uialio'n's promulgafed Ihereunder.

6. t.lncident' r7ieans;sn acl that potentially vlol.a.te.s an'expii.clt or Implied .sec'uriiy ppli.cy.
whVch Includes 8tternpl$ (eKher failed'or successful) togalb-unaulhoflzed a^..^s id'a
syjiem py.i.ty daia.' unwanted disruption p'r de'niarof.sVrt'ice. the upau'jhb.nzed usp'.'df
a'-§ysl"ern f6r.the;p'r'oce«i"n'9 or.stg'rage.qf dalarand 'c.hahge's.tp's'^tern-.Ha.r^^
firrT^r'e.-pr jspftwa^^-characte'risUcs vvilhbul' the.ov^er'is knowledge. lnstAiclior>. ;6r
cbhseni.-iri'^dertjs-.include .the Ipss of .data through iheft'or device fnlspiacemeni'. loss
ofjhilspld.cerfi'ehVbf hardcopy .dbcu'menis.-and 'misfou'iing of physical-or eletlrpnic

vVuji uptJato 10WI6' J^UlK., C4ydfaaw'b 'fl/
OFJKS.inIoai>at)or> * •lit V

.S«o?<ly R^ulrc'merts
'ĥ y6f.9 ' '
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mail, all of which may have ihepoieniial to pot ihe data'at risk of unautho/izied •
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. *Open Wireless Network* means any ne^vof1^ or segment of a network that Is
hoi -designated by' the State of New Harnpshire's Oeparlmenl of Informallpn
Technology or ..delegate as a protected networV (designed, tested, and
•'approv.e.d. by' meahs of me Siele. to transmit) win be consld.ered .an 6p'on
netwo'rk and not d'de.quatety secure for the transmission of unen'cryptW PI. PFI.
PHI .pr confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Irifdrhiation' (or 'PI*) means information which can be used to distinguish
pr'trace an ihdividuai's identity, such as their name, social security riymber. personal
.'infbrmaHo'n as'defined in f^ew Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biomelhc rec.or.ds. etc..
.alone, or when pombined with other personal or idenirfying. information >^ich.i9 linked
or linkable to a-.s'beciific individual, such as dale and place ohbinh. mother's maiden
na.me, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the.Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Informaiion et45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated'under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

10.-'Protected Health Informaiion" (or "PHI*) has the same meaning as provided In the
d^inlliori of "Prolected Health infonnation' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

'11. "Securi.ty Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the ProleclJon of Electronic
P^'lecled Healtt) Information at 45 C.F;R. Part-164. Sub'pan, C. and arriendments
thereto.

-12. ''-Unsecured Prolected Health informatiori" means Protected Health Inforhnation that is
not-secured by 'a lechnplogy standard that renders Protected Health Inforrnalion'
unusable, .unreadable, or indecipherable to unauihorired Individuals end is
developed or endorsed by e standards developing organization thafis accredited by
ihe 'Americah National Standards Ins'liiote.-

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

'1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, m'aintain pr transmit Confideniial Information
except es reasonably neces.sery as outlined under this Gpniract. Further. Gpfi'traclo'r.
Including butTtpl limi'ied.to all its-directors, offic'ere'. employees and ̂ erSls. must npl
ui'c. .disclose, jriaifitairi or irdnsmit PHI iri any manner thai would conslituie' ayiolatibn
of lli'e-privacy arid Security Pule.

2. The .'Co'nlra.cldr musl not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5 Usivpdiieiowie .. aJjiNtK
pHHS Inl.ofiJWljtxi

Swirllr R»4vtf*niern6
-- .^goaoffi OdiA m
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request ifbr .disclosure on the basis that rt is required .by law, in response to a
/Subpoena, etc., .without first-np.tifylng OHHS so .that OHHS has an oppori'uhity to
consent or-object to the disclosure. '

•5. if DHhS notifies .the Contractor that DHHS has.a,greed .to be' bound 'by addrtipnal
restrictions-.over .end above those uses , or disclosures or secuHty safeguards of 'PH)
•pufiyaht-.tothe"f?riya'cy arid Security Rule, ihd Contractor must'be bouhd'by sbch
;add'ilj.pnal festflcli.pns and must not discJose PHl Iti vlb'ia'lion of "such additional
Vesiridiqns 'and mus.l abide by'any additional security safeguards.

4. The'-C'bntfactpr''.a'gffees lhal OHHS Data or'derivaliye there from di^losed to en ferxj
User must'only be'lised pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The ̂ohtractdr agrees DHhS Data obtained under this Contract may not be y'sed for
.arSy other purposes that are not indicdted In this-C^ntmct.

.6.' The Contractor;-.agf^(^,s .to .grant access to the data IQ IheraulhDrized 'represent'atlves
of OHHS fo.r the purpose bf inspertlng to.confiim .compliance with .Ihe'terirns'bf ihts
C.o.ntract.

I.l. M^OpS QF SECURE TRANSfWlSSIpN OF DATA

1.. Application. 'Encrypjion. If End .User is trarSsmiitirig OhPtS -data " contSlning
Confidential .Datd'between a'pplicaiions. the Contractor at'tesis the applicatio.ns^have
been ievaiyaled by ah expert 'knowledgeable in cyber security -bnd -that, said
application's encryption-capabilities ensure'sccure trahsmlssicn vla'ih.e inie/o'el-

2; Computer Disks'and.Ponabte-Storsge'Deyjces. End User rnay not use-corripulei''.disks
or portabl.e storage devices, "such, aS 'a thumb drive, as'a method of transmitting".OHHS

.  data.

3. Ericfyp.tcd Erhall. .Erid'.Us'er may only crnploy email to transmit CohTidenlial Oa.ta If
email is ericrv'pted and being sen) to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

.  4. Encrypted "Web-Sile; .If End User is employirig the Web to transmit =Cphridehlial
Ddtd. the secure socket, layers. (SSL) must be used and the' web site must be
secu.re. .S.SLencrypts.dala Iran'smilied via a Web site.,

5. File. Hoslirtg ^ervlces. also Knpwh.:as File Sharing Sites. End User-may not ;use -niG
hosting s'erV.ic.e.s. 'iuch -as Ord'pbox or Coogle -Cloud Slorape. 'to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. -.Ground Maij-Service. End User.may.oniy trahsmii.ConfidentialOala via cerTy/fapfgVp.und'
malj.wnihi'n the continental y.S.;and wher) sent to .a named indi'vidual,.

7. Laplf^pS' artd P.DA. If End -Use.r' Is -erhployirig portable deuces fo trbrjsmit
• Cphfidehiial Da^' said devices must be encrypt^ and pa'ssword'-proiected. •

'.^8. 'Qpgh'VVirelfos Networks. .End, User may not transmit Confidential Data .via an open

vs. L«)l.vo4alc.iafb^,t& .Ftf^l.K.. ContiKtolriilj
-6khS IfllofmoSbo

Seoiijiy fiegyiciTwoi'
jP9^ 3.of.® ■ ■ OltflL
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.wireless network. End User" must employ ,8 virtual private ne.tvyork (VPN) when
'  remotely transmitting'via an open vvireidss network.
•9,. .Remote Us.ef -.Cpm,muoiC8tion. .,if End User is employi^ remote corhrh'unicalibn to

acc^s qr irariSfhii Qpnfideniial Data, a vitlual private network ■(VRN) :mus.t 'be
Installed bri the End rnoblle device(3) or laptop from which if>formalipn will be

■  t/ariSmitted or accessed.

•lO. SSiH File Transfer Protpcol CSFTP). aiso.kriowh as .Secure File Transfer Prplocol. II
Ehd U^r IS'.e'nriploytng ah SFTP to transmit Cor>fidenl»dl Data. End User will

.stnjtture' the Folder and access "privilegeis to prev^t inappropriate disdbsure of ,
irSfgrrnation. .SFTp folder^ .and sub-foldefs used for transrhitiihg Confidential Data wili
be coded fof'24-hour autb-deielibn cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will tse'de^eiW ey^ 24
•hours).

1'1. lA^rele^ Devices. I( Er)d User' is transmitting .Conddeh'ti.pl Data via wireless devices, all
d.3t8 bb" encrypt,^ .to'brevent InapbropriMe disclosure of information,

I. RETENTION and DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derrvative of the.data for the duration of this
Contract. -After such lime,- the Contractor will have .30 days to destroy the data anp any
derivative.In whatever."form it may exist, unless, otherwise/required by la.w'or permitted
under this'Contract. To this'cnd. the parties rn'ust;

•  A. Retention

1. The. .Contractor-agrees it will not store, transfer or process data, collected in
connectio'ri .yrith the' services rendered under this Cdnlract outside of the United
States. This physical Ideation requirement'shall also apply in the impiementaiion of
dbiid cbmpyting, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes'ba^up
•dalb and Disaster Recovery locations.

.2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security rnonilorlng/capabilities .-'are in
place to deled p'olenlial security evenis thai.can impact .State of NH systerms
and/or Department ;confide'nliai information for cphira'ctor provided systems,

3. The .Contractor agrees ..to provide security awarene'ss'erid b.duc.ajion'.fd'r its End
'  Users in suppbri of protecting Depariment confideniial In.formatiori;

■4. The' Cpntractcr agrees to retain all electronic'arid hard copies ol Co.nfid'eritial Data
Iri'^b^^.cure iocaiion and'idehtiried in section IV. A.2

5. The'Corilraclor'i'agrees Confideniial• Data stored in a Cloud, musi -be in'a
"RcdRAMP/HlTEC.H compliant solution and comply .with all applicable' .sjaiuies' and
regulations'regarding the'privacy and security. Ail server$-and.devi(^'s';musi have
currently-supported and hardened pperating 'systerhs. .the latest 'fintj':Uifai; antj-
,hacker. 'ari.ri:S0am, anti-spyware. 'arid''0'nlj-mal\^r'e.utililiei.'The' dnvironrnenl, aS' a

V5.lftUtpd»lc1(VWl8 ..eiiyWK .■Conlqv.l.Of Iftlil
. DHHS Inlbrmaiion
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-whole, must.haye a^gfessive intiusiorv-det.ec.lipn and lirewal) pro.tectidn.

6.' The'Contrador-agrees to and.ensures its 'complete (Operation .Mth the .Stale's
Chief lrifdnnal.ipn Officer in-the detection of .any security vulnerability of theihbsting
infrastf.uciure.

6. OisposrliQri

•  1. .If the Contractor will maintain anyCorifidenVal Information on Its systems, (or jls
sub-contractor systerns), the Contractor will maihta)n a documented, proci^s for
securety dis^sin^. pf -such data'upon rcqyesi or contract, te'fmihaiipn'.-' ahd ̂ ii
obl'ei'n 'wri'ttdh cemfjcation for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
.Cdhtra!:^p.r o.r. arty.subcontractors.as a part.of, origoirig, emcrgericy, pnd or disaster
r.^ove.ry operations. When no longer in .use; electronic rhedia containing'.State of
NeW Hampshireda1a'$^ be rendered unrecoverable via d seciire Wlpe.
in atxbrbance'with' industry-accepted standards for secure deletion'and media
'l^nrbzatidn. of .otherwise physically, destroying the rnediq (for example,
.dcgauss'irip} as-described in NIST Special Publication 80.0-88. Rev 1. .Guid.el'nes '
'.for Media' SenitiMtion. National Inslitu'tc of Standards artd, Technptdgy.' M. S.
department ol Cpmmerce. The'Coni/aclof. wlll dpcunrient arfd certify'.In. wrltirig-.at
•time ofihe da^ jJeslructlon. and win prdvide wrrtierjTO.rliflcatidh'.lQ the' p.epar^ent
upon request!' the written .'cerlKicalior). ynil include all details necei'^^ry to
.derhonsirate'bdta has'be'en prppbrV destr.oyed a/id. valid.ai.ed. .t^are.'eppiicdbie,
regulatorV arid 'prqfe^iohal. Standards .for reteri'tipn fequifiemehts sWII 'be -jblntly
.eyalyatecl by ih'p.Statd and Conlfdctor p'ri'ol'to deslruclion.

j2,. Unless .-otherv^^"specified, wiihirt thir^ pO) days ol the lerrn.ination ol. Ihls.
fConlra'ct. iQp'nrra6(or.-agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data .using a
•.secure method such as shredding.

.3'. Unless'otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the lermirialldh of ihi.s
'Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all eleclrohic, Confide'ntial.Oala
by rhear^s o.f data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FO.R SECURITY

A. ConlractOr .a.Qrees to 'safeguard Ih'e OHHS Data rece.ived under this, Cprilract.-.and-a'riy
derivailve data .br files.*'as

1, The '.Cphtra^or ].wil| maihtairi proper security controls Mo pfolecl Oepai^bnl
cpfifi.d.enlial lnfp''rrfiatibb''.cpilected. processed.'managed, and/or stored in the deliyeiy
•of conlrSct.ed services.

,2. "The! .•C.bht/'aclOi; -will maintain policies and procedures lb. protect departmenl
•'confidential .infbfiT^ the Infcrrnatlon lifecycle, where •applicable, (from'
:br'eal)bn, -'t.farisforTriation. use; slorage end secure, destruction) fepar'pl.e's.si of .the
media use'^ to slore.^l^e da(a(i':e.. lape, disk, paper! etc.): ' '

• •• ••■• .••• ;"OHHS,tn,rb»^ii^. .
Scokiiiy KcoVroTitnts

PoflcSors ' ■



DocuSign Envelope ID: D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECCO

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: C70CE2BF-PA74^BBC-e9e0-B4C9CEF289BE

Nbw Hampshiris Detriment of Heal.(h;and Human Services

ExhibH K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The. Cohtractpr Will maintain-appropriate ai^entication-and a^ess-.controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Apartment cdntideritial information
\Ait(ere applicabte. - ' -

A. The:'Cor>lredor will ensure proper iecorilymonlloring capabilities are"' in place, to
' .detect • potential .-.Vecurity evertis that can Impact 'Stale of -NH systems .arWor

pcpa"rtmer>i confidential Irilormatlon for coniractpf provided systems.

5.. The.,Contractor will 'Rrovlde regular security awareness and education for Its End
tJse^'Insupport.of'prdl^ng Oepartmenlconfidential information.

.6.' If the C.ontrabtor^-.svil) b'e :$u^ontractin9 ariy core functions of the >engagernent
sup^hing tt^ senrices fo.r Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will .malrtt'ain p
pf^ram .of a'n ..internal process or processes that del^nes 'Specrfic'(s'ecyrily
expeciaHons.-,and monitoring compliance, to security, requirerrienis thal-at 'a. minimom
malch'those for:the Cont/actor. Including breach nplificati.pn requirements.

i. The Contractor .Ml! .v/ork with Itte.Depadment to sign erid'comply y^h aH'-appliceble
Slate of New Hampshire .and Oepariment. system acce^ .arid ..au^or:'(zaljo.n .pdlicies.
and prpcedufe5..'systems access forms, and computer-use agreements .as-p.art of.
obtairilng bnd maintaining access to .any Oeparlmenl.sysiemts). AVe.efhenis vrtll be
complet'ed.and sigpep by the Contractor and any '.dpplicdble 'suthconiraclors prior io
system achess .being .auth'orbed.

8. If the. 0.e|}'artmehv^dele'rmines Ihe'Contractor is a Business Associate .pursuant .to 45
CFR '1.'6.d.l63. ',t"he Contractor win execute a HIPAA Business Associate-Agreement
<B/^jWiti't.he --Qepaiimeni and Is responsibie for mainialnmg compIiai}ce with (he
agriiemeni.

9. Trie Gpntrac.tor.wil) work with the Department at its request to complete 'a System
Management tSurv.e'y. The purpose of the survey is. to •enab.le .the Depar1meht';and
Contractor to monitor (or any chartges In risks. Ihre.ats.' arid v'uln.erab.Hit(es.thai rri^y

, occur-over the life of .the Contractor engagement. The survey will pe completed
annually, .o.r an 'alicr'nale time fi^me bl the Oepartrn^nis discretion vyrth, agreement by
the .'Co'nlraclpr, br. :the Department may request the'survey be completed when the
^cOpe ol-the'e.ngagerrieni between the pepartm'ent arid the Contraclbf.chariges.-

10. The Contractor will no| store, knowingly or urikridwingly, arty State of New HampsHlre
' of'.Oeparjtrie'nrdata offshore .'or ouisidc .the bourwiaries of the .United. States-unjess-

• prl.Of. ekpre.Jis ,wTiiter1 consent, is .obtained from the Inforrnatipn Security ̂ Office
• leadership lirieriibeV wthi'n'the Department.

11.'Oet.ii!'-Security Breach Liability.' In Ihe event of any security breach Cortlraclpr. shall
niak'e. effd'fjs-to-investigate the causes of ihe.Jbreach' prbrflpily":take'mea.b'ii'^^
prevent .future breach and minimize, any damage" or lo"^ respliiftg ftpm ihe.'l^each.

't'he'.S.taJ.e sh.air.recbver.from ihb .cb.niraclorali ̂ sis of re'sp.on'se .and r'ecdyeiv'.ff&ni

-VS Lett lOWViS Eirilpii K. Cortlri'eibr l.n'dials
■ OHMS IftW/mlioft

Security R^uirpmonls
■paoeeolS
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(he'breach.:jnclu<finQ but not limKed tp:'.c/edil monitoring'se/yices. rhailii^g'co.^ts and
costs•as.socia|e<;| With website arid telephohe'.caii center SeiviceS'ri'eces^ry-.due'to'
the'breagh...

12. .Cgnlr^rtpr must'. .comply vyith all -applicable-^talutps ancJ/.eflula.llons re^af'dih^'the
priya'py' e^.'sec.Jr^ of '.Confideoliai ilnfo'rmalion, and must in all oliher respects
meinVein IhV prtya.c^ of .PI and PHI ai a level and'^cope thal'Is'not 'l.gss
Ihah'^lhe.l^yel. aodVscoj^e:-df requirenieViis. applicable, to federal egencies.. indlgding,
.bi^'Agl iir^ited to, prpvisibn^^^ of 1*974 (5 U.S'.C. §-552a),. DHH$
Priyacy ;Act Regulalio'ns (45 .C\FfR; .§5b). ' HIPAA Privacy and Security-Rules (45

^arts.■^i^O and 1.W) thai govern'drotection.s" for indiyidoatly IderiiifiiablVheattfi
.information and es applicable under state taw. > •

il-.'Contractor agrees-.to.^tabltsh and rnalntain appropriate administraiiye.-tMhnjQal.-iehd
pfiysl.ca.l safegpatbs id [proiecl the" conndentia.lity •.pf ihe.Cqbfidenb 'arid .to
'preyer)t 'uriauih^^^^^ usb"..br.bcdess to/it' 'The Sa.fe^ua.rds-rinysl pV6vrd.e..a.'jev.el:ar>d
8pq"p'©.,of-swuft^ ihal is'rio.t less^ihan.ihe leyej arid scope of s.eburity" r^uirernents
ei.iab.llshcd-by thb ^tale pf..NewHampsKire' ;bepartmerii of info'rmailon Techribldgy;.
RefCT-'to Vendor ResOurpeVPrbcurement .ai.https://vv^.nh.bb5'/doitArendor/irid.ex.tnl'rn
for ".the.* Qepartmeni of lrifpmn;aliori Technology 'policies, .guidelines, standards;: and
brpcyremeniirifoV.m'aiionrelating'tovendors! ' " "

,l.4..:CpntTa9l6r' agr'iB&s }p rnalritairi' a -.documented breach nolrficaiton • and ;'inc1dj5rit
respori'se p/pcess; .The Contractor will notify .'the .Stale's Priva'cy' Officer- ̂ "nd th"b
'State.'S;.Secynty Officer-of eny security breai^ im'rnbdiately.'at the 'e.maii adjdf.i^ses
.provided In-Section .VI. This "iricjudes a confidential information'breach, dpn^b.btbr

•  ■secyfi.ty .lnci.denl! or-suspected; breach wh'ich affects or include,^ any'^i.e 6'f l^ew
Hampshire".syslbm's lhal.co.rinectlothe"!^at€;of N.ewHaf^ riel^rli.

15. O.orilreWpr my,st.:ce"s.lric.t access, to "the. Conf!deril.iaI Data-obtained un'der this •
Coritrypf io."_dnl"y'-ttibse"'.;e.ulhpri2ed End tJsers vyti.b 'rie.ed ;such .DHHS"'Data lo
perform Ihpir bffjcia.l duties'in cpnne'ctjb.r) with"purposes iderilirie'd in this Contr'aci.

16. ^he'C.oritractdf."friust erisofe ihafeil Ehd Users:
"a. -dbmply (.vwjh .such-safeguards as referericed in Section; ;iv A. atwve.

ifnp|embbtX'b'''to' protect "Cbri'fidenlial Infbimallon that is furnished'by DHHS-
urtddf this iCqri'tract from'loss, .theH or inadverienl disclosure.

b. -safeguard this Information at all limes.

c. ensu'rfe-tha'tiaplops and other.ele.ctronic-dev'ice.s/riiedi.a^.c.o.nlaining PHI, .Rl..Of
RFI.arGencrypledand.passworb-'pfOtecl'ed..

d. s.end email.s -donialningt .CprSfideritial Information oniy -if ericrvote'd arid being
jbrid 'heirig rpceiyiw by erriairadbfess.es. of persbn's auihoriidd' to"

Vet^iye.such'.infqrTriali.ori.

.V5.-L»»l update'1009/18. . -(iUtWl.K ."Coftlfa'bof.lMji
pHK5;in(wn3llort-^ "

Sccu^ aei^rcrnienl']-
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e. limit disclosure of the Conndehtlai informalion to the extent permitted by laiw,

i. Confidential -Inforrnetipr^ received under this Cpnt/act 'and indjyiduaOy
Identifiable data derived from DHHS bata. must be stored in an area that Is
physically -and technologjcaity secure from access by Cinautho.rlzed .persons
during duty hours ps. well as n'or^duty hours (e.g..- door locks, ̂ rd keys,
ttpm.etric.idehliners.eic.}.

g. only authorized End Users may t/ansmrt the Confidential Data, Including any
.'derivairye files containing personally Identifidb.te informalion. and In all cases,
such 'data must t>e epcfypted at all times wtien In iransli. at r^. or when
■stored on poriable media-as required in section IV above.

h. in all diher instances Conildentidt -Data must t>e malntairied. used .and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as. determined by a .risk-based
-assessmer^t'of the circumstances involved.

'  - ■ " • • •• • . • • . . . • .
1. understand that their userxfedehtjals (user name and password) must not be
'  shared v/lth anyone. End Use.rs'wfll Keep .their credential ihrormation secure.

This-applies to credentials used 16 access the site .directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

■'Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. .OHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite Inspections to m.onitor. compliance with this
.'Comract. Includirig ihe-.privacy and security requirements provided in herein,.HIPAA.
.and olher-appticable laws and Federal reg.ulatidr^s until such tirrie.lh'e .Confidential Data

-  Is disposed Of in accordance with this Coniract.

V. LOSS REPORTING -

The Cbnlrac.tor mpsl OOlKy the Stale's Privacy .Officer and Security Ofilcer of any
.Security'.Incidents .'and Breaches immediately, b.'t the enriaii addresses-provided in
.^eption V,l.

The. Cohtraclor must further handle and report lnddenls and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance'.vwth the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Nptrncation
pr.pc^'ures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 308. In addition to. and

' noiwilhstanding. Contractor's compliance with all'applicable obligations .and procedures.
Gon'traclpr's proc^ures must also address how the Co'ritradtor vviil: .
1. Identify Incidents:
2. Detefmine.if personalty idenlifiabie informati.on Is involved in Incidents;
■3. • Rep^o.rtsuipcc1e.d'6r confirined Incidents .as required in this Exhibit or R-37;
A. Identify and con'yeWe a core response group to deiennine the risk level of Incidents

e.nd d.et^f'mine' risk-based response's to thcidents: and

VS.Lttilupible 1003/18 exNDiiK Coiii.<i«i'o(l'^>«
DHHS iniomauon

' 'Ps9eB^9 bale,



DocuSign Envelope ID; D012AB8E-9673-4736-9A6C-0787EBB2ECC0

• DocuSign Envelope ID: C70CE28F-FA74-4BBC-8980-B4C9CEF289BE

New pe;partment of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHHS information Security Requirement

5. betefmine B'readh notrfica.lion Iji •required, and, if so, id6nltfy spprppHale
Breach nofficajion rnethods, liiWnj. "source, and contents frdni among'
options,-and tear cp.sts-associate Wtih the ̂ dabh notice'as'well ai. cio/'.rriitigatidn
m'eisures;.

in'cidehts 'and/or BrdVches .-that implicate PI must 'jbe addressed and reported, as
.applicable, (n'e^'rdahce with NH RSA 359-0:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT ̂

■A. OHH§ Privacy Officer;
dHH^Pfivacybfficer@dhhs.nh.gov •

0. OHrt^'Security Officer.
DHHSInformationSecurilyOffice@dhhlrih.'g'ov

'VS. i.ui.upOftie Vdro^id -.gitriWl K •
.OK^'iAloonAdon

Sbaflity'Re:(litf^ni»
• ':Po^DOlf' '•
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